
AGENDA 
MANDAN CITY COMMISSION 

MARCH 5, 2019 
ED “BOSH” FROEHLICH MEETING ROOM, 

MANDAN CITY HALL 
5:30 P.M. 

www.cityofmandan.com 

A. ROLL CALL:
1. Roll call of all City Commissioners

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

C. MINUTES:
1. Consider approval of the minutes from the February 19, 2019

Board of City Commission Regular meeting

D. PUBLIC HEARING:

E. BIDS:

F. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Consider letter of support for Redline Plumbing Flex PACE interest

buydown.
2. Consider approval of the following proclamations:

i. Proclaiming March, 2019 as General Aviation Appreciation
Month in the City of Mandan.

ii. Proclaiming April 22, 2019 as Earth Day in the City of
Mandan.

iii. Proclaiming April 27 – May 4, 2019 as Spring Clean-Up
Week in the City of Mandan.

3. Consider letter of support for E-C ND Investments, LLC Flex PACE
interest buydown

4. Consider transfer of a Class A Liquor License from the Silver Dollar
Bar Inc. to Gregorio Didonna.

5. Consider approval of a charity raffle permit for Mandan FFA Alumni
at the Prairie West Golf Club for 3-1-19 to 6-7-19.

G. OLD BUSINESS:

H. NEW BUSINESS:
1. Consider Growth Fund Committee recommendations:

i. Storefront Improvement application for 1710 E Main St.
ii. Restaurant Rewards sales tax rebate for Balancing Goat

Coffee Co.
iii. Restaurant Rewards Flex PACE interest buydown for

Balancing Goat Coffee Co.
iv. Sunset of Restaurant Rewards Program on March 31, 2019

2. Consider N.D. Opportunity Fund Loan Committee appointment

~ 1111111111 
CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE. WEST BEGINS 

http://www.cityofmandan.com/government/agenda.html


Agenda 
Mandan City Commission 

March 5, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 

3. Consider approval of concurrence of award and associated budget
amendment for the Highway 810 segment of the I-94 resurfacing
project.

4. Introduction of new employees:
i. Lila Teigen, Real Property Appraiser III (Assessing

Department)
ii. Jonathan Mathisen, Payroll and Benefits Technician

(Finance Department)
5. Legislative Update Number 4

I. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:
1. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1307 to amend and re-enact 

the Mandan Code of Ordinances relating to Animals
2. Second Consideration of Ordinance 1301 Related to Changes to 

R3.2 Residential District
3. Second Consideration of Ordinance 1291 Related to Sales of 

Fireworks and Fireworks Stands and Resolution Establishing 
Permit and Associated Fees

4. Second Consideration of Ordinance 1306 Related to Backyard 
Chickens and Resolution Establishing Fees

II. OTHER BUSINESS:

III. FUTURE MEETING DATES FOR BOARD OF CITY COMMISSIONERS:
1. March 19, 2019
2. April 2, 2019 (Board of Equalization  - recessing to April 16
3. April 16, 2019 (Board of Equalization to follow regular meeting)

IV. ADJOURN 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 1 of 14 
The Mandan City Commission met in regular session at 5:00 p.m. on February 20, 2019 

in the Ed “Bosh” Froehlich Room at City Hall, Mandan, North Dakota.  Mayor Helbling called 
the meeting to order.   

A. ROLL CALL:
1. Roll Call of All City Commissioners.  Present were Mayor Helbling and Commissioners
Braun, Davis, Larson and Rohr.  Department Heads present were Finance Director Welch, City
Administrator Neubauer, Fire Chief Nardello, Building Official Ouradnik, Business
Development and Communications Director Huber, Planning & Engineering Director Froseth,
City Planner Van Dyke, Assessor Markley, Police Chief Ziegler, Director of Public Works Bitz
and Assistant City Attorney Oster.  Absent: City Attorney Brown.

2. Presentation of Retirement Acknowledgement for Mandan Fire Department Firefighter
Bob Smith.  Mayor Helbling said that Bob started as a full time firefighter with the Mandan Fire
Department on July 25, 1991 and he will continue to serve the community until February 28,
2019.  Bob has provided many hours to the Fire Department as a Captain of which he has built,
repaired and manufactured many projects.  Mayor Helbling extended wishes for an enjoyable
retirement and thanked him for his years of service to the City of Mandan.  Fire Chief Nardello
came forward to assist with the acknowledgement.

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

C. MINUTES:
1. Consider approval of the minutes from the February 5, 2019 Board of City Commission
regular meeting. Commissioner Braun moved to approve the minutes as presented.
Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes;
Commissioner Davis: Yes.  Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor
Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed.

D. PUBLIC HEARING:
1. First consideration of Ordinance 1306 related to backyard chickens.
Principal Planner Van Dyke presented a request for approval of the first consideration of
Ordinance 1306 related to housing chickens within the city limits of Mandan. He said that this
ordinance was brought by residents who live in Mandan.  Previously, Travis Dengel provided a
brief presentation for this request in 2018. Additional information was requested by the Planning
and Zoning Commission that included a survey of communities in North Dakota that allow
chickens, the number allowed, and commonalities within the ordinances such as disallowing
roosters. Also provided were the benefits and consequences of permitting chickens and the
means to mitigate negative impacts.  Currently, the Mandan City Code does not allow chickens
within City limits unless they are a part of a commercial-scale operation. The code being
presented would allow up to four (4) chickens per lot with several restrictions to mitigate
negative impacts to neighboring property owners.

Pursuant to the request, a preliminary Ordinance was drafted and sent to city departments and 
several other agencies for review which is the normal process for new or revised Ordinances.  He 
presented a copy of Exhibit 4 that provided an acknowledgement of understanding of the 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 2 of 14 
requirements and responsibilities which the applicant and owner would be required to sign prior 
to the issuance of a permit.  He reported that the Planning and Zoning Commission, in a split 
vote (2 opposed) recommended approval of Ordinance 1306 at their January 2019 meeting. 
Subsequently, minor revisions were incorporated into the draft document, in particular, the 
chickens would not be allowed to be taken off the permitted site and located them somewhere 
else within the City. (Example:  Chicken-sitting the chickens off the permitted site would not be 
allowed.)   The structure for the chickens (coup) would be 8 feet in height vs. 5 feet in height.  
And the right of way was clearly defined. This would be a one year revocable permit, renewable 
on an annual basis.  If this passes first consideration Planner Van Dyke said that he will present a 
Resolution for a suggested fee for the permit indicating that Planning and Zoning would be 
responsible for the issuance of that permit and collect the fees. The construction standards of the 
coup and quantities of chickens would also be the responsibility of Planning and Zoning.   He 
stated that both the Engineering and Planning Department and Planning and Zoning Commission 
recommended approval of Ordinance 1306 with the revisions made as recommended.   

Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing to consider Ordinance 1306 related to 
housing chickens within the city limits of Mandan.  He invited anyone to come forward to speak 
for or against the ordinance.   

Travis Dengel, 1707 Third Street Northeast, Mandan, came forward and stated that he introduced 
this Ordinance.  The intent is to keep people responsible for their chickens and to allow this as an 
activity option for residents.  He said he supports the Ordinance.  

Mayor Helbling again invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against Ordinance 1306.  

Commissioner Larson said she has concerns regarding this request, in particular, the oversight of 
by the Planning Department - should not be in charge of monitoring chicken coups.  She does not 
have a problem with the chickens; rather it is a concern about staff time spent overseeing this 
which does not seem like a necessity.  Commissioner Davis concurred with the concerns outlined 
by Commissioner Larson as it relates to staff time, and fee collection as well as compliance 
issues.  Mayor Helbling commented that he thinks this matter is an attempt to be proactive rather 
than reactive and that residents will have chickens whether it is favorable or not to the City.  
Commissioner Rohr inquired if there should be a distinction between an urban (city) and rural 
(outside the city) setting and inquired how many requests have been presented to the City 
Planner.  He commented that it seems to be unorthodox and not a common request in this day 
and age. Commissioner Braun commented that it is unorthodox and he agrees that the 
enforcement and staff time are his concerns too.  Planner Van Dyke stated that he contacted 
Fargo to see how they are handling this and they said they regretted passing the Ordinance, after 
the fact, but they were not having a lot of issues and it didn’t seem like there were a lot of people 
exercising their right to apply for a permit.  The main reason people want them is for the eggs 
and then potentially butchering them.    

Shawn Ouradnik came forward and stated he has 5 chickens at his house.  There is not much 
smell.  His children have a harness and walk them and they are soothing to watch as they are 
very low maintenance.  They are pets and they do produce eggs without roosters.  He supports 
this Ordinance.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 3 of 14 
Planner Van Dyke stated that the recommendation would be an initial permit fee of $100 and it 
would be renewable annually.   

Mayor Helbling announced a third time for anyone to come forward to speak for or against 
Ordinance 1306.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   

Commissioner Braun moved to approve Ordinance 1306 as presented.  Commissioner Davis 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: No; Commissioner Davis: Yes.  
Commissioner Larson:  No; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The motion 
passed. 

2. First consideration of Ordinance 1291 related to fireworks sales and fireworks stands.
Principal Planner Van Dyke presented a request for approval of first consideration of Ordinance
1291related to the sales of fireworks and fireworks stands.  He stated that fireworks sales in the
City of Mandan have been contentious for both residents and retailers due to the lack of specific
regulations surrounding where retailers can conduct the sale of fireworks. Complaints have been
received from the public regarding their location, traffic, or simple distaste for the activity itself
being located close to residential areas. In contrast, the retailers are left with last-minute, often
stressful situations in terms of identifying an appropriate location. This Ordinance will define
where these stands are allowed and provide retailers the opportunity in advance of the fireworks
season to identify an appropriate location to conduct their business. He said that city staff met
both during and after the fireworks season to discuss this issue. Input was received from several
departments including Fire and Building. Commissioner Rohr and Administrator Neubauer were
also present for the discussions. Follow-up meetings were held with Natalie Pierce, Morton
County Planning and Zoning Director, Malcolm Brown, City Attorney, and Lynn Gustin,
Mandan Rural Fire Chief on behalf of Chief Nardello.

In summary, this Ordinance incorporates all of the above input as well as the recommendations 
of the Planning and Zoning Commission to remove any setback distance from residences.  The 
proposed Ordinance amendment defines fireworks to align with North Dakota Century Code. It 
also defines fireworks stands, which includes specific requirements that must be met. Fireworks 
stands would be allowed in Ag zones on property 20,000 sq. ft. (approx. ½ acre) or larger or 
where the Retail group A use group is allowed (CA/CB/CC Commercial and MA/MC Industrial 
Districts). Fireworks stands would not be permissible within corporate limits; only permitted 
within the extra-territorial area. 

Planning and Zoning unanimously voted to recommend approval of Ordinance 1291 as presented 
in Exhibit 1at their January 2019 meeting. The Engineering and Planning Department and 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Ordinance 1291 as drafted.  

Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing to consider Ordinance 1291 related to 
fireworks sales and fireworks stands.  He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against 
the Ordinance.  Mayor Helbling announced for a second and third time for anyone to come 
forward to speak for or against the Ordinance.  Hearing none, the public hearing was closed.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 4 of 14 
Commissioner Davis asked for an explanation of the extra-territorial zone, there was a gray area 
of a fire stand that was deemed in the extra-territorial zone. He inquired about plans to eliminate 
the gray area.  Planner Van Dyke said that the need for this Ordinance was for a formal permit 
and while forming this process – discussion ensued as to what is appropriate.  We didn’t define 
where the fireworks stand was assuming it was in a retail location.  Ag zoning does not 
necessarily allow retail.  Fireworks stands are kind of in no man’s land that needs to be addressed 
since there have been issues coming up and this is not a replacement to the county permit that is 
issued rather this is the City of Mandan’s localized permit that will be issued in conjunction with 
the state and county permit.  This allows us to make sure it is going in precisely the location that 
they are declaring and that we have all the information that we need to make an educated 
decision on whether or not it is appropriate and city staff will issue our permit which they will 
take to the county as proof that they have already gotten the city’s seal of approval.   

Commissioner Rohr moved to approve Ordinance 1291 as presented in Exhibit 1.  Commissioner 
Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: 
Yes.  Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The 
motion passed. 

3. First consideration of Ordinance 1301 related to changes to the R3.2 Residential
District. Principal Planner Van Dyke presented a request for approval of first consideration of
Ordinance 1301 related to changes to the R3.2 Residential District.  He explained that changes to
residential districts were carried out in 2016. These changes included limiting the number of
single-family residences to 10% of the total number of lots within a subdivision in the R3.2
Residential District; all other residences within this district are required to be twin home
construction.  Macedonia Hills and other areas were platted prior to the 2016 Ordinance change
with the intent to allow a combination of single-family and twin home construction. Multiple
inquiries from lot owners and real estate agents over the past few months brought attention to
this particular restriction in the R3.2 Residential district. There has been controversy with the
inability to construct single-family residences on certain lots. In discussion with city staff the
ability of the City to administer the 10% limitation with the current permit tracking software is
difficult and likely to result in an inadvertent issuance of a permit for non-conforming structure.
The proposed revisions remove the 10% clause, defines twin home, and clarifies side setbacks
for both twin homes and single-family dwellings. The Planning and Zoning Commission
unanimously voted to recommend approval of Ordinance 1301 as presented in Exhibit 1.

Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing to consider the first reading of Ordinance 
1301 related to changes to the R3.2 Residential District. He invited anyone to come forward to 
speak for or against the Ordinance.  Mayor Helbling announced for a second and third time for 
anyone to come forward to speak for or against the Ordinance.  Hearing none, the public hearing 
was closed.   

Commissioner Braun moved to approve Ordinance 1301 as presented.  Commissioner Rohr 
seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes.  
Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The motion 
passed. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 5 of 14 
4. First consideration of Ordinance 1299 related to crematoriums.
Principal Planner Van Dyke presented a request for approval of the first consideration of
Ordinance 1299 related to crematoriums.  He said that an inquiry related to allowable locations
in Mandan for crematoriums brought attention to several different requirements whether or not a
crematorium is public or privately operated. Presently, crematoriums are generally a part of a
funeral home or mortuary. These uses are allowed in Commercial and the MA/MC industrial
districts. Setbacks are determined by the respective zone and in some cases the setback is at zero
feet. In contrast, public crematoriums require a conditional use permit and must be located in
agricultural or industrial districts with a 200 foot setback from the property line.  When
researching this Planner Van Dyke found confusing language within the Ordinance that appears
to apply different standards for a use solely based on being a public or private activity doesn’t
adequately mitigate the negative impact of the use. By applying the same standards to both
public and private entities through the requirement of a conditional use permit, adjacent property
owners have the opportunity to be involved in the process stemming from any application.

The proposed Ordinance provides a new definition for crematoriums that requires them to be an 
accessory use to a legally existing mortuary, funeral home, columbarium, or cemetery. They 
would not be allowed to operate as the primary use on a property. In addition, “facilities for 
cremation” is removed from the definition of funeral home or mortuary. The standards applied to 
public mausoleums, columbarium’s and cemetery chapels are now applied to both public and 
private facilities. This includes being limited to industrial or agricultural zones. 

What is a setback?  In reviewing other municipal ordinances, Bismarck allows them as accessory 
to funeral home operations as well as through a special use permit as part of a cemetery (similar 
to Mandan’s present Ordinance). Minneapolis requires crematoriums to be located within a 
cemetery and 1,000 ft. setback from a property line. Denver requires crematoriums to be a part of 
a cemetery, with a minimum 500 ft. setback from a residential district. Staff also asked for 
feedback from funeral homes in Mandan. Buehler Larson Funeral Home indicated 300 ft. from a 
residential zoning district was more in-line with other communities in and outside North Dakota. 
David Wise has provided comment that included several suggestions for definitions and he 
suggested 200 ft. from a residential zoning district. Tom Wiegel provided comments stating that 
crematoriums should be allowed only in the Industrial and Agricultural zones and located no 
closer than 300 ft. to a residential or commercial property line. Mr. Wiegel noted that while 
technological improvements have been made that reduce emissions, emissions are still a factor. 
Crematoriums produce a substantial amount of noise. City staff agreed with the recommendation 
of a 300 ft. setback from the property line based on other municipal ordinances and input from 
Mandan funeral homes.  Mr. Wise came forward and provided his comments with focus on 
setbacks from the property line. The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to recommend 
approval of the Ordinance subject to changing the 300 ft. setback to 100 ft. excepting along 
adjacent right-of-way. This would take into consideration the somewhat large distance (at a 
minimum 66 ft. for local roads and up to 100 ft. or more for arterials such as Highway 1806) the 
right-of-way provides as a buffer to an adjacent property.  

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Ordinance 1299 as presented. 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 6 of 14 
Commissioner Davis inquired if a bike trail would be considered a right of way.  Planner Van 
Dyke replied that typically bike trails are considered a right of way.  Mayor Helbling commented 
that Bismarck has a crematorium that was built in northwest Bismarck before any homes were 
built in the area.  Most of the homeowners in that area do not even know the crematorium is 
there.  He stated it would be better to be proactive than reactive when situations start to come up.   

Commissioner Larson inquired if there is a requirement for a 200 ft. setback for a cemetery 
chapel but only a 100 ft. setback for a crematorium?  Planner Van Dyke said it is the way the 
Ordinance was created and that all the recommendations had a 200 ft. setback and for this 
purpose, he was just looking at a crematorium.  He said the standards could be relaxed for a 
columbarium or mausoleum.    

Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing to consider the first reading of Ordinance 
1299 related a crematorium.  He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or against the 
Ordinance 1299.   

Wes Eisenmann 1405 17th Street Southeast, Mandan, came forward and said he is opposed to the 
crematorium in Mandan.  He commented that there is evidence that crematoriums produce 
dangerous pollutants which are linked to serious health problems, especially in young children.  
He voiced concern that the value of homes will decrease by 15-20% if there is a crematorium in 
the neighborhood.  He requested the request be denied.   

Mayor Helbling clarified that there is no formal request at this time for a crematorium. 

Wade Meschke 1810 14th Avenue Southeast, Mandan came forward and voiced his opposition of 
allowing a crematorium site in Mandan.  He requested the commissioners look at their own 
residential dwelling locations and think about how a crematorium would affect them if one were 
to be built in their neighborhood.  He suggested the ordinance reflect a 100 ft. hard set back 
radius in which no development can occur with a 1,000 ft. setback radius and to notice the 
property as the zoning commission puts it “buyer beware area”. He inquired if the historical 
society has cleared this property for development in case of Native American artifacts that may 
be found in this area.  He requested the Commission to consider the requests of the residents of 
Mandan (to deny this request for a crematorium) so that the property levels continue to rise and 
so the residents are not continuously dealing with the City Commission about this matter.  

Delbert Thompson 712 Farmstead Court Southwest came forward and commented that he would 
reiterate what Mr. Meschke outlined.  He believes the setbacks have to be hard setbacks and they 
need to be spelled out clearly in the Ordinance.  

David Wise of DaWise-Perry Funeral Services 4614 Memorial Highway Mandan, came forward 
and stated he is in agreement with the Ordinance that Planning and Zoning has drafted.  This 
allows for a 100 ft. hard setback.  He said that he understood that the public hearing tonight is to 
define what a crematorium is and define the hard setback. He provided feedback to some of the 
statements made regarding property values, crematory emissions, CANA’s, etc.  He explained 
that the site he is interested in sets on a 5 acre plot of land located along 19th Street Southeast, 
which is next to the Living Water Lutheran Church.  He said that during last year there were 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 7 of 14 
3,364 cremations in the state of North Dakota.  He said that he would like to expand his business 
to offer this service in Mandan.  The location he would like to operate from is close to the ND 
Veteran’s Cemetery.  The crematorium would be more than 500 ft. from the nearest residence.  
He plans to host a Q & A session at DaWise-Perry Funeral home on Sunday at 2:00 p.m. and he 
said anyone is welcome to attend.   

Commissioner Davis inquired about an existing funeral home, changing it to an accessory 
regarding the crematory, why not have the crematory where the funeral home is located at this 
time rather than move it to a residential area?  Mr. Wise said that his building is old and the cost 
of remodeling it would exceed the costs of building a new facility, for much less.  Why he is 
looking at this particular location is because it sits empty and that area is for commercial use;  
and also to promote his business and with the rate of veterans we have in the state, this location  
would put his business closest to the Veteran’s Cemetery.  He would like increase his business to 
Bismarck as well as other cities in North Dakota.  This facility would be state of the art, a larger 
reception area and at that location, it is on the edge of the City of Mandan and the master plan of 
City of Mandan is to have that property as commercial.  He was open to answer any questions at 
this time.   

Mayor Helbling commented that if taking Mr. Wise out of this matter, and if he goes ahead with 
his project or not, crematoriums are the up and coming thing of the future.   

Mayor Helbling again announced this is a public hearing to consider the first reading of 
Ordinance 1299 related to crematoriums.  He invited anyone to come forward to speak for or 
against the Ordinance 1299.  Hearing none, this portion of the public hearing was closed.   

Commissioner Larson commented that she believes it is interesting that Mayor Helbling 
commented that this is a matter to consider into the future.  However, she said that is not what 
happened at the Planning and Zoning meeting.  She has a concern that it went from a 300 ft. 
setback recommendation, to a 200 ft. recommendation from Mr. Wise and then to a 100 ft. 
recommendation.  There is no recommendation for setback for right of way.  She extended a 
thank you to Mr. Wise and to the residents for coming forward to voice concerns.  She 
recommended reviewing this matter further and determine what would be the best outcome for 
any location in the City of Mandan regardless of this particular location.  She said she did not 
believe that a 100 ft. setback is a consideration.   

Commissioner Rohr said it appears that there should be further discussion to determine the best 
interests that will encompass the whole city.  There should be an Ordinance in place and 
everything that goes with it.   

Commissioner Braun commented the Ordinance should read that crematoriums should only be 
allowed in cemeteries as in Minnesota and Colorado.  His rationale for stating that is because 
cemeteries are typically where people are laid to rest.  The Mandan Union Cemetery comes to 
mind and it is out of the way, there is smoke involved depending on the wrapper that is used and 
there are issues.  The cemetery could set 2-3 lots aside of which people can purchase and build 
the crematorium there.  It is common knowledge that the Union Cemetery does not bring in 



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 8 of 14 
enough money.  We are taking out of the tax funds on a regular basis so we can pay the 
maintenance fees.  He suggested considering this recommendation as an option.    

Mr. Wise responded to Commissioner Braun’s suggestion and stated that it is his understanding 
that the City of Mandan is not able to sell the property by Mandan Union Cemetery. Even though 
the property was deeded to the City of Mandan, it is his understanding it cannot be sold. He said 
he would be willing to look into that option.  Administrator Neubauer stated that the City 
constructed a building on that site for cemetery use purposes and cemetery staff is located in that 
building.  The deed that goes back to 1938 indicates that the City cannot sell property to any 
individual however it is unknown if the property could be leased. Mayor Helbling commented 
that the area at the cemetery would be limited if a crematorium, a chapel or a parking lot, were 
all to be set in that location would probably not be sufficient.  Administrator Neubauer recalled 
that the deed was very restrictive as to what the City can or cannot do at the cemetery with the 
property.  

Commissioner Braun requested tabling this matter to research the possibility of building a 
crematorium at the cemetery and discuss at a later time.  Administrator Neubauer said that 
updates to the Ordinance will need to occur no matter what the decision is on this matter.  He 
recommended looking at the revisions that were brought tonight and in addition, if the 
Commission wishes, research can be conducted to rent or lease the property. Planner Van Dyke 
clarified that the property is zoned Agriculture and that will have to be changed to commercial. 
For any commercial business to go there it will require a zone change and platting and an 
annexation, so there are processes ahead of this even if an additional use permit could be applied.  
Short of a variance application Mr. Wise will have to go through almost every public hearing 
that the City would have in order to be permitted.  However, without this Ordinance, at this 
point, Mr. Wise can relocate his crematorium anywhere butting the setback line next to a fence.  
As far as the overall commercial development there that is the plan of the City regardless of the 
crematorium.  It will have to be appropriate and go through the process of changing plat and 
annexation.   

Mayor Helbling stated that Planning and Zoning have recognized there is a problem with this 
Ordinance and action has to be taken by the City.   Commissioner Braun stated he talked with 
individuals about the setback, he suggested that it be a minimum of 200 ft. setback.  
Commissioner Rohr concurred with the suggestion.   

Sylvia Thompson, 712 Farmstead Court Southwest, Mandan, inquired if there was a setback 
from the property lines of the residential houses located in that area.  Planner Van Dyke stated 
there is a property line set back that accepts the adjacent right of way which would allow any 
crematorium placement to be located closer to the road and away from the neighboring property.  
The hard setback applies to the non-right of ways and the adjacent properties do not have 
something pushing closer towards them.  The purpose of the 100 ft. setback was to get it away 
from private development and pushing it towards the right of way. 

Mayor Helbling said that if this first consideration was approved tonight, there would still be an 
opportunity to come back and amend the second consideration.  Planner Van Dyke said that 
revisions can be made at this time.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 9 of 14 
Commissioner Larson stated she concurs with Commissioner Braun and thinks that the minimum 
should be 200 ft.  She is not comfortable with 100 ft.     

Commissioner Braun moved to approve Ordinance 1299 with the setback set at 200 ft. as 
presented in Exhibit 4. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.   

Commissioner Rohr stated this is the first reading and there is still another reading that we could 
make changes after reviewing all the issues.   

Sylvia Thompson, 712 Farmstead Court Southwest, Mandan came back to the podium and 
voiced concern that it makes no sense to have the setback closer to the houses.  She inquired if an 
Ordinance could be drafted to protect the houses that are located there by creating an Ordinance 
that the setback would have to be from the property line of the houses, rather than the street.  
Mayor Helbling stated that was discussed at the Planning and Zoning meeting.  Planner Van 
Dyke said a clause could be added to include a provision for a set back from residential district 
as a hard setback as well as a soft set back. 

Mr. Meschke came back to the podium and said he meant to have a hard setback and a softset 
back.  In Bismarck they were allowed to build as close or as far they wanted.  The hard setback 
for the residents would have to be quite a distance.  As it moves closer to 1806 or whatever road 
comes in, this is zoned as Agricultural, and the property is not annexed in, everyone on both 
sides of the road should have input.   

Commissioner Davis recommended tabling this matter until further research is conducted to 
answer questions about setbacks.   

The motion on the table is:  Commissioner Braun moved to approve Ordinance 1299 with the 
setback set at 200 ft. as presented in Exhibit 4. Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.   

Mayor Helbling called for a roll call vote on the motion on the table:  
Commissioner Rohr: No; Commissioner Davis: No.  Commissioner Larson:  No; Commissioner 
Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The motion failed.   

Commissioner Rohr motioned to revisit this matter at a later time in order to allow Planner Van 
Dyke additional time to gather more information regarding hard and soft setbacks as discussed.  
Commissioner Larson seconded the motion.   

Commissioner Davis said he agrees to the Ordinance.  Regarding the right of ways, not just 
streets but including utilities.  Planner Van Dyke indicated he will revise the verbiage to make 
sure it is clearly known the right of way and what the setback would be no less than 100 feet.  

Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes.  Commissioner Larson:  
Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

5. Conduct a public hearing to consider an appeal of the MARC decision on a mural at
Many Visions located at 100 2nd Ave NW.



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 10 of 14 
Shawn Ouradnik, Building Official reported that Bobby Cochran, owner of Many Visions 
located at 100 2nd Avenue NW, has filed an appeal of the denial of a mural application by the 
Mandan Architectural Review Committee (MARC). He explained that Many Visions was cited 
by City Code Enforcement for placing a mural on the front of the building without a mural 
permit, required by Section 105-1-15(j) (9). Mr. Cochran, submitted an application after-the-fact 
for the mural and the matter was reviewed by MARC. The MARC denied the application at their 
November 13, 2018 meeting based on violation of the mural guideline #1 which prohibits murals 
being placed on the front of buildings. The MARC also denied the mural application due to 
zoning regulations surrounding downtown design related to aesthetic harmony with adjacent 
structures as outlined in Section 111-1-6 (2). 

Due to the denial, an appeal was submitted by Bobby Cochran to the City in December 2018. 
Staff worked with Mr. Cochran to determine a date to present the appeal before City 
Commission and February 5, 2019 (postponed until February 19, 2019) was determined to be 
appropriate.   

Director Ouradnik recommended upholding the decision of the MARC and to deny the appeal of 
the mural located at 100 2nd Avenue NW for the following reasons:  No. 1: because of Non 
Compliance with Mural Guidelines;  No. 2:  due to violation of  Section 111-1-6(2)  related to 
downtown design and adjacent structure color pallets. A photo of the mural was presented on the 
overhead for viewing by the Commissioners and those in attendance.  The reason for the denial 
was due to the mural guidelines in place in 2018 and the guidelines state that you cannot paint a 
mural or art depiction on the front of the building and this is the front of the building facing the 
street.   

Mayor Helbling announced this is a public hearing to consider an appeal of the MARC decision 
on a mural at Many Visions located at 100 2nd Ave NW. He invited anyone to come forward to 
speak for or against the matter. 

A second announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against the appeal.  A third 
announcement was made to come forward to speak for or against the appeal.  Hearing none, the 
public hearing was closed. 

Director Ouradnik stated that Bobby Cochran was initially invited to the February 5, 2019 
meeting, however, he was unable to attend.  He was contacted about today’s rescheduled date 
and time via email correspondence and he acknowledged this time would work.  He failed to 
show up tonight.  

Commissioner Braun moved to deny the appeal made by Bobby Cochran, the owner of Many 
Visions and to uphold the decision of MARC to remove the mural located at 100 2nd Ave NW 
based on the Mural guidelines and Section 111-1-6 (2) of the Mandan municipal code. 
Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.   

Commissioner Rohr commented that uniformity with the adjacent buildings in downtown 
Mandan is important to the City.  Mayor Helbling commented that there have been many Store 
Front improvement projects over the last several years to attain uniformity of the buildings.   



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 11 of 14 
Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  
Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

F. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Consider approval of monthly bills.
2. Consider approval of a charity raffle permit for the 31:8 Project at Midway Lanes on
March 2, 2019.
3. Consider amending the Engineering Service Agreement with AE2S to include final design
of Raw Water Intake.
4. Consider approval of minor plat of Ol’ Town Second Addition.
6. Consider approval for the Police Department to enter into a contract with Shallow Creek
Kennels Inc. for the purchase of a narcotics detection/patrol police service dog and the training
of the dog and handler.
7. Consider approval of 19th Street Trail project Cost Participation and Maintenance
Agreement.
8. Consider Approval of the Police Department making grant application with the Office of
Community Service Oriented Policing Services (COPS).
9. Consider approval of allowing the Police Department to assign Deputy Chief Bier to take
on the duties of the fiscal officer for the ND Multijurisdictional Task Force Lottery Program
Grant for the Metro Area Narcotics Task Force contingent on final approval by the ND Office of
the Attorney General.

Commissioner Larson requested Consent Item No. 5 be removed for discussion.  Commissioner 
Rohr moved to approve the Consent Agenda items 1 through 4 and 6 through 9 as presented.  
Commissioner Davis seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed.   

5. Removed for Discussion:
Consider the following abatements for: (i) Morton County Water Resource District dba Missouri
West Water System (ii) Brandon Charvat (iii) Eileen M & Bryan L Giese (iv) Lloyd Deringer.

Commissioner Larson questioned requests since some are 2017 and it seems the last meetings 
have been heightened compared to previous years.  She inquired if there was a timeframe for 
these abatements. Assessor Markley replied the law stated that they can go back up to two years.  
Or up to November 1st of the preceding year.   

Commissioner Larson moved to approve the Consent Agenda item No. 5 as presented.  
Commissioner Rohr seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

G. OLD BUSINESS:

H. NEW BUSINESS:



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 12 of 14 
1. Discuss potential Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) study opportunities in
2020.   Planning and Engineering Director Froseth presented study opportunities requested by
the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for 2020. He stated that the MPO has notified all
of its member jurisdictions that there are some Consolidated Planning Grant (CPG) funds from
past year’s distributions that are available to the City of Mandan if used by 2020. The MPO
group has discussed some ideas for these funds and one of them includes a possibility of a
corridor study for Sunset Drive north where the roadway currently ends. That study has surfaced
near the top of supported ideas by the MPO stakeholders. At this time, there is no funding
commitment tied to that prioritization exercise. With this agenda item, that corridor study is
presented as an option to move forward.  A commitment will have to be in place by September
2019 for it to take place in 2020.

Director Froseth commented that with any of these corridor study ideas, some of the main 
objectives of the study would be to; (1) Determine the best alignment and corresponding right of 
way necessary to reserve for that future corridor; (2) Project future traffic volumes to determine 
general configuration of the corridor such as number of lanes and intersection treatments; and  
(3) Estimate costs in order to best program funding for a future project. The study would come
with a consultant lead public outreach effort and public involvement meetings. As with MPO
studies, it would not be a design effort and those details would not be part of the scope.

Director Froseth presented three suggested options as being most worthy of a corridor study: 
(1) Sunset Drive extension corridor study: This has been discussed by the MPO as a potential
study since staff does see the north/central part of Mandan as a potential large-scale growth area.
(2) Boundary Road south of I-94 and west of Sunset Avenue and/or Lohstreter Road extension
corridor study: This is also an area that staff can see as a potential large-scale development.
Boundary and or Lohstreter are likely a couple of roads that would need to be extended to serve a
large scale development into this area. Neither road is currently considered to be on the
functional classification system.
(3) McKenzie Drive west extension and Heart River crossing corridor study: Staff occasionally
is asked when such a crossing might occur. It would likely help spur some new development but
there is not as much land to be developed as the previous two ideas. It would give residents
another route from their homes and to the east relieving some volumes coming from the east.

In addition to these three options, the City could elect no study and the MPO could move on to 
another jurisdiction’s study ideas or forfeit the CPG funds available. Director Froseth stated that 
he is not looking for a recommendation at this time. The intent is to present options, receive 
feedback, and come back with a recommendation at some future time before 2020 budgeting. 

Based on past studies, the MPO has estimated a corridor study to be between $160K-$180K. The 
MPO would be responsible for 80% of the study cost while the local jurisdictions share the 
remaining 20%.  Since the only jurisdictional beneficiary for this one would be Mandan, we 
would get the entire 20% of the local share.  

Mayor Helbling recommended moving No. 2 to the top. This is for informational purposes.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 13 of 14 
2. Consider the approval of plans and specifications, Engineers Report, and authorize the
call for bids for the 2019 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2019-03.  Planning &
Engineering Director Froseth presented a request for the approval of plans and specifications,
Engineers Report, and authorize the call for bids for the 2019 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement
Project 2019-03.  This is the annual sidewalk construction project for the removal and replacing
of existing sidewalks or aprons in need of repair. Residents may elect to have sidewalk and/or
apron work done to their existing sidewalk and/or apron that is adjacent to their property under
this project and to have that work assessed to their property. Sidewalks and/or aprons for new
construction are not eligible to participate. The work includes any concrete item within the
public right-of-way that needs to be done.  Public Works is looking at utilizing this contract to
repair some 8” curb and gutter, and some sidewalk gaps that need to be connected. The project
cost is estimated at  $49,027.50 for 2019.  There were 72 letters sent to contractors that have
done work in the city to invite them to a meeting to discuss this project. That meeting was held
on February 7, 2019.  Two contractors attended the meeting. Technical feedback was received
that will be incorporated into standards going forward.

Director Froseth said that pending approval of this project the next step would be to advertise the 
project on March 1 & 8, 2019 and open bids March 26, 2019 and bring back recommendations to 
the City Commission for bid awards on April 2, 2019.  Director Froseth recommended approval 
of this project.  

Commissioner Larson moved to approve the resolution approving plans and specifications, 
approve the resolution approving engineer’s report and approve the resolution directing 
advertisement for bids for the 2019 Municipal Sidewalk Improvement Project 2019-03. 
Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

3. 2019 Legislative Update #3
Administrator Neubauer presented a handout of the 2019 Legislative Bills pertinent to the City of
Mandan.  All defeated bills will drop off this list.

I. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES
1. First consideration of Ordinance No. 1307 to amend and re-enact the Mandan Code of
Ordinances relating to Animals. Police Chief Ziegler presented the First Consideration of
Ordinance 1307 to Amend and Re-enact the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to Animals.
Several discussions were held with City Commissioners and city officials regarding updating the
current ordinances relating to dogs and cats in the Mandan Municipal Code. In November 2018,
a first reading on a proposed new ordinance was held. After that reading, additional input was
received regarding the proposed ordinance.

City Attorney Oster explained that it was decided to re-examine the proposed changes. Instead of 
making numerous changes to the Ordinance No. 1303 proposed in November, a new ordinance 
has been drafted (Ordinance No. 1307) and the previous Ordinance No. 1303 will be rescinded.  



City of Mandan – Board of City Commissioners 
Minutes of February 20, 2019 

Page 14 of 14 
Commissioner Rohr moved to rescind the First Consideration of Ordinance 1303. Commissioner 
Larson seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; Commissioner Davis: 
Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor Helbling:  Yes.  The 
motion passed. 

Chief Ziegler explained that Ordinance No. 1307 - Deputy Flaten worked with Commissioner 
Rohr and others to come up with the new ordinance that contained a number of additional 
definitions. Several nuisances’ related sections were repealed and were combined into an 
expanded restricted activities section. Changes were made to the sections involving running at 
large and leashes. In addition, a number of sections have been changed to allow for the issuance 
of a citation for violations instead of having to do a long form complaint for charges. 

Commissioner Larson commented that this Ordinance had a lot of public interest.  She requested 
a brief highlight of what this Ordinance 1307 is comprised of.   

Mayor Helbling suggested that due to lack of time for discussion on this item tonight, that it be 
tabled until the next meeting.  

Commissioner Braun moved to table the discussion on the Introduction and First Consideration 
of Ordinance 1307 to Amend and Re-enact the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to 
Animals. Commissioner Larson seconded the motion.  Roll call vote:  Commissioner Rohr: Yes; 
Commissioner Davis: Yes; Commissioner Larson:  Yes; Commissioner Braun:  Yes; Mayor 
Helbling:  Yes.  The motion passed. 

J. OTHER BUSINESS

K. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further actions to come before the Board of City Commissioners, Commissioner 
Rohr moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:03 p.m.  Commissioner Braun seconded the motion.  
The motion received unanimous approval of the members present. The motion passed. 

James Neubauer 
City Administrator 

Tim Helbling  
President, Board of City Commissioners 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider providing a letter of support to the N.D. 
Opportunity Fund (NDOF) loan committee for a loan to finance an expansion project by 
Redline Plumbing. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Mandan is part of a consortium of 38 North Dakota 
municipalities that received funding from the U.S. Treasury Department for a loan 
participation program marketed as the N.D. Opportunity Fund (NDOF). The NDOF loan 
committee will consider applications for repayable loans for the required community 
share of an interest buydown. The interest buydowns are made available through the Bank 
of North Dakota PACE and Flex PACE programs. The loan committee needs to receive 
documentation of community support for use of an interest buydown to assist the 
particular business or project. A letter from a city commission confirms that a business 
project provides community benefit and has the support of the governing entity. 

Haro Property Management, LLP, a real estate holding company owned by Travis Berger 
and Jacob Hollingsworth, also the owners of Redline Plumbing, has a purchase agreement 
in place for a shop/office building at 2716 34th St NW in the Mandan Industrial Park. 
They are seeking to reduce the interest rate on a $209,600 loan to be applied toward the 
purchase of the property. The required community share for the buydown is $9,179.57. 
They plan to seek this amount as a repayable loan from the NDOF. 

ATTACHMENTS:  1) Redline Plumbing Flex PACE request 2) Proposed letter of 
support 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: Feb. 19, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Department 
SUBJECT: Request for Flex PACE letter of support 

Consent No. 1 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Flex PACE letter of support 
Page 2 of 6 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All information has been submitted to Attorney Brown for review. 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the City Commission provide a letter of support 
regarding an interest buydown for Haro Property Management, LLP to accommodate 
purchase of a property by Redline Plumbing. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve providing a letter of support for Haro 
Property Management, LLP to accommodate purchase of a property by Redline 
Plumbing. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Flex PACE letter of support 
Page 3 of 6 

REDLINE 
PLUMB/Nii 

Dear Mandtm City Commission, 

This letter is to request support for the provision of the required community matoh for an 
iatere t buy-down from ihe N.D. Opportunity Fund. 

Redline Plumbing was established April of 20 13. They specialize in new construction, 
remodels and service plumbing. Redline Plumbing is equally owned by Jong-time friends Travis 
Berger and Jacob Hollingsworth. Both Travis and Jake are Mandan graduates and currently still 
live in Mandan. 

Travis graduated from MHS in 2000, from there he started his apprenticeship plumbing al 
HA Thompson. After a year there, he pursued a degree in business management. Travis then got 
back into plmnbing for Nortl1em Plains Plumbing. He finished his apprenticeship and became a 
Journeyman Plumber. After seven years at Northern Plains, Travis wrote his plumbing test and 
became a Master Plumber. One week later Travis and Jacob started Redline Plumbing, 

Jake graduated from MHS in 2002, from there he also staJ'ted his apprenticeship 
plumbing for HA Thompson. Jake was employed al HA Thompson for about a year and half. He 
then joined fue Army full time. Jake was stationed out of Washington and was deployed multiple 
times. After six years Jake left the Army and moved back home and began plumbing again. Jake 
fin ished his apprenticeship at Northern Plains and became a Journeyman Plumber. One week 
later, Redline Plumbing was established. 

They both left great paying jobs and spent their savings, in hopes to pursue their dream of 
being business owners. They got a loan from Starion and bought an enclosed trailer. Every night 
after work, this trailer would be p!trked in front of Travis' home. Soon, Redline began to grow 
and a van was purchased. Over time, Redline grew fromjusl Travis and Jake, lo hiring a 
temporary summer employee. to hiring two permanent full time employees. After getting 
multiple parking tickets for not having a place to put their equipment, Travis and Jake created 
J faro Property Management, a real estate holding company which purchased a four unit 
residential rental property wilh a two stall garage. Redline Plumbing began to work out ofd1e 
garage of the four unit building. Redline Plumbing has continued tu grow and is running out of 
space in the garage. 

After hearing about the flex Pace program offer for businesses like Red.line Plumbing, 
the owners started to seek out a location in Mandan. After looking at many different properties, 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Flex PACE letter of support 
Page 4 of 6 

Haro Property Management now has a purchase agreement in place for the shop/office building 
at 2716 34th St. NW Mandan. The property has a 1,040 sf office and 1,200 sf shop on .84 acres, 
with plenty of room to expand. The loan will be $209,600, which is 80% of the $262,000 
purchase price of the property. They plan to eventually build an additional shop on the site and 
renovate the original building. With this additional space to grow, they will have the opportunity 
to hire more employees and expand their vehicle fleet as well. 

Please consider the request to support the interest buy-down program for Haro Property 
Management LLP. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Flex PACE letter of support 
Page 5 of 6 

Staiion 
BANK 

2/18/2019 
Taking you l1rthl'r 

Mandan City Commission, 

This letter is to serve as a conditional letter of approval for a bank loan to Haro Property Management 
LLP, the real estate holding company for Travis Berger and Jacob Hollingsworth, owners of Redline 
Plumbing Heating and Air LLC. The terms are as fol lowed : 

Loan up to $209,600. Loan Is limited to 80% of purchase price or appraised value. 
The Interest rate will be fixed for the first 5 years at 5.39%. After 5 years, it will relock at 
whatever the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) S year rate+ 2.35% Is at that time, for the last 5 
years of the maturity. 
MonthlyP&I. 
10 year maturity 
20 year amortization 
Security will be a 1st REM on subject property 

This approval is subject to the following conditions below: 

Acceptable appraisal on property. 
Acceptable title work 
Acceptable Insurance 

Sincerely, 

Landon Feil 
Business Banking/VP 
701-667-1611 
landonf@starionbank.com 

~ 
109 h r $1 NW, PO UnK fMtt I M,u1da11, 'I> ,II~'>~ I 701-nf.l -MH I Fa• 701 -667 !~~6 j M~,nh,•, m1c; l'ffll/i1 

starlonbank.com 



B
oard of C

ity C
om

m
issioners 

A
genda D

ocum
entation 

M
eeting D

ate: M
arch 5, 2019 

Subject: Flex PA
C

E letter of support 
Page 6 of 6 Exhibit A: Haro Property Management LLP 

LOAN TYPE: Fie.PACE NOTE: TM bor~r and orlglnarlng ltndN should b,t O-WOl't fhaf fht/ultd wifl (N'O'ilidt o str ttrNm of S®Sidy ~ts (In tenst buydown} 
LOAN NUMBER: bosd upon tht!! pr,ymtt1t scMduf~ below. 11w amour.1r of the bo,ro1<i1tr's ~t. mt o~ilOtlic>tt ond oll oi:1:1,, rtrms "1 tM kxm shall tit" 
LEAD8ANK: ~r/Jff t,y rht prominory nof~ 

The t>olot>CU ~ ~ otht.r than tM specif IC bll)'down amounts, on lnt~ntkd for llhrstra~ ~ptJ:sts only. 

Buydown Account Details 
lNTtREST 8UY00WN AMOUNT: $26,828.15 
BND BU'l'DOWN AMOUNT: $17,438,29 
COMMUN!n'IUVDOWN AMOUNT: s, ....... 
PRESE.NT VAI.UE BND: S11,047.76 
PR ESE HT VALUE COMMUNITY: $9.179.S7 
CREATED DA.Tl.: 2/1:3/2019 

Loan without buydown Loan w ith buy down 
PRINCPAI.; $2.M,C.00.00 PRINCPAI.! $209,600.00 
Y'IELORATE: S.39 BORROWING RATE: ~00 
AMORTllATION (MONTI-IS); 240 AMOATl2ATION (MOlfiMS): , .. 
PAYMENT: Sl.438.10 

Perlod P.ayrMnt P~l lnt•refl .... "" ~od p~ Prinici~I Interest lblante Period lnte~t Buydown BND (EiS-00%1 Comm11nity (JS.OOK) 
$1,438.10 S4~.ss $94l.4S $209,103.35 I $671.32 $496.6S $174.67 $209,103.:35 1 $766.78 ~9SA1 Sl&e..37 
$1,438:.10 $C67.S7 $970.53 S208,63S.78 ' $647.63 $467.S7 $180.06 $208,635.78 2 $7~7 $513.81 Sl76.66 
Sl.438.10 $S00.98 $937.12 $208,134.JIO 3 $674-84 SS00.98 $173.86 $208,134.80 3 $763.26 S .. 6.12 $267.14 
Sl,438.10 $472.07 $966..03 $207,662.73 4 $<Sl..l0 $471.01 $179.23 $207,66:Z.7.3 ' $706.80 $5-1.1.41: $275..38 
$1,438. 10 $474,26 $963.8,C. $207,188.47 s $653.0A $474.26 $178.82 $207,188.47 s $78S.02 $Slo.2.6 $274.76 
$1,438.10 SS07.48 $930.62 $206,680.99 6 $680.14 SS07.4ll $172.66 Sioti,680-9'9 • $75-7.96 $49:Z.67 $265.29 
$1,438. 10 $478.81 $959.29 $206,202.18 7 $6S6.79 S.78..81 $177.98 $206,202.U: 7 $78-1-31 $S07..3$ $:Z73Mi 
Sl.438. 1.0 SSll .91 S926.19 $20$,690.27 8 $683.74 SS-11.91 $171.83 S20S.,690..27 • $7S4.3G $490.33 $264.03 

• $1,4:38.10 $483.41 S9>4.69 $20S,.206.86 9 $660.S3 $483.41 s1n.12 $205,206.86 • S777.S7 SSOSA2 $272.IS 
10 $1.438...10 $48S.66 $9S2.44 $204,721.20 10 $66:Z.37 S48S.60 $176.71 $204,721.20 10 sns.13 SS04.22 $27L51 
11 $1,438.10 $M9.2.1 $888.89 $204,17:u9 11 $714.12 SS,49.21 $164.91 $204,171.'9'9 II sm.ss $470.$9 $2S3.39 
12 $1,438.10 $490.46 $947.64 $203.681..Sl 12 ~27 S4""-46 $11S.81 $203,68LS3 12 Snl.83 SSOUi9 $l70.14 
13 $1,438.10 $523..23 $914,87 $203,15&.30 13 $602 ... $S23.23 $169.73 $203,158..30 13 $74.S..14 $484.'4 S260J!O 
14 Sl.438.10 $495.16 S94l.94 SlO:Z..663-14 14 Sf.70.10 S49S.16 $174,9,t $202,663.14 14 $768.00 s,gg_20 $268.80 
lS Sl.438.10 $527.80 $910.30 $202;.135.34 15 -.. $Sl7..80 $168.89 $202,lls.34 lS $741.41 $481.92 $2S!A9 

" $1,438.10 $499.91 $938,19 $201,635.43 16 $673.97 $499.91 $174.06 szoiws.43 ... $764 ,U $496.'8 $267.45 
17 Sl.438-1.0 SS02.l3 $935.87 $201,133.20 17 $67S.86 S502.23 $173.63 $201.133.20 17 $762.24 S49S.46 $2.66.78 
18 $1,4:38.J.0 SS34,68 $903,42 S200.S98.S2 18 $702.29 SS:34.68 $167.61 $200.S9".S2 18 $715.81 $418..28 $2S7.S3 
1' $1,438.10 $507.04 $931,06 $:ZOO,O'J'l.48 19 $679.78 SS07.04 $172,7.t s~.®ua 1' S7S8.32 $492.91 S26S.41 ,o $1,438...10 $5393' $898.74 $199,552--12 20 $706.10 SS39.36 $166.74 $199,SSl.12 20 $732.00 $47S..80 $2S6..20 

" $1,438.10 $511,g() S926.10 s1gg_040_22 2l $.68.3.74 $.Sll.90 $171.84 $199,040.22 21 $7~.315 $4"90..33 $264.03 
22 $1,438.10 SS14.28 $923.82 $H8.S2S.94 22 $'8S.'8 SS,14.28 $171.40 $198,Sl.S-94 22 S7S2:.4:Z $489,07 $261.35 
23 S1.os..10 $005.84 $832.26 $197,920.10 23 $760.25 $005.84 $1S4.41 $197.920.l(l 23 $677.SS $440.,0 $237.ZS 
2, $1,438...10 $S19..43 S91.8.6l $197,400.6:Z 24 $689.91 SS19,48 S170.43 S1Sl7.400..62 24 $748. 1§1 $416.32 $261.87 
2S Sl.438...10 $551..44 $886.66 $196.849.18 ,. $715.94 ililM $164.SO $196.849.18 2S $722.16 $469.40 $25,2.76 ,. $1,138..10 $52•.45 $913Ji.S $196,324.73 26 $&93.96 SS24.4S $169.Sl $196,324.73 ,. $744,14 $483,69 $260.-45 
27 $1,438-10 SS56.27 $881,83 S195,76&46 27 $719.87 SSSS.27 $163.60 $195.761..46 27 $718.2] $466.85 $251.38 
28 Sl.438..10 SS29.46 $908.64 $195.239.00 28 $598,04 SSl.9,415 SlG.S.58 $1§15,.239.00 ,. $740.06 $481.04 $~9.0l ,. $1,433.10 $531.92 $906.l& $194.707-08 ,. $700,04 SSJl.9:Z $1158.11 $194.707.08 ,. $738.06 $479.74 $2S8.32 
30 $1,438.10 $56354 S37456 sm.10.sc 30 $72S.80 SS63.S4 $162-26 Sl94,14J.S4: 30 S712:.30 $4Ei3,00 $249.30 
31 $1.438-10 SS37.00 $901.10 $193,606.54 31 $104,18 SS:37,00 $167.18 $193,606.S-4 31 $733.92 $477.0S $256.87 
32 $1.438...10 $$68.48 $869,6:Z $193,038.0Ei 32 $72'9.Sl $SQU8 S1151.34 $193.033.06 32 $708.28. $450.38 $247,90 

" $1,438.10 $S42.14 ssgs_ .. $192,49.$.92 33 $708,37 SS42.14 $166.2.3 $192,495.92 33 $729.73 $474 . .:32 SZSS.-41 ,. Sl,438,lO $544.GS $893.45 $191.95"1.27 ,. $710.41 SSM.6$ $16$.76 S191,9S.l.27 ,. :S727.69 $473.00 S2S4.69 
35 $1,438.10 $633.40 $804-70 $191.317.87 3S $782.M S633.40 $149.2:9 $191,.317.87 3S SISSS,41 $4:ZEi,Ol :S,229.39 
36 $1,4:38.10 $550.U $887.98 i;190767.7S 36 p14.87 SS.50.12 $164.75, $190,767.75 36 $723.23 $470. 10 $253.13 

$S1,nl . GO $18,.832..25 $32,,939.lS $14,943.45 $11,832.15 $6,11.1.ZO $26,828.lS $17,431.2:9 $9,389-85 



Phone: 701-667-3215  •  Fax: 701-667-3223  •  205 Second Ave. NW  •  Mandan, ND 58554 
www.cityofmandan.com/administration 

 March 5, 2019 

Dear NDOF Loan Committee, 

Please accept this letter as evidence of support by the Mandan City Commission for a NDOF 
loan to Haro Property Management, LLP, for the community share of a proposed interest 
buydown through the Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE program. 

As one of 38 participating municipalities involved in creating the NDOF, the City of Mandan has 
appreciated the role of the revolving loan fund in filling gaps and leveraging private financing to 
help new and expanding businesses attain needed loans. The City of Mandan’s Growth Fund 
currently has a relatively balance of uncommitted funds, less than $300,000. We are striving to 
reserve these scarce funds for economic and community development programs and 
anticipated projects that justify a forgivable or no-interest loan. Thus we ask that you favorably 
consider the application by Haro Property Management, LLP. 

The real estate holding company is owned by Travis Berger and Jacob Hollingsworth, also the 
owners of Redline Plumbing. They have a purchase agreement in place for a shop/office 
building at 2716 34th St NW in the Mandan Industrial Park. They are seeking to reduce the 
interest rate on a $209,600 loan to be applied toward the purchase of the property. The required 
community share for the buydown is $9,179.57. 

The Mandan City Commission supports the use of the NDOF to reduce borrowing costs on a 
loan because it will facilitate the expansion of Redline Plumbing, an existing business in 
Mandan. With additional space to grow, Redline Plumbing will be able to hire more employees 
and expand its service fleet. 

We appreciate your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely, 

City of Mandan 

Timothy C. Helbling 
Mayor 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

CITY or 

MAlfDAX 
MANDAN CITY HALL - 205 2nd Avenue NW 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 58554 

701-667-3215 • FAX: 70 7-667-3223 • www.cityofmandan.com 

PROCLAMATION 

General Aviation Appreciation Month 2019 

CITY DEPARTMENTS 

ADMINISTRATION 

ASSESSl1\JG 

BUILDING INSPECTION 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

CEMETERY 

ENGINEER/PLANNING & ZONING 

FINANCE 

FIRE 

HU1v\AN RESOURCES 

LANDFILL 

MUNICIPAL COURT 

POLICE 

PUBLIC WORKS 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

UTILITY BILLING 

WATER TREATMENT 

WHEREAS, the City of Mandan in the state of North Dakota has a significant interest in the continued vitality of 
general aviation, aircraft manufacturing, aviation educational institutions, aviation organizations and community 
airports; and 

WHEREAS, general aviation and the Mandan Municipal Airport have an immense economic impact on the City of 
Mandan; and 

WHEREAS, North Dakota is home to 89 public-use airports, which serve approximately 3,600 pilots and about 
2,000 registered aircraft; and 

WHEREAS, North Dakota is home to 53 fixed-base operators, 12 repair stations, 17 heliports, one FAA-approved 
pilot schools, 856 student pilots and 496 flight instructors; and 

WHEREAS, general aviation airports In North Dakota support more than $121 million in total economic output; 
and 

WHEREAS, general aviation not only supports North Dakota's economy, it improves overall quality oflife by 
supporting emergency medical and healthcare services, law enforcement, firefighting and disaster relief, and by 
transporting business travelers to their destinations quickly and safely; and 

WHEREAS, the nation's aviation infrastructure represents an important public benefit, and Congressional oversight 
should be in place of this system to ensure that it remains a public system and serves communities of all sizes; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Tim Helbling, President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of Mandan, do 
hereby proclaim general aviation a vital strategic resource to the City of Mandan and Declare March, 2019 as 

GENERAL AVIATION APPRECIATION MONTH 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Mandan to be affixed on 
March 5th, 2019 

Attest: 

James Neubauer City Administrator 

Timothy Helbling, 
President, 
Board of City Commissioners 

667-3215 

667-3232 

667-3230 

667-3485 

667-6044 

667-3225 

667-3213 

667-3288 

667-3217 

667-0184 

667-3270 

667-3455 

667-3240 

667-327B 

667-3271 

667-3219 

667-3275 

mill
Text Box
Consent No. 2i



"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

CITY 01' 

MAlfDA1'f 
MANDAN CITY HALL - 205 2nd Avenue NW 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 58554 

701-667-3215 • FAX: 707-667-3223 • www.cityofmandan.com 

Proclamation 

Earth Day 2019 

CITY DEPARTtv\ENTS 

ADMINISTRATION 

ASSESSING 

BUILDING INSPECTION 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

CEMETERY 

ENGINEER/PLANNING & ZOi'-JING 

FINANCE 

FIRE 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

LANDFILL 

MUNICIPAL COURT 

POLICE 

PUBLIC WORKS 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

UTILITY BILLING 

WATER TREATMENT 

WHEREAS, humankind is currently facing tremendous global challenges affecting every community, 
including large-scale migration, extreme inequality and poverty, degradation of ecosystems, mass 
extinction of species, and global climate change; and 

WHEREAS, all people of this Earth, no matter their race, gender, income, sexual orientation, or national 
origin, have a right to a healthy environment; and 

WHEREAS, the youth of the world are our most valuable resource and represent a source of endless 
creativity and potential; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the citizens of our global community to develop green jobs and to build an 
innovative and equitable green economy to combat the aforementioned global challenges; and 

WHEREAS, expanding environmental education and climate literacy is vital to enhance awareness about 
the environment, inform decision-making, and protect future generations, and 

WHEREAS, it is understood that sustainability will only be achieved by meeting the needs of the present 
without compromising the needs of future generations; 

WHEREAS, it is more important than ever to act locally and to cooperate internationally and defend the 
environmental progress that has been heretofore gained; and 

WHEREAS, it is essential to expand and diversify the global environmental movement to achieve 
maximum progress; and 

WHEREAS, Earth Day is an annual reminder of the constant need for environmental activism, 
stewardship commitments, and sustainability efforts. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Timothy Helbling, President of the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 
Mandan, have the distinct honor of proclaiming April 22, 2019 as EARTH DAY throughout Mandan and 
encourage all of its citizens, businesses, and institutions to use EARTH DAY to celebrate the Earth and 
promote environmental and climate literacy. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Mandan to be 
affixed on March 5, 2019. 

Attest: 

James Neubauer City Administrator 

Timothy Helbling, 
President, 
Board of City Commissioners 

667-3215 

667-3232 

667-3230 

667-3485 

667-6044 

667-3225 

667-3213 

667-3288 

667-3217 

667-0184 

667-3270 

667-3455 

667-3240 

667-3278 

667-3271 

667-3219 

667-3275 

mill
Text Box
Consent No. 2ii



"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

CITY or 

MANDA1'f 
MANDAN CITY HALL - 205 2nd Avenue NW 

MANDAN, NORTH DAKOTA 58554 

701-667-3215 • FAX: 707-667-3223 • www.cityofmanclan.com 

Proclamation 

Spring Clean-Up Week 

CITY DEPARTtv\ENTS 

ADMINISTRATION 

ASSESSING 

BUILDING INSPECTION 

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 

CEMETERY 

ENGINEER/PLANNING & ZONING 

FINANCE 

FIRE 

HU1\I\AN RESOURCES 

LANDFILL 

MUNICIPAL COURT 

POLICE 

PUBLIC WORKS 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 

UTILITY BILLING 

WATER TREATMENT 

Each spring a special week has been set aside to encourage city 
wide clean-up effort; and 

Experience has shown that the efforts put forth during this week 
help to prevent accidents and fires and does much to promote a 
clean, attractive community; and 

The citizens of Mandan have participated in this program to the 
common benefit of the individual property owners and the 
community as a whole. 

NOW THEREFORE, I, TIMOTHY A. HELBLING, President of the Board of City 
Commissioners of the City of Mandan, do hereby proclaim the week of April 27th - May 
4

th

, 2019 to be 

"SPRING CLEAN-UP WEEK" 

In the City of Mandan and do urge all citizens to participate in the efforts to keep Mandan 
the clean and attractive community that it is. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City 
of Mandan to be affixed on March 5th, 2019.

Attest: 

James Neubauer City Administrator 

Timothy A. Helbling, 
President, 

Board of City Commissioners 

667-3215 

667-3232 

667-3230 

667-3485 

667-6044 

667-3225 

667-3213 

667-3288 

667-3217 

667-0184 

667-3270 

(,67-3455 

667-3240 

667-3278 

667-3271 

667-3219 

667-3275 

mill
Text Box
Consent No. 2iii



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider providing a letter of support to the N.D. 
Opportunity Fund (NDOF) loan committee for a loan to finance an expansion project by 
E-C ND Investments, LLC.

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Mandan is part of a consortium of 38 North Dakota 
municipalities that received funding from the U.S. Treasury Department for a loan 
participation program marketed as the N.D. Opportunity Fund (NDOF). The NDOF loan 
committee will consider applications for repayable loans for the required community 
share of an interest buydown. The interest buydowns are made available through the Bank 
of North Dakota (BND) PACE and Flex PACE programs. The loan committee needs to 
receive documentation of community support for use of an interest buydown to assist the 
particular business or project. A letter from a city commission confirms that a business 
project provides community benefit and has the support of the governing entity. 

E-C ND Investments owns property in Mandan and leases it to Malloy Electric. Malloy is
seeking to expand and has selected Mandan among its regional service center locations
which include Sioux Falls and Dakota Dunes, SD; Omaha, NE, and Fargo. Owner Chris
Houwman indicates the recommendation is in part because of Mandan’s friendly
permitting process and the availability of the interest buydown program.

Malloy is seeking to reduce the interest rate on a $2 million to $2.5 million loan to add an 
approximate 15,000 sf warehouse/distribution center for its regional customer base. 
Based on a sample BND buydown schedule, the required 35 percent community match is 
estimated at $68,904. They plan to seek this amount as a repayable loan from the NDOF. 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: Feb. 19, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Department 
SUBJECT: Request for Flex PACE letter of support by E-C 

ND Investments, LLC 

Consent No. 3 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Flex PACE support for E-C ND Investments 
Page 2 of 4 

ATTACHMENTS:  1) E-C ND Investments Flex PACE request 2) Proposed letter of 
support. For more information visit http://www.malloyelectric.com. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

LEGAL REVIEW:  All information has been submitted to Attorney Brown for review. 

RECOMMENDATION:  I recommend the City Commission provide a letter of support 
regarding an interest buydown for E-C ND Investments, LLC to accommodate an 
expansion by Malloy Electric. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve providing a letter of support regarding an 
interest buydown for E-C ND Investments, LLC to accommodate an expansion by Malloy 
Electric. 

http://www.malloyelectric.com/


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Flex PACE support for E-C ND Investments 
Page 3 of 4 

February 26, 2019 

Dear Mandan City Commissioners: 

Please accept this as a letter of request for your support of an interest buydown for a 
business expansion project by Malloy Electric. 

Malloy Electric was founded in 1945, expand ing to incorporate the retail sales and service 
of electric motors, e lectrical equ ipment, and power transmission components. Malloy has 
continued to expand over the years and now has incorporated large facil ities that house 
machine shops, electronic shops and motor repair shops with locations in Sioux Falls SD, 
Dakota Dunes, SD, Fargo ND, Mandan ND, and 2 locations in Omaha NE. 

Malloy is looking to add additional warehousing in one of our regional service centers. Our 
team has recommended our facil ity in Mandan for this expansion . The address of this 
facility is: 1401 Action Drive SE Mandan, ND 58554. 

This project is adding a distribution center for our regional customer base. Malloy would 
also look at adding additional equipment to grow our existing service business in North 
Dakota. 

The investment for building the equipment is estimated to be 2.5 mill ion dollars. 

Malloy started operations in Mandan in 2016 and has grown to 18 employees by the end of 
2018. We anticipate adding an additional 10-12 people in the next 18 months. 

Our primary lending institution is US Bank. We wou ld likely use them for this expansion as 
well , 4.5% -5% interest - with a 10-year note. However, we'd like the opportunity to bid this 
among a couple lenders, thus the reason for letter of commitment by a lead lender, yet. A 
copy of the proposed buydown schedu le is attached. 

The business entity for the loan will be E-C ND Investments, LLC. E-C ND owns the 
property in Mandan and rents it out to Malloy Electric, both companies have the same 
ownership. 
E-C ND LLC will be funding the expansion for Malloy to expand the business. 

I appreciate your support of our in itial project in 2016 and hope you'll support this expansion 
as well. 

a:~ 
Chris Houwman, Owner 
Malloy Electric 



B
oard of C

ity C
om

m
issioners 

A
genda D

ocum
entation 

M
eeting D

ate: M
arch 5, 2019 

Subject: Flex PA
C

E support for E-C
 N

D
 Investm

ents 
Page 4 of 4 Exhibit A: Malloy Electric 

LOAN TYPE: flex PAC.£ NOTE: ~ bom.J~r and orlglnarlng lend~, ~Id bt owort mor tht fund will prcwi~ a u-t strtt1m of ~bsldy ~r.ot:s (r,.t~Tfft bvydowi,J 
LOANNUM8Ut: basd upon tM paym~nt schttJ~ btiolM. Tht tmo,vm of tht ~r's paymi!'nt', th~ amo.rtlzolloft and all ctMr t~rtm of rM bffl .shall bt 
LEAD BANK; gOVffnfti by tM prom/nary not~. 

The bofo,1ea Showrt ~ otMr Chan rM $pffifk buydown amounts, a,~ lrm~ndNI for fflunro~ p~J Ol.ll'f. 
Buydown Account Details 
INT("Rl;ST 11,UYDOWNAMOUNT: Sl01,,.ll.2,4S 
BND BUYDOWN AMOUHT: Sl.30,801.10 
COMMUNITY BUYOOWN AMOUNT: S70.4ll.3S 
PA.ESEl"ft VAlUE BND: $127,965.86 
PRESENT VALUE COMMUNITY: $68,904.69 
CREATED DATE: 2/21/2019 

Loan without buydown Loan with buydown 
PRJNCIPAl: s2.ooo.ooo.oo PRINaPAL: s2.ooo.000.00 
YIELD RAT£: 4.?S BORROWING RATE: 1.00 
AMORTIZATION IMONTHS); 120 AMORTiiA.TION (MOHTHSJ; 120 
PAYMENT: $21.037.Sl 

Pmod Pillyment Prlncl~I lnttrtff h~nc:il" Period P~t Prlndpal 11,terfft Bal~nc• Period lnte~t Buvdown BND 165.00S] Community (JS.00%) 
I $21.037.51 S12,856.9S $8,180.56 $1,987,143.05 I S14,S7'.17 $12,8S6..9S $1,722.l.l SJ.~7, 14.3.0So 1 $6.45834 $4,197.92 $2,260.t.12 , $21,037.Sl $13.17L74 S7,86S.n $1,973,971.31 2 S14.827.6g $13.171.74 Sl.6SS.9S Sl,973,971.31 2 S6.2M.82 $4,0lG.38 $2.113.44 

' S:Zl,037.Sl S12.96l.42 $8,074.09 $1,961.007..89 ' $14,663.23 $12,963.42 Sl..699.81 St.961.CI07..89 ' $6,374.28 $4,143.28 $2,231.00 
$:Zl.037,51 $1-3,.27S.19 $7,762.32 $1,947.732.7'0 4 $14.,.909.36 $13,275.19 $1,,634.17 Sl..~7.732..70 • S6i,t2S,.1S, $3,983.30 $2,144.85 
$21.037.S1 $13,070.74 S-7,966.n $1,934,661.916 s $14,747.9S $13,070.74 $1,677.21 $U34,661.96 s 56,289.,6 $4,088.21 $2,201.35 

6 $21.03751 $13,124.21 $7,913.30 Sl,921.S37.7S 6 $14,790.17 Sll,ll:4 .. 21 $1,66S:916 s1.s:z.1,5:31.n 6 $6,247.34 $4.060.77 S:Z,18i,57 , $21.037.Sl $13,431.42 57,606.09 $1,908,106..33 7 SlS,032.70 $13.431.42 Sl..601.28 $1,908,106.33 7 SEi,004.81 $3,903.13 $2.101.68 
8 $21,037,Sl Sll.232.83 $7,904.68 $1,894,873..50 • $14,87s.g2 $13,232.83 Sl..643..M $1.~.:8?3 .. SO • $6,161.59 $4,00S.03 SU.S,6 . .56 

• $:Zl.037.Sl S,13,536..§17 $7,500.54 $I,881.336S3 • SlS,116.03 $1.3,536..97 S1.579.06 Sl.381,3:36..53 9 SS,921.411 $3,848.96 sum:.s2 
10 S:Zl.037.51 $13,342.32 $7,695..1.9 su,,,.-21 10 $14,962.36 $13,342.32 $1,020.04 $1,867,994.21 10 $6,075.lS $],'94$.8$ $l..12Ei.30 
11 S:Zl.037.51 $13.;396.89 $7,6<&0.62 $1,8S4,S97.32 11 SlS,OOS.44 $13,396.89 $1,008.SS $1,8S4,S'7.32 II $6,MH>7 $3,920.8$ $2.,111.22 
12 S:Zl,037,51 $13,941.10 $7,096.41 S1;840.6S6.22 " S1S,4JS.08 $13,941.10 $1,493.98 $1,340,656.22 12 SS,602 .. 43: S3,641.S8 $1,960.85 
13 S21.03:7.Sl $13,.508.71 $7,528.80 $1,827,.147.Sl 13 SlS,093.72 SU,SOS.71 Sl,585.01 $ 1,827,147.51 " SS.~3.79 $3,.863.46 Sl.OS0,33 

" S21.037.Sl Su.sos.as $7,232.46 S1,.81J,342.4G .. SlS,327.67 SU,805.0S Sl,Sll.62 $1,813;342.4Ei 14 $5,7M.84 S3.71VIO $1.998.44 
15 $21.037.Sl $13,620.44 $7,417.07 $1,199,722.02 15 SlS.181.93 $13,620.44 $1,S61.4g $1, 799,72.2..02 lS ss.sss.ss $3,806.13 $2.04~US 
1• $:Zl.037.Sl $13,91.3.61 $7,123_g() $1,7$$,808..41 16 $15,413.38 $13,913.61 $1,499.77 $1..785,808..41 16 S5,!u4.l3 $3,65,5,158 $1,963.45 
17 $21.037.Sl $13,733.06 $.7,30-US $1,772.07S.3S 17 $1$,270.84 $13,733.06 Sl.537.78 $1,772,07$.35 17 SS,766.67 Sl,748.3-4 $2,018.33 

'" S21.03751 SU,789,23 $7,248.28 S 1. 758,286.12 '" $1S,.31S.18 Sll,78~1..ll Sl.52S.9S $l,7S8,.Z86.12 ,. SS.722 .. 33 $3,7Jg_51 $.l,002.82 ,. $21.037.Sl $14,077.63 $6,959.88 $1,744,208.49 19 SIS.542.87 $14,077.63 $1,465 .. 24 $1,744,208.49 19 $S,49't.64 $3.S71.S2 Sl.923.12 
20 $21,037.Sl $13,903.21 $7,134.JO $1,730,305.28 20 SlS.-405.17 $13,903.21 Sl..SOL96 $1,730,305.28 ,. SS,63-2. 34 $3,661.02 $1.971.32 
21 $21,.037.Sl $14,188.38 $6,84g_13. $1,716,116..90 21 $15,630.30 $14,188.38 Sl.441-92 Sl..716.116.90 21 SS,407.21 $3,S,14,6-9 $2,89252 
22 S:Z l.037,Sl $14,018.12 $7,019.39 Sl..702..098..78 22 $1S,49S.89 $14,018.12: $1,,477.77 $1,702.098.78 22 SS.541 .. 62 $],602.0S $J.939.S7 
2] $21,037.Sl S14,07S.4S $6,962.06 SU88.02J.33 2] SlS.541..1S $14,075.45, $1,465.70 $1,688,02.3.,33 23 $5,496.36 $3,572.63 $1,923.7.3 

" S21.037.Sl $14,801.20 $6,2]6.J.l $1,673,.21.2.13 24 $16,114.11 $14;801..20 $1,312.91 $1,673,.l.U.13 24 $4,923.40 $3,200.21 $1,723.19 
25 $21.037.Sl Sl4.1g3.57 $6,843.94 $1,6S9,028.56 25 SlS,634,40 $14,193.57 $1,440.33 Sl,6S9,028.S6 2S $5,403.11 S.3.512.02 $1,891.09 
2• $21,.037.Sl $14.470.52 S6.S66.99 $1,544.SS&.04 26 $15,,853.04 Sl4,470.S2 Sl.382_52 Sl..64A.5SS.04 26 SS,184..47 S3,3Ei9.91 SU14S6 
27 $:Zl.037,S1 $14,310.81 $6,726..70 $1,630,24? .. tl 27 $15,726.96 $14,310.81 S1.416.lS $1,630.247.23 27 $5,3-10.55 $3,45,1.86 Sl.858..6, 
2B Sll.037.51 $14,584.45 $6,453.06 Sl,GlS,662.78 ,. $1$,942.99 $14,584.45, $1,,35&.54 Sl,615.662.7!1 28 SS.094.52 $],311.44 $1,783.DI 
29 $21.037.$1 $14.4.:z:9.00 $6,608.Sl SUOl.,233.78 2• SlS • .820.27 $14;429.00 $1.39Ll:7 $1,60:1,233..78 29 SS.217.24 $3,391.2 1 $1,826.03 
30 S21.037.Sl $14,488.02 $6,S49A9 $1,586,745.76 30 S15,866,86 $14,48&.o2 $1,373.&4 Sl4SS6,745.715 30 $5,170.65 S3.360.g2 S1,S09.n 
31 $21.037.Sl $14,756.64 $6,280.81 $1,S71,,98S.ll 31 $16.078.93 S14,7S6.64 $1,322.29 St.S?l,91'9.12 31 $4 ....... $3,223.08 St.73S.SO 
32 S:Zl.037,Sl S14,'507.64 56,429.87 Sl,SS7,38 I.48 32 SlS,961.30 $14,'507.64 S1,3Sl.66 Sl.SS7.381MI 32 SS,076.21 $3,299.54 $1,776,67 
33 Sll.037..Sl $14.872.87 $6,164.64 $1,542,S0&.61 " $16,170.69 $]4,872-87 $1,297.82 Sl.s-t2.!i08.61 " $4,866.82 $],163.43 $1,703.3, 
34 $21,037,S1 $14.728.22 $6,309.29 $1,527,780.39 34 S16.0SG.4g $14.728..22 Sl..328..27 S1,Sl7,780.39 ... $4,981.02 Sl.237.66 $1,743.36 

" $21,037.51 $14,788.46 $6,20.0S $1,512..991..93 3S $16,104.05 S14,788.4.6 Sl,315..59 s1.s12.gg1_g3 " $4,933.,46 $3,206.75 $1,726.71 
36 $21.03751 SlS.447,85 SS1S89.Ei6 $114g7~.08 .. $16,624.61 $15,447..SS, S11176.77 Sil ,,1 544,08 .. S-,,412.89 $2.86838 SlS-44.51 

$757,350.36 $>02,4.SS.92 $254,894-..44 $SSG,117.91 SSOl,455,92 $Sl,.66L!t!I $201,232, 45 $130,801.10 $70,431.35 



Phone: 701-667-3215  •  Fax: 701-667-3223  •  205 Second Ave. NW  •  Mandan, ND 58554 
www.cityofmandan.com/administration 

 March 5, 2019 

Dear NDOF Loan Committee, 

Please accept this letter as evidence of support by the Mandan City Commission for a NDOF 
loan to E-C ND Investments, LLC, for the community share of a proposed interest buydown 
through the Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE program. 

As one of 38 participating municipalities involved in creating the NDOF, the City of Mandan has 
appreciated the role of the revolving loan fund in filling gaps and leveraging private financing to 
help new and expanding businesses attain needed loans. The City of Mandan’s Growth Fund 
currently has a relatively balance of uncommitted funds. We are striving to reserve these scarce 
funds for economic and community development programs and anticipated projects that justify a 
forgivable or no-interest loan. Thus we ask that you favorably consider the application by E-C 
ND Investments, LLC. 

E-C ND Investments owns property in Mandan and leases it to Malloy Electric. Malloy is seeking
to expand and has selected Mandan among its regional service center locations which include
Sioux Falls and Dakota Dunes, SD; Omaha, NE, and Fargo. Owner Chris Houwman indicates
the recommendation is in part because of Mandan’s friendly permitting process and the
availability of the interest buydown program.

Malloy is seeking to reduce the interest rate on a $2 million to $2.5 million loan to add an 
approximate 15,000 sf warehouse/distribution center for its regional customer base.The 
required community share for the buydown is preliminarily estimated at $68,905, but may be 
subject to change depending on the final project cost, loan amount and terms. 

The Mandan City Commission supports the use of the NDOF to reduce borrowing costs on a 
loan because it will facilitate the expansion of Malloy Electric, adding to Mandan’s taxable value 
and the hiring of 10-12 people in the next 18 months. 

We appreciate your consideration of this request. 

Sincerely, 

City of Mandan 

Timothy C. Helbling 
Mayor 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Consent No. 4 

Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

WHEAE THE WEST BEGINS 

MEETING DATE: 

PREPARATION DATE: 

SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: 

DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: 

PRESENTER: 

SUBJECT: 

March 5, 2019 
March 1, 2019 
Administration 
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
Jim Neubauer, City Administrator 
Transfer of Class A Liquor License from Silver 
Dollar to Gregorio DiDonna 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider transferring the Class A Liquor License from the 
Silver Dollar Bar Inc. to Gregorio DiDonna. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: As we understand the property commonly known 
as the Silver Dollar Bar has been sold to Mr. Wade Felton, Rock Hill Properties LLC. 

ATTACHMENTS: Liquor license application, request from Luas Berger Jr to transfer 
license to Mr. Gregorio Didonna. This would be the one time transfer pursuant to our 
code of ordinances. There is a "Premises Lease Agreement" between Rock Hill 
Properties LLC and Mr. Gregorio DiDonna. Mr. DiDonna has previous experience with 
DiDonna's Italian Restaurant, Captian Freddy's and 1603 Main Events in Bismarck. No 
issue arose from the background check for Mr. DiDonna. 

FISCAL IMPACT: $150 has been received as the transfer fee. 

STAFF IMPACT: minimal 

LEGAL REVIEW: Information has been forwarded to City Attorney Brown for his 
review. 

RECOMMENDATION: I recommend approval contingent upon the establishment 
meeting all fire, health & safety, building codes and all property taxes are paid. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the transfer of the Class A Liquor License 
from the Silver Dollar Bar to Gregorio Didonna. 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 



� 

MANDAN 
w,,,:»,:T,.,,w,,c,Tl'<:<.o,.,·. 

Individual or Partnership Liquor License Application 

1. Type of License:

Liquor On-Sale[ll Off-Sale[ll Class: A B C D Dl E F WB MP DY BWO

�0000000 0 0 0 
Beer On-Sale_� Off-Sale[XI Class: A B C D Dl E F WB MP DY BWO 

©0000000 0 0 0 
2. Duration of License: Annual: (July 1, 

Part of Year: From

3. Are you applying for an Individual l]J

to June 30,
to 

or Partnership D

4. If business is owned by an individual, give name, address, and date of birth of Owner:

CjY..1/'tl'O (7. f) rtx> .U/1'1 £7:J II ·2cJJ/�i tut�-L/).,.:._ h,SNVAV<fc IJJ,fJ, 5P5cJ I

lu- 124(}) 
5. If business is owned by a partnership give the name of the partnership and the names, addresses, and dates of birth
of each member of the partnership. NI 

A

6. Name of Individual who is to be in charge of the day to day operations and management of the licensed premises and
will be responsible for complying with the municipal ordinances and state laws covering the operation of the premises: 

Name: rgarc::oRlrJ e 1)/J;nMf✓J 

City: Sj,S!ltlAA t( \<:, State:R}b 

Address: S3 If, 2 01/c! A /J/.:-:' N£ · 

Age: l/ ➔ DOB:((l .. 17 J b Citizenship:_�..,.J,_,,,);-1�,,,., 4+· �· ___ _ 
If naturalized, give date and place of naturalization: _______________________ _ 

Li t all other places of residence within the last 5 years: 17 o,£ L/1q. t!bt,, la-·J R,cf
A. 0 

7. Description of Licensed Premises: Address: 100 frAf:5:I Y)i\[1;'½, 1 Vl!\o,v\ �Cl V\ ,J\\l) 6fy'55'4
Legal Description: (Lot & Block): ,318 9 Le:;1 \5 i")\'h 1'") (also submit
on an attached page a diagram of the physical layout of the licensed premises including, at a minimum: doors, storage
areas, & areas where liquor/beer is purchased and consumed.)

8. Ownership/Lease: If a licensed premise is owned by Applicant, provide date of purchase. _r;:;J;&1,:zt:..__1._£;_rn.>1.A.li\--
/if licensed premise is under a contract for deed or leased, attach copy of executed and dated contract or lease.) 

9. If application is being sought by anyone other than the owner of the premise, attach a copy of the building lease.

- - --------

u 



10. Does Applicant certify that all property taxes have been paid to date on the licensed premises?
Yes 9(1 No□ (if property taxes are not paid, this application WILL NOT BE PROCESSED).

11. Have any of the individuals in answer to Questions 3, 4, and 5 ever engaged in the sale or distribution of alcoholic
beverages (as an 

/2j
er, manager, or employee) at a location other than in the City of Mandan at any time prior to this 

application Yes: No:□ (if yes, explain in detail on separate page, location, type of business, and dates 
of license or emp y ent). 

12. Have any of the individuals identified in answer to Questions 3, 4, and 5 ever had a license of any kind (including
alcoholic beverage license, other business license or motor 

r�
le license) suspended, revoked or non-renewed by any

political subdivision, state or federal agency. Yes No (if Yes, explain in detail on a separate page, listing the
name of the individual, the time and place of ca)ceilltion, t e uthority which cancelled the license of any kind, including
alcoholic beverage license, other business license, or motor vehicle license, and the reason for such cancellation.

13. Have any of the individuals identified in answer to Questions 3, 4, and 5 ever been convicted of a violation of any
law of the United States, or of any state or political

oo
division, other than minor traffic violations, (including reckless 

driving or driving under the influence). Yes□ No (If yes, explain the violation in detail on a separate page, giving 
the date(s), place(s), and crime for which convicted o felonies & misdemeanors), the amount of fines and terms of 
sentence and the court in which convicted). 

14. Do any of the individuals named in answer to question 3, 4 or 5 have any interest whatsoever in any other liquor
establishment, either wholesale or retail, within or outside the state of North Dakota. (include a right of inheritance by
law or by will). Yes□ No[:tl If yes, please explain in detail on a separate page .

., 15. Does anyone other than the Individual or Partnership applying for this alcoholic beverage license or the business
owning the premises have any right, estate, or interest in th

r
ase hold, building, or furniture, fixtures or equipment, in 

the premises for which the license is requested? YesONo (If yes, explain in detail on a separate page, giving the 
names and addresses of any such person(s) and a statemen df their interest in the premises, furniture, fixtures or 
equipment in the premises). 

16. Does the Individual or Partnership applying for this alcoholic beverage license have any agreement, contract,
understanding or intention to have any agreement, contract or understanding, with any person, partnership, or
corporation to obtain for any other person, partnership or corporation, or to transfer to any other person, partnership
or corporation the license for which this application is made or to obtain for any other person, partn

m
ip or 

corporation, for any other purpose other than for the specified use of the applicant. YesO No (if yes, explain 
in detail on a separate page, the name and address of such person, partnership or corporat10n and t nditions of 
agreement, contract or understanding.) 

,; 17. List the occupations and employers of each of the individuals listed in answer to Questions 3, 4 and 5 during the last
ten (10) years. (On a separate sheet of paper if necessary). 

18. Does the Individual or Partnership applying for this license, engage in any business other than that for which the
license is sought or intending to engage in any busine

�
ther than for the sale of alcoholic beverages under the license 

for which this application is made. YesO No (/fyes, explain, in detail on a separate page giving the 
type of business and identification of any and all own r .) 

19. List the names, addresses of at least 3 business references. !Cii.f> ii 6 It"- 11.J{il (J'k ,1L

'1d---so.'v\ 13t<:rfh.R;z.. 0f Sy<:,c�ZZ.5 tz1l/ AIJL�.ll) LCJ'w,(Jl/�y_
LJ.J), 13$3 . ':>�'5"( k/. fvVfr, 5f/02 )71vtj;6 5¥102 '()gt �J� I) FA1"
20. Does the building or structure in which the busine

l�
to be c8nducted meet all applicable state aircrlocal building, 

health and zoning regulations and requirements? Yes NonApplicant must attach certifications of compliance 
from each state and/or local agency or department res o sib'refor building, health and zoning regulations.) 



21. List all the names of individuals who are authorized to make purchases for the business at which the license is to be

used and located. {Note: The individuals must submit their names, current address and social security numbers on the

forms which will protect their rights of privacy, but allow the appropriate police department background checks to be

done. If not attached, the application will be deemed incomplete.)

22. List the names of all individuals who are authorized to sign checks used to pay the payroll and expenses of the

business at which the license is to be used. (Note: These individuals must submit their names, current address and social

security numbers on the forms which will protect their rights of privacy, but allow the appropriate police department
background checks to be done. If not attached, the application will be deemed incomplete.)



STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA ) 

) 55. 
COUNTY OF MORTON ) 

Affidavit of Application Completeness and Accuracy, 
Sworn Statement of Conditionsofiice11sure, 
And Agreement to Right of Entry of City Personnel 

l(We), t!,(?{f..O/?/(J.( V /botJi\.A and ____________ having 
been sworn and under oath, state that I (We) am (are) the named Owner or Partners , of the above named 
business or Partnership which hereby applies for the above referenced alcoholic beverage license in the City of Mandan, 
and I (we) do hereby certify that the above information is true and correct to the best of my (our) knowledge and 
beliefs. 

l(We) do further certify that said Individual or Partnership and employees will abide by the provisions of Chapter 12-01, 
12-02 and 12-03 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances and any amendments thereto, as well as all applicable laws of the
State of North Dakota, and the United States Government and that said Owner/Partners, and its employees will not 
permit the violati6n of any law, rule or regulation on the premises at which the license is authorized. l(we) further 
certify that I (the Partnership) acknowledge that this license will only authorize the retail sale of liquor, including beer, 
wine and other spirits as defined by the North Dakota Century Code, and limited by this application, at the premises
designated in this application and depicted on the attached diagram, 

I (We) do further certify and affirm on behalf of myself or the partnership and its employees that I (the partnership) will 
not sell or permit the sale of alcoholic beverages to a minor, incompetent person, or anyone who is under the influence 
or an habitual drunkard and that I will accept any penalty including, suspension or revocation of license for any violation 
of said prohibited sales. 

I (We) do further certify and affirm that the applicant or Partnership understand and acknowledge that any license 
granted under this application confers not property right to the applicant or licensee, and that said license will not be 
transferable except by specific authority of the Mandan Board of City Commissioners. 

I (We) do further certify and affirm that the applicant (partnership) and its employees do hereby consent to the entry of 
any city official (including administrative, building, zoning health and fire officials) and its police officers upon the 
premises described herein at any hours of the day or night and that they shall have free access to the described 
premises and every part thereof for the purpose of inspecting the premises and the records of this applicant relating to 
the operation of the premises, and purchase and sale of alcoholic beverages. I (We) further certify and a firm that I (the 
partnership), and its employees do hereby waive any and all rights that they may have under the Constitution of the 
United States and the State of North Dakota, relative to searches and seizures without issuance of a search warrant, and 
the Applicant does hereby agree that such immunities shall never be claimed by them, and that such entry, inspection, 
search and seizure maybe made at any time without a search warrant, which waiver of rights is acknowledged to be a 
condition of licensure, 

Dated at Mandan, North Dakota, on this ___ day of _____ � 20 __ . 

Individual or Joint Ownership: 

B
y
: f/rf?IIQ t7)1}t)/U&--

By: ________________ _ 

Partnership: 
By: ________________ _ 

By: ________________ _ 



INDIVIDUAL OR JOINT OWNERSHIP 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

ss. 
COUNTY OF MORTON 

_____________________ .And _____________________ _ 
Being first duly sworn, depose(s) and says that he/she is the individual(s) who executed the foregoing and above 
affidavit of application completeness and accuracy, sworn statement of licensure conditions and agreement of right to 
entry by city personnel, that he/she has read each question and statement contained therein and knows the knows that 
contents thereof to be true and accurate, and that he/she has furnished the answers set forth in said application, and 
that each one of said answers is true to the best of his/her knowledge. 

Dated this _ _.,)_· ")_,__day of __ J.,_...1bw"-'-"'-"'"""'&""-,..,"¾-�' 2o_j_J.. 
ll 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this 

(Notary Seal) 

PARTNERSHIP 

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

COUNTY OF MORTON 

ss. 

�W�e� ___________________ .And _____________________ _ 
Being first duly sworn, depose(s) and says that are the partners in the partnership identified herein, and who have 
executed the foregoing and above affidavit of application completeness and accuracy, sworn statement of licensure 
conditions and agreement of right of entry by city personnel, and that they have read each question and statement 
contained herein and know the contents thereof to be true and accurate, and that they have furnished the answers set 
forth in said application, and that each one of said answers is true to the best of his knowledge. 

Dated this _____ day of _________ � 20 __ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this _____ day of _________ �20 __ . 

(Notary Seal) 
(Notary Stamp) 

'J.'5 day of '~7/ ,20...13...a 

~~ 



I! :15; v o A/ la :rf .!1!_ r j\l{/ M:� SIA U(lf 4 �

200LJ- ?a I I 

::;-01- 59~ ) 0 5 0 



�

!\1 St'x/L.J�vft3
nAr'.tJ fv� 

J to> J?. fiAi't0 31Rt:1----T
h,J/Yh/Jrd1 rv �� 

5j!;cJ) 

CA rfA y" p,v_c:ld y
zi;oo Pt·rAkr; L�� 
st- . ,HA fl\- dAJU . tv D.

'jj55!;_ 



r
'· ... i i , 

~ Ii 

!I' lDj : 
i.Z. .._.,.-: ' 
l/Vb· .µ);> 
I c:21 . 
I • i 

-· :--,•• 1-----
-;---

... , 
j 

i ' 
·---- ;-.. --.. ,.;. . ....,_,, 

_; 

.... ,.,_;,._, ...... 

.. ...... -~ 
.. : 

1--
....... L I ·---·--•-

............... 1, ___ __ ~, 

··----~i . .. ·--~---·--- ..... :. ...... _, __ 

----i, •..• 

....... -L.--f---; ____ '.., __ _ 
--·-·1 

-1 .... :. 

...... :~ 

. L 
l 

i 
·-1 

•· 

! 
! 

i 
··· + 

I 
I 

! 

1 I 
t 1 I 

i 1 : l ' ... !~--1 
1- ·- . : I : i . ·-······ --· -··-· •--- ! • • I ··-~--

i l ·, · . 1 
, i I i· i 

I 

i 
---•'-••--

' I 
! 

---~--~ -·-· ··i-- ___ ....__ ___ . 
i. 

i 
! -· 

.L----·-····· 

• j I 1 · 

·--··+·-- 1····· ! ! •·-··· T . ----·····"· f ·••· I ................. . 

-l · -----------! 
! 

' I 
l i 
:- 1 

; t ! 

- I . +·-·· --.L 

i 
! 
j ' i ----· ..... t· . .. :-···----

! 
i 

t. 

...... 1 .. 

Ii!·-, 
; .. ! 

···· ··-·+---L--.. ···-· 
.. ........ ........ i·--· -•-~ ---

1 • 

l ! 
····;·--! 

j i 
i 

-~ .. ---~: .... ~ .. J ....... L .. . 

t· .... .I. 
! 

........... -·· :- -~--

i 

, - .• I 
- r--··; 

-----~-·-·t"''' 

.... ... 
; 

....... ,:--······ 

; _,. 

! : 
: , 

l 

--,-~•-•·• I 

: ( 
. 1· r 

___ ... l ... _ 
, __ . . I ···:-- ·:· 

- [,._,,,_ __ ,,_.L, 

... ... - ... , ... -. L .... ' ........ ' .. 

·: · ·-

----~-, .... , ..... 

. 1' ... : ... 'f 
; 

···! ·· 

..• i 



/J!f/ /� �� a,U/- ,,X, 

? AR;f 6Z_.:e44,171't,/h" A:-14'>.A/Y'd'{/



:�::,fft�2'.!'\� 

LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 

NORTH DAKOTA OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
LICENSING SECTION 
SFN 17926 (10/2012) 

Type: IR] Local Permit * D Charity Local Permit
Permit Number 
2019-16 

Name of Organization Date(s) Authorized (Read instruction 2) 
Mandan Ffa Alumni 

Contact Person Business Phone Number 3/6/2019 to 6fi/2019 
Michael Bahm (701) 425-7581 Beginning Ending 

Mailing Address City I State Zip Code 
Po Box 635 Mandan ND 58554-0000 

Site Name Site Address 
Prairie West Golf Club 2709 Longspur Trail 

City State I ZIP Code County 
Mandan ND 58554-00( Morton County 

Check the Game(s) Authorized: * Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit. 

D Bingo [K] Raffle D Calendar Raffle D Sports Pool D Poker* O Twenty-one* D Paddlewheels* 

Restriction: 

Requirement: For a "Charity Local Permit," the organization must file a "Report on a Charity Local Permit" with the city or county auditor and Office of 
Attorney General within 30 days of the �nt. 

Date Printed Name of City or County Auditor Auditor Telephone Number 

2/26/2019 

Seu•.-:"!;" :_ .::1fitor □9'fliity Auditor 

� _,,-( -) Lori Flaten (701) 667-3455

Please see the instructions on the backside of this form on h�mplete the Permit. 
For a raffle or calendar raffle, read "Information Required to be Preprinted on a Standard Raffle Ticket" below. 

_____________________ cut along this line _________________________ _

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET: 

1. Name of organization;
2. Ticket number;
3. Price of the ticket, including any discounted price;
4. Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize

that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient
space on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the
total number of minor prizes and their total retail price;

5. For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print
the authorizing city or county and permit number;

6. A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win;
7. Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that

announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the
drawing;

8. Location and street address of the drawing;
9. If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is

or is not liable for sales or use tax;
10. If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least

'_' _" years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize;
11. A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation;
12. If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won

and odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and
13. If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a

cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars.

-

~ ,;;P --

mill
Text Box
Consent No. 5

mill
Text Box



& .... ·�.
(le., g.. ,s) 
, , -4 e i"' / 

APPLICATION FOR A LOCAL PERMIT OR CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 
SFN 9338 (9-2009) 

Application for: D Local Permit *�Charity Local Permit (one event per year) 

Name of Non-profit Organization Date(s) of Activity 

11� rrJJ fl , , Jt;t'{ to J'lMvt 1, d011 
Person Responsible for the Gaming Operation and the Disbursement of Net Income Title Business Phone Number 

Atth ( hrn 

Mailing Address (if different) 

Po � 

.-,rt 

l�S�r-
City 

/f{a✓,•Jd/Vl
City 

fttM'/M/1 
Site Address 

State Zip Code 

AIIJ 6855 
State Zip Code 

A/0 :?85;5t/ 

b � lz>'! '£(/JtH,. Trt!l,f l
State Zip Code County 
A' D 5ffs=Sy /'t,t:rrbra 

Check the Game(s) to be Conducted: * Poker, Twenty-one, and Paddlewheels may be Conducted only by a Charity Local Permit. 
D Bingo � Raffle □Calendar Raffle D Sports Pool D Poker* D Twenty-one* 

DESCRIPTION AND RETAIL VALUE OF PRIZES TO BE AWARDED 

Game Type Description of Prize 
Retail Value of 

Game Type Description of Prize 

Total: 

D Paddlewheels * 

Retail Value of 

Prize 

(Limit $12,000 per year) 

$ t.l�O 

Does the organization presently have a state gaming license? L8) No D Yes - If "Yes," the organization is not eligible for a local permit or charity local 
permit and should call the Office of Attorney General at 1-800-326-9240. 

Has the organization received a charity local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? lif No D Yes - If "Yes," 
the organization does not qualify for a local permit or charity local permit. 

Has the organization received a local permit from this or another city or county for the fiscal year July 1 through June 30? � No D Yes - If ''Yes," 
indicate the total value of all prizes previously awarded:$ _____ . This amount is part of the total prize limit of $12,000 per year.

Business Address 

90·5 



PRIZE RESTRICTIONS: 
'yD I· lQ. �

_:, 

Si Bter--1-

A single cash prize cannot exceed $4,000 and total cash prizes for a raffle cannot exceed $4,000 in one day. U),: l ��.Jk 

The retail value of a merchandise prize cannot exceed $6,000. 

The total of fill cash prizes and retail value of all merchandise prizes for all games cannot exceed $12,000 per year. 

If the value of the planned cash and merchandise prizes exceeds $12,000, the organization must reduce the prizes to this limit or 
apply for a state license with the Office of Attorney General. 

LOCAL PERMIT AND CHARITY LOCAL PERMIT: 

The major differences between a local permit and charity local permit are: 

Local Permit Chari!x Local Permit 

Number of events per year 

Must file an information report 

Limited by prizes 

No 

One 

Yes 

May pay employees compensation 

Must use chips as wagers 

Yes

No

No 

Yes 

Use of net income 
Unrestricted Restricted 

Games allowed 
Bingo Bingo 

Raffles Raffles 
Sports pools Sports pools 

Poker 
Twenty-one 

Paddlewheels 

Compared to a "Local Permit," an organization with a "Charity Local permit" may conduct 3 more game types, but is restricted to 1 event per 
year, must file an information report with the city or county and Office of Attorney General, and disburse net income to eligible uses. These 
uses are described by North Dakota Century Code§ 53-06.1-11.1(2) and North Dakota Administrative Code§ 99-01.3-14-02. Refer to the 
backside of the "Report on a Charity Local Permit" form for a general list of eligible uses. 

For a Charity Local Permit, one method to ensure that the total of all cash prizes and retail value of all merchandise prizes do not exceed 
$12,000 is to charge each player a standard amount at the start of the event for a certain number or value of chips. If a player loses all of the 
player's chips, the player may re-buy chips. The player would play games and, at the end of the event, the organization would auction 
merchandise prizes to the players. The player who bid the highest number or value of chips for a prize would win that prize. For those players 
who have chips but did not successfully bid on a prize, the organization may redeem the chips for a predetermined cash value per chip. For 
this method, the value of the players' chips redeemed for cash is not a prize. 

INFORMATION REQUIRED TO BE PREPRINTED ON A STANDARD RAFFLE TICKET: 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4 .  

5. 

6. 
7. 

8. 
9. 

10. 

11. 
12. 

13. 

Name of organization; 
Ticket number; 
Price of the ticket, including any discounted price; 
Prize, description of an optional prize selectable by a winning player, or option to convert a merchandise prize to a cash prize 
that is limited to the lesser of the value of the merchandise prize or four thousand dollars. However, if there is insufficient space 
on a ticket to list each minor prize that has a retail price not exceeding twenty dollars, an organization may state the total 
number of minor prizes and their total retail price; 
For a licensed organization, print "office of attorney general" and license number. For an organization that has a permit, print 
the authorizing city or county and permit number; 
A statement that a person is or is not required to be present at a drawing to win; 
Date and time of the drawing or drawings and, if the winning player is to be announced later, date and time of that 
announcement. For a calendar raffle, if the drawings are on a same day of the week or month, print the day and time of the 
drawing; 
Location and street address of the drawing; 
If a merchandise prize requires a title transfer involving the department of transportation, a statement that a winning player is or 
is not liable for sales or use tax; 
If a purchase of a ticket or winning prize is restricted to a person of minimum age, a statement that a person must be at least 
" " years of age to buy a ticket, or win a prize; 
A statement that a purchase of the ticket is not a charitable donation; 
If a secondary prize is an unguaranteed cash or merchandise prize, a statement that the prize is not guaranteed to be won and 
odds of winning the prize based on numbers of chances; and '''.. · 

If a prize is live beef or dairy cattle, horse, bison, sheep or pig, a statement that the winning player may convert the prize to a 
cash prize that is limited to the lesser of the market value of the animal or four thousand dollars. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To consider a Mandan Growth Fund (MGF) Committee 
recommendation for approval of a Storefront Improvement application for 1710 E Main 
St.  

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The MGF met Feb. 25, 2019. Among agenda items 
was consideration of an application by Jason Hageness for matching funds towards 
exterior improvements to the building at 1710 E Main St, the former United Printing 
building. The applicant is remodeling the entire building and is seeking a $60,000 match 
for the exterior renovation that has an estimated cost of $231,325. 

Exterior improvements are to include new materials on all sides of the building. The 
south and east sides will have new storefront windows added and new doors with fiber 
cement siding and metal awnings on each entry. This siding will have a mixture of flush 
panels and veneer stone style. Automatic doors, landscaping and signage will be in 
addition to this amount. Hageness shared that he is also investing an additional $22,000 
to remove a MDU power pole and bury the lines in the area in front of the building. 

Other building improvements will include a new roof and complete interior renovation. 
The applicant plans to renovate the building for professional services office use with 
room for one to 8 tenants. Target completion is this summer. 

The exterior building and site plans have received approval from the Mandan 
Architectural Review Commission.  

The applicant is applying for a $60,000 match. The traditional match is $30,000 for a 
building, but there is a provision in the Storefront Improvement program guidelines that 
allows for up to $60,000 for larger or multi-story buildings. This building is 14,000 sf 
with three sides visible from E Main Street and the I-94 business loop. 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 26, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communication Director 
SUBJECT: MGF Storefront Improvement application for 

1710 E Main St.  

New Business No. 1i 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Storefront Improvement application for 1710 E Main St 
Page 2 of 7 

ATTACHMENTS: Key excerpts of application. Full application available upon request. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The source of funding would be the MGF unallocated balance for 
economic development projects as a whole, an amount of $295,168.74 as of Jan. 31, 
2019. If this application is approved, the uncommitted balance would be reduced to 
$235,168.74.   

STAFF IMPACT: Minimal for application processing and finalization. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Attorney Brown has reviewed the application. Automatic doors are to 
be included in the project scope for each business space. A business incentive agreement 
will also be required.  

RECOMMENDATION: The MGF voted 8-0 (with 1 member absent) to recommend 
approval of the application for $60,000 in matching funds for the Storefront Improvement 
project by Jason Hageness for 1710 E Main St. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve providing $60,000 in matching funds from 
the Mandan Growth Fund for the Storefront Improvement project by Jason Hageness for 
1710 E Main Street.  



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Storefront Improvement application for 1710 E Main St 
Page 3 of 7 

Existing Building 



B
oard of C

ity C
om

m
issioners 

A
genda D

ocum
entation 

M
eeting D

ate: M
arch 5, 2019 

Subject: Storefront Im
provem

ent application for 1710 E M
ain St 

Page 4 of 7 

I 

~ '-.L-¥ LJ.......J _ _ L_L_I __ J I , _ '===-----~

i. 1111 11 

'--. , l§EXlSTIHGrutLS 
1&:fli;]_ '--.. REMO'/EPO\\ERFOlE @,);~-f7s:; 3.J:itt~:.:!iiw,asRJ;QUIREO 

'REI.J)~~~ 

0 ~~!~~~ion Site Plan 

Preliminary - Not for Construction 

Ell.lSTIIG IJGt1I POl.f '\ISIIFYtQ;PST.-11.LS __ • 

SllE INFORIIA 110N 

Zllll~:CA 
LOTSIZ.E: l~S!SSI' 
8'JILIJIMCSltt:14M1Sf 

OffS'!'tlEET P-G: 
•11.ESlAUIWIT; I Sl'AC!PERUEATS 
• IIEDICAL Cllllc.1 P£R DOCTOR • 1 FOIi. 
EAC/12 EMPLOYEES 
•Ti£'1Alt: 1 PER<IOO SF 
•OFflce: 1 !'i!l400 Sf 
• BILLIAIID5 (Pl.A~ OF PIIBUC ASSEELY • 
Wllll"I)< 1 PEUua SF 
• CH(Jl!Clj 11'1.ACE OF PilellC 1'8Sflel Y • 
\/ElllfY], 1 PER400 Sf 

NE\0/1.00SCN'IMG/<S ~ ReD 

E)Q$11NS P0WERPQI.E 

EXIS11:NGFlREHYOAANT 

IAOVS EXIS'rl~ PAAJ<ING STRIPING 
EAST FOR SIDE'/1.IUl ALOt«3 81,JLIJll,(l 

"10'/E E)(l$TING PAA~ING STRIPING 
SOOTll FOR TAAS!i ENCLOSl.f!E 

PO'i\B! 
POU: I 

studio 
~~~:i~a~ 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Storefront Improvement application for 1710 E Main St 
Page 5 of 7 

0 ~ CORNER 

0 ~ UTHSIDE 

P reliminary - Not for Construction 

0 ;!:STSIDE 

NEW MET Ai 1//Ail.PAIEL AT WEST & NOl'<THSl>ES 

0 ~ CORNER ID 
studio 
;.::--.:~ 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Storefront Improvement application for 1710 E Main St 
Page 6 of 7 

(71}1) 25S~l652 

e· w11 pr.o all Eqlll!pmerrn, Ma @rial a II tailor ,1! ll~t.!d for tll,e 1t.or-t1frc ~ remode4'ns om lhE 
lilui! t'!Jli licated at 1710 East M In Street ~ Mi"d:,m. 

l . W wlll rm:rn:ii.i1t tlw '(i~de, rod! il«mrs, Wi,go pla11kl11i, ~1$tin1111,lndow~ ,a!MI do,Q(s ,11m the 
South and Ea sides-only, i!;l)O to y,4alJ, Ql'I rea,t wlll r,Hd 11dld· lGn.1 dewil NI 1u~d pos~i= i;;nGkel: 
f,~amlng. 

2.. We wlli cu11. ,Iii d remove 2,• of .i~i,h~lt lln ~l'ie $QJJtn ill.j'ld uuld11 ror access. to t:01,11,idatlon w ll. 

Sita lttms: 
l , We will 1;1,1,1 arid: remove 2' Qt 1J,phillt on th"e South ,md 1Eut stoe ror acces$ to foundation wall, 

Sri~ I dB I m lt~d i ,t:both !Sid'e~ cf the aluminum ~nttances ta proill!ct and sup on protrud 11B 
v,iallfin~h ;. 

2. No :a5phalt or tt>cncrete Piltclilnri: at t rs time. 

mrntnLII1!111...lac!uded: 
JI.+ Sovthi i11d East exterior w.ill!i will 1:,e, framed u~n,s 18 ,Biuge $'!eel, studs. - ,6" at all walls: th at will 

1:1 e,v,en with t e ste.el ne-atMi 10• st""d'<S at p rot~'ed1 !tarerrOJ'it @nitr.nu:e .ireas; 3·S/8'" miming 
above tln;t! tcof = Assuml1111 no me.ar w:a Is required. 

;t., framed openine, for ll!e al1.nnrnlfm sroreflOllts \llir1 bl!! wood bt1cll;ed, 
3, The walls wlO ha\/1! R-19 fibnslass ln-su 1n10n w~1 ,1 6 ma poly 1111 pG1t 'biirrler. 
•, The ext'el'ior wl II be sheathed wilt Iii ~,r 01!'1'1$ila55 af\dl QCl.ltfFtd with f;rb:rk \llf!llth r bilrtler. ~o 

Interior filniYi~ fli:U r@d t thl:s tlm11,. 

&f!rfor FlnM,ut 
1. New m m r111 on t e [11\it !Ind se11iJ'i Sides Will b~ fini:stl~' 1Qin11 Nlcilln;i CC11'1'1Pt:1~lh1· p11"eb w 

,mitd'l :prel"mlnary plan~ i:l ls.c1111Sed• Wit~ >:! .StudloJ. odem -B~ lx,o, Mi<itiru-v - Cmtl'~ttllod, 
,0ImeniSl0!'1 = Gurumo'kle. 

2. The eo,rancl!s:wJ~ haYt 2."JCS"' tramed um n~m - p.er,oli• type ~ nln11p 01 11~ng l' ff(lm th!!: 
wafl; the ,main entr,1trtce piir.ipet Will also illia'!!!' an alumll'ILlffl topp11r at !,m~ar canmvc;t11>n. e 
awlilll\115 wtll er\ irtJYJ a .sp'lid' pan; tl'ley wtU il'ltow Wlil~J 11ntl 5n ow tQ pi!!j5 (hrough-, 

0011, and 'f\l'!ndo@ 
Akl:m mJm i~refronu 111d d:CD!fS pe.r p.reclimlnaf\l plans l:ly J2 St1:1d1QS. Thi!' m1in door !)fl !:ti ll' 
So\:!01 Wiitl tfi.n~m ;ibove includes an WltQn1ill1~ u~ner. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Storefront Improvement application for 1710 E Main St 
Page 7 of 7 

Option l ~ 
Add 'lor • ch ddltioMI ;auti,mai c d1;1or apent11r (ef~k:ial hoo--p nat nttili · ed[; 511115,0l'I 

hi;!!!?~ di B~- -=------

11,·1ursn : 
L IE\llli.t,11Uoii o.f wie P°l\fltil b'uUd 1111. for aUarwabJi!: wal remov,al1 ar ;iddJiiari•l ID.dings, 
z. Anv e ,:kl!le~,t g, l'f!q lri ·cf. 
]. AA\l :sl141ise 1-etjUlred, 

Tel'll'ipi;! ,;iry UIJ lty ch ll'!L 

s. Any ir ms 1nQt 1st d in l,1'1QQQ5ill by olher~ 

l, Qooti!, 111, 1 ood ·for 30 diiV 
2. A b.a11k le ter of gml, iS:N!Cl!J r d rcr-cn1r«ifi\tract amoul)t, 
a. W,e-will bQI by,ttie end t)fear;;lil me th fo, flli'l;Jtefia!I dl!!~\it!~rd ~ labar perfarmll!d. 
~- ,payJiPen'~ ate dUI!! by ,~ 1o'1' cflhe fallowln mon h . 
. s, Acl· l/l(i(.pe,r lmon1h ,n;u, e wUI be-added !(I, illllY li!lll)llld baJanc -. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider the Mandan Growth Fund (MGF) Committee’s 
recommendation for an application by Balancing Goat Coffee Company for a five-year 
rebate of the 1% local sales tax. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The MGF met on Feb. 25, 2019. Among agenda 
items was consideration of the above application. Partners in this new independent 
business are Dawn Hager and Karen Schmidt. They plan to lease a 3,000 sf space at 2705 
Sunset Drive, a new multi-tenant building under construction. The space will include a 
2,500 sf coffee shop/café and a 500 sf studio for yoga and other fitness classes. 

The menu will include a variety of coffee drinks to be made with beans roasted on site 
plus smoothies made with fresh fruit, smoothie bowls, sandwiches, salads, baked goods, 
as well as healthy grab and go snacks and meals. 

Both Hager and Schmidt have held management positions in their careers and have taken 
coffee roasting classes. Hager brings hands-on coffee shop management and baking 
experience, too.  

They plan to be open six days a week from 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. with a possibility of 
additional hours depending on demand. The restaurant will seat 30 people, plus it will 
have a drive-thru. They project about $665,000 in annual restaurant sales. They anticipate 
having two full-time employees and 10-12 part-time employees. They will contract with 
instructors to teach in the fitness studio on a per class basis. 

Construction of the building and the interior build-out is expected to be complete by mid-
summer to allow for opening in August. 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 26, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
SUBJECT: Restaurant Rewards Application by Balancing 

Goat Coffee Co. 

New Business No. 1ii 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Restaurant Rewards application for Balancing Goat Coffee Co. 
Page 2 of 5 

The partners are also seeking approval for the remaining $1,144.76 in the Restaurant 
Rewards Program to assist with an interest buydown (see New Business 1iii). 

ATTACHMENTS:  Full application available upon request.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  Sales are estimated at $664,764 annually, putting the projected rebate 
at $6,647 per year or $33,235 over five years. The rebate amount will ultimately depend 
on actual sales and sales tax remittances. 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal for application processing and finalization.  

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed the application. Additional 
requirements include installation of an automatic door, plus completion of a recipient 
agreement, business incentive agreement, and the N.D. Tax Department’s Form 500 to 
allow for disclosure of sales tax collections.  

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee voted (8-0 with 1 
absent) to recommend the approval of the application by Balancing Goat Coffee 
Company for a Restaurant Rewards rebate of the 1% local sales tax in the first five years 
of operation. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the application by Balancing Goat Coffee 
Company for a Restaurant Rewards rebate of the 1% local sales tax in the first five years 
of operation. 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Restaurant Rewards application for Balancing Goat Coffee Co. 
Page 3 of 5 

RESTAURANT REWARDS INCENTIVE PROGRAM 
1 % Local Sales Tax Rebate & Interest Buy-Down 

Application & Checklist 

PRIMARY CONTACT INFORMATION FOR THIS APPLICATION 

Name: Karen Schmidt 

nue: owner 

Address: 3605 Highway 1806 - Mandan ND 58554 

Phone: 701-214-2284 I E-maH: lschmidtk6@bis.midco.net 

Form of Assistance Sought 1% Sales Tax Rebate 
Flex Pace Interest Buy-down [requires additional appllcaUon) 

APPLICANT INFORMATION 
Name of person or 

entity to receive Balancing Goat Coffee Company rebate: 
State Sales Tax --- -

Number. \ • - ·- . - • ··J 

Federal Employer r ... --- -
ldentlflcalion Number. ~L.. - - • ~- . 

Restaurant D Corporate I D Franchise I I ndepe nden t Ownershlp/Affiliatlon: 
Project Principals: 

Name Karen Schmidt %50 tit a004icablel Name % 

Name Dawn Hager % 50 Name % 

Name % Name % 
Are you applying for 

Yes (please Indicate programs) any other local • No Lewis & Clark Development Group incenllves? 

RESTAURANT INFORMATION 
Levels or Service: U Full-Service ltuble 11c10..,rv1ce1 11 Counter service only D Limited Service (Ot'der wl c..,,.e,. looa Drlve-thru (must nave awomo, ... aung 

-~ht to tables) to bo"'"""'AI 
Restaurant Concept: U Fast Food LJ Fast Casual ucare 

Ill Coffee Shop (at teast D Pub or Bar/Grill (at D Buffet 
50% ol es must a,me from lout 50% or sales m1Jst come 
oreoared IOOd I frcm n,,.,,,.,ed loodl 
U Fine Dining UOther~,.•""'"'"i 

Menu: Altach document and/or desaibe here: coffee, smoothies. tees, brea~ta,it & lundl graD a go /Pnmary Foods Sor,,ool 
Do you have or in lend D Yes, I have a license - please specify type: 

to apply ror a liquor 
1 ptan to apply for a license - please specify type: beer and wine license? 

0 No, I do not plan to serve alcohol. 

Hours of Ope ration: 
s~-

M: Tu: w Th: F Sa 
6 am- 6 am • 6 am- 6 ilffl· 6 am • 6 am -

6 pm 6 pm 6 pm 6 pm 6 pm 6 pm 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Restaurant Rewards application for Balancing Goat Coffee Co. 
Page 4 of 5 

LOCATION INFORMATION 
Address of New or 

2705 Sunset Dr, Mandan ND 58554 E~pandlno Restaurant 
Property Control - • owned • Leased D Other ltll""se el(plilJ11) 

Land: Tenn of Lease 
Property Control - UOWned [!!II Leased • Other (PIUH expll!,nl 

Buildlno: TennofLease 5uH 
Building SiluaUon: LJ~isUng 0 Addition " Ill New Construction 

Building Square Existing Addition New Construction 
Footaae: 5,500 

New Construction 
SeatinQ Caoacilv: Existlna Addition 30 

Building Improvements: (Cost & Oescriptlonl 

Prolected Ooen1no Date: August 2019 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
Number or Jobs 

Full•Tlme 2 Part-Time 10-12 Created: 
Estimated Annual 

$664,764 Sales: 
For""""1"11 "'""""""ts- Year Sales S Amount Year Sales $ Amount 
Last 2 Years of Retall 

Sales: Year Sales S Amount Year Sales $ Amount 
AIIBch """"" of ules ta~ 

w omiulon•. 
Estimated daily 240 customer traffic: 

Other Business & Applicant Information 

Please submit as many of the following Items as possible in order for the City of Mandan Growth Fund 
Committee and City Commission to make an appropriate decision on an application: 

•[Option lo buy agreement for a building or letter of lntent to lease contingent on receipt of incentives 
Business plan for new businesses or first-time (estaurant operators 

(}'],-Certificate of Good Standing from N.D. Tax Department 
fi1f Proof of registration with N, D. Secretary of State 

Additional Information or documentation may be requested if deemed necessary, 

Be advised as per North Dakota open records !aw that applications may be released to the public If 
requested except for portions subject to NDCC 44-04-18.4 pertaining to confidentiality of trade secret, 
proprietary, commercial , and financial information. 

2 - Restaurant Rewards APpllcatlon - Form Approved 04-19-16 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Restaurant Rewards application for Balancing Goat Coffee Co. 
Page 5 of 5 

Certification and Authorization 

I I We certify that all information set forth In this appllcallon Is a true representation of the facts pertafnlng 
to the proposed business for the purpose of obtaining funding under the City of Mandan Restaurant 
Incentive Program. I / We understand and acknowledge that any willful misrepresentation of the 
information contained in this application could result In disqualification from the program, requiring any 
funds already disbursed to be repaid in full to the City of Mandan. 

The undersigned specifically authorizes the City of Mandan Business Development Office or its 
representatives to conduct a background check on the applicant. including the checking of references 
and the verification of any information on the application. 

I understand that personal and/or business information may be requested pursuant to this applicant for 
an incentive and I hereby give my consent for such information to be provided to the City of Mandan 
Business Development Office, the Mandan Growth Fund Committee or its representatives. I also 
understand that the Mandan Growth Fund Committee and the Mandan City Commission retain the 
decision as to whether this incentive application is approved, disapproved, or modified . II is my right to 
accept or decline the 1ncentil1e amount and terms approved by the program . 

The applicant further certifies that he/she has read and understands the City of Mandan Restaurant 
Incentive Program Guidelines. The applicant must comply with all local, state and federal regulatlons. It 
is understood that all funding commitments are contingent upon the availability of program funds. 

Release of lnfonmatlon 
The applicant hereby authorizes any third party to release to the City of Mandan Business Development 
Office without limit, any and all financial information regarding the applicant that ls requested by the City 
o( Mandan Business Development Office, its representatives or employees. Further, the applicant hereby 
authorizes release of said records and information by the City of Mandan Business Development Office 
to a third party. as deemed necessary by the City of Mandan Business Development Office, its 
representatives or employees. 

All owners, officers or partners must sign this application. 

Slgnature(s): 

Applicant/Business Owner: .p~::...:::t.£!....!..i.,,...t_.i:.aLl.=..=:l..-. Date: _i._._l '-13'--'-)_l_q"-----

Submit application form and all supporting documents to: 

City of Mandan 
Business Development Office 
205 Second Avenue NW 
Mandan, ND 58554 
Website: www.cityofmandan.com/bus1nessdevelopmen1 
E-mail : ehuber@cityofmandan,com 

For more information, call City of Mandan Business Development Office; phone 701-667-3485. 

3- Restauranl Rewards Application - Form Approved 04-19-16 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider the Mandan Growth Fund (MGF) Committee’s 
recommendation for an application by Balancing Goat Coffee Company for partial 
funding toward a Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE interest buydown. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: At a meeting on Feb. 25, 2019, the MGF reviewed 
the application for an interest buydown of financing using the Bank of North Dakota 
(BND) Flex PACE program for Balancing Goat Coffee Company. The purpose of the 
loan is for lease-hold improvements and equipment for a new coffee shop and café 
combined with a fitness studio at 2705 Sunset Drive, Mandan. 

The applicants are seeking the remaining $1,144.76 from the original $162,000 set aside 
for use toward the community match for a BND interest buydown.  

The total project cost is estimated at $425,000. The applicants are seeking to finance 
$340,000 of the costs and have a financing commitment from BNC National Bank. By 
participating in the BND Flex PACE program, the borrowers can benefit from a reduction 
in the interest rate from 6 percent to 1 percent for 36 months. BND will provide 65 
percent of the buydown, or $24,720. The required local community match is 35 percent or 
$13,311. The Lewis and Clark Development Group, which manages revolving loan funds 
specific to Mandan, has approved providing the difference between any amount approved 
by the City of Mandan and the required local match. 

The partners are also seeking approval of the Restaurant Rewards sales tax rebate (see 
New Business 1ii). 

ATTACHMENTS:  Application available upon request.  

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 26, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
SUBJECT: Restaurant Rewards Application by Balancing 

Goat Coffee Co. 

New Business No. 1iii 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Flex PACE application for Balancing Goat Coffee Co. 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  The original allocation in the Growth Fund for the Restaurant 
Rewards Program interest buydowns was $162,000. The uncommitted balance currently 
stands at $1,144.76. 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal for application processing and finalization.  

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Brown has reviewed the application.  

RECOMMENDATION:  The Mandan Growth Fund Committee voted (8-0 with 1 
absent) to recommend the approval of the application by Balancing Goat Coffee 
Company for $1,144.76 toward the local share of an interest buydown. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve the application by Balancing Goat Coffee 
Company for $1,144.76 toward the local share of an interest buydown. 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider a recommendation by the Mandan Growth Fund 
(MGF) Committee to sunset the Restaurant Rewards program that provides a sales tax 
rebate to new and expanding restaurants. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  The MGF met to discuss the future of the program 
on Feb. 25, 2019. The program was first approved by the City Commission on April 5, 
2016. The program was established for an initial one-year period with a deadline for 
application approval of March 31, 2017. The Commission on March 21, 2017 and Feb. 6, 
2018, approved renewal of the program for additional one-year periods with the last 
extension effective through March 31, 2019 

The program provides incentives for new and expanding restaurants with two 
components: 

1. A rebate of the 1 percent local sales tax for five years. This component is
performance-based, so the more successful the restaurant, the higher the rebate
can be.

2. A set aside of $162,000 in the Growth Fund for forgivable loans to provide the
local match for a Bank of North Dakota Flex PACE interest buy-down. The
program helps reduce the interest rate for financing of community development
projects to as little as 1 percent. Funding for the interest buy-downs has been
encumbered on a first-come, first-served basis.

If the application on the Commission’s agenda for this meeting is approved, there will be 
nine restaurants approved for the program since 2016 and all of the funds set aside for 
interest buydowns will be committed. 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 26, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
SUBJECT: MGF Recommendation for Expiration of the 

Restaurant Rewards Program 

New Business No. 1iv 

CITY DP 
MAKDAX 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject:  MGF Restaurant Rewards Extension 
Page 2 of 4 

Following is a summary of restaurants that have applied for or been approved to date: 

Restaurant Rewards Program - Summary

 Annual   Annual  

 MGF   Commission   Sales   Rebate  Interest 

Business Name Address Rec Approval  Estimate   Estimate   Buydown   Status  

1 Pit Masters LLC  4524 Memorial Hwy 8/11/2016 8/16/2016 $1,300,000 $13,000  $  37,142.16   open  

(dba Dickey's Barbecue Pit) Jun-17 

2 Taylor Made BBQ LLC 316 W Main St 9/14/2016 9/20/2016 $240,000 $2,400 no open 

Dec-16 

3 Carisch Inc 2640 Overlook Ln 6/27/2017 7/11/2017 $1,100,000 $11,000 no open 

(dba Arby's) 11/14/2017 

4 Harvest Catering & Events LLC 401 W Main St 8/10/2017 8/15/2017 $660,000 $6,600 no open 

(dba Mandan Depot Bier Hall) 2/16/2018 

Auto door pending 

5 Mandan Bennigan's Inc. 1506 27th St NW 11/17/2017 11/21/2017 $2,400,000 $24,000 $53,846.00 
proof of financing 

received 

open 8/20/18 

6 The Shoults Express LLC 4524 Memorial Hwy 12/11/2017 12/19/2017 $1,000,000 $10,000 $16,021.08 open 

(dba Grand Junction Grilled Subs) 3/6/2018 

7 W & G Investments Co., Ltd 1704 E Main Street 1/26/2018 2/6/2018 $2,000,000 $20,000 
proof of financing 

in 90 days 

(dba Culver's) By May 7, 2018 

SHG, LLC - real estate $53,846.00 open 9/10/18 

8 Old Ten Bar & Grill 417 E Main St 11/15/2018 11/20/2018 $1,200,000  $12,000 no (via LCDG) 
expect to open by 

June 1 

9 Balancing Goat Coffee Co. 2705 Sunset Dr 2/25/2019 $664,764  $6,647 $1,144.76 

GRAND TOTAL $87,000  $162,000.00  

Balance remaining  $             -



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject:  MGF Restaurant Rewards Extension 
Page 3 of 4 

All types of restaurants have been eligible for the program, but an initial goal was to 
attract at least full-service, sit-down casual dining establishments. There was also a desire 
to see restaurant growth in each of the city’s three major business districts: Main 
Street/downtown, north Mandan/I-94 corridor, and Memorial Highway/east Mandan.  
These goals are largely accomplished.  

Retail leakage and surplus reports for 2018 and 2019 from Environics still show a 
significant gap between demand or expenditures that originate in Morton County as 
compared to the supply or sales by restaurants in the county. However, a couple of the 
new restaurants only opened in the last half of 2018, so there’s likely a lag in the 
numbers. 

There have been some setbacks in the Mandan’s restaurant sector in recent years (the 
closure of Bar M Steakhouse and Bonanza, Pizza Hut’s change to takeout and delivery 
only, and the transition of the Harvest from a restaurant to an event and catering space). 
Nonetheless, collections of the 1% restaurant and lodging tax indicate steady year over 
year growth over the last decade with 2018 revenues being up 5%. When hotel tax 
revenues are considered in isolation, it’s apparent that the growth is from the restaurant 
sector. 

ATTACHMENTS:   1) 1% restaurant & lodging tax revenue graph, 2) 2% hotel 
occupancy tax revenue graph. Note: The Restaurant Rewards program overview and 
application available at www.cityofmandan.com/restaurantrewards or by request. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Restaurants approved for the program through March 31, 2019, will 
continue to receive five-year sales tax  rebates as long as they remain compliant with all 
program requirements.  

STAFF IMPACT:  Staff time is required to market the program, process applications, 
secure agreements with approved restaurants, and administer the provision of rebates. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Attorney Malcolm Brown has reviewed all information and was in 
attendance at the MGF meetings where expiration of the restaurant incentive was 
discussed. 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  The MGF voted unanimously (8-0 with one member absent) 
to recommend a sunset of the Restaurant Rewards program sales tax rebate effective 
March 31, 2019.  

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve a sunset of the Restaurant Rewards program 
sales tax rebate effective March 31, 2019.  

http://www.cityofmandan.com/restaurantrewards


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject:  MGF Restaurant Rewards Extension 
Page 4 of 4 

:ssoo,oao, 

$400,000 

$300,000 

$200,000 

$100,000 

$0 

1°/o Restaurant & Lodging Tax 
Col lec:tions 

$485, 156, up 5% from pnor year, 

~OJ, ..._c:) ,..._ ... ~ .... ~..,...,,,.. ... ~~ .~ ~ 
~ '61 ~ ,...~ rf ~. '\,r::i '\,~ "I,~ '\,~ 

2% Hotel Occupancy 
Tax Collections 

S62, 690 in .2018, down 12 .5% from prior ye t' 
$80,000, 

$,40,000 

$20,000 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider an appointment for representation of Mandan on 
the N.D. Opportunity Fund (NDOF) loan committee. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: The NDOF leverages private financing to help 
small businesses attain loans and investments needed to expand and create jobs. Mandan 
is part of a consortium of 38 North Dakota municipalities that received funding for the 
loan participation program through the U.S. Treasury Department’s State Small Business 
Credit Initiative in 2012. The Lewis and Clark Development Group manages the fund and 
processes all loan applications. 

The North Dakota Opportunity Fund’s 15-person loan committee is comprised of 
members experienced in commercial lending, business start-up and expansion, and 
economic development. The committee makes all credit decisions to include considering 
and voting on applications for loans with input on rates, terms and conditions. Committee 
meetings are typically held via conference call, generally once to twice a month as needed 
to consider applications in a timely manner. Mandan is allotted one appointment or vote. 
Appointments are generally for two years or until filled. A quorum of loan committee 
members is necessary, so the expectation is for the appointee to participate in at least 50 
percent of meetings with an alternate appointee filling in as needed.  

I sent an email on Feb. 15, 2019, to market presidents and branch managers of all 
financial institutions with Mandan locations to alert them that we were seeking volunteers 
experienced in commercial lending to represent Mandan on the loan committee. Three 
people expressed interest by the Feb. 26 deadline. They are Jason Arenz of BNC National 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 26, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Business Development & Communications 

Department 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
PRESENTER: Ellen Huber, Business Development & 

Communications Director 
SUBJECT: N.D. Opportunity Fund Loan Committee

Appointment

New Business No. 2 

CITY DP 
MAKDAX 
"WHERE THE WEST BEGINS" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject:  NDOF Appointment 
Page 2 of 5 

Bank; Greg Ellwein of Gate City Bank (Bismarck branch); and Jeff Erickson, Security 
First Bank. 

ATTACHMENTS:   Letters of interest. 

Learn more about the NDOF at https://lcdgroup.org/business-loans. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  City of Mandan Business Development and Communications Director 
Ellen Huber continues to represent Mandan on the NDOF steering committee, elected 
chair again for 2019, and can continue to serve as an alternate on the NDOF loan 
committee for meetings if the appointee and alternates are not available. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  n/a 

RECOMMENDATIONS:  I recommend the appointment of Jason Arenz to the N.D. 
Opportunity Fund loan committee with the designation of Jeff Erickson and Greg Ellwein 
as alternates, all for terms beginning immediately and ending Dec. 31, 2020, or until 
filled. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to appoint Jason Arenz to the N.D. Opportunity Fund 
loan committee with the designation of Jeff Erickson and Greg Ellwein as alternates, all 
for terms beginning immediately and ending Dec. 31, 2020, or until filled. 

https://lcdgroup.org/business-loans


Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject:  NDOF Appointment 
Page 3 of 5 

2711 Sunset Oriv~ NW Mandan. NO 58554 'V\"v.bncbank.com Telephone, (701) 663-5448 

February 21, 2019 

This letter is to represent my interest in becoming a committee member for the North Dakota 
Opportunity Fund (NDOF) loan committee. 

I currently serve as the Bismarck Mandan President for BNC National Bank and office out of the 
BNC Branch in Mandan where I work and have lived for a good portion of my life. I have been 
in Commercial Banking for the past 19 years and my wife and I own "Once Upon A Child" a 
Franchised gently used baby clothing/furniture store which we have owned and operated for 
the past 15 years. 

With my industry experience, business ownership, and a strong desire to make Mandan into a 
City that we all know it is capable of being, I believe that I am a qualified candidate for the 
appointment. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to give me a call at (701) 667-8880. 

Sinc;J,_ly, / ;: • _ 

Ji~::t ~ 
Bismarck Mandan President 

Member FDIC 
@ __ .., 
""'" 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject:  NDOF Appointment 
Page 4 of 5 

® Gate City Bank 
For a Better Way of Life.® 

P.O. Box2847 • Fargo, N058108-2847 

February 20, 2019 

Ellen Huber 

City of Mandan Business Development and Communications Director 
205 Second Ave. NW 
Mandan, ND 58554 

Dear Ellen: 

I would like this letter to serve as my interest for the appointment in the North Dakota Opportunity 
Fund loan committee. I would be able to meet the requi rements of the Committee Meetings via 
conference call, as well as attending more t han 50% of the meetings fo r said committee. 

My qualifications for this role would include: I have been with Gate City Bank in the Mandan and 
Bismarck communities for the past twenty-two years. Five of those yea rs was as the Manager of our 
Mandan location. I have very fond memories of working with many business people and residents of 
Mandan. I have a very broad range of expert ise as I served in a Management capac ity fo r sixteen years 
and have been a Business Banker at our Downtown location for the past three yea rs. This position has 
allowed me to become very versatile in the knowledge and understanding of the needs in commercial 
lending, business start-ups and expansion, and economic development . I am fluent with commercial 
rates, terms and conditions, as well as supplementary programs that wou ld be avai lab le for businesses. 
I feel that I am experienced and well versed in many areas of business lending. 

I have always been engaged with the local communit ies in volunteer efforts, various Boards, and have 
served in many leadership organizations with the communities. I take a great deal of pride in business 
and economic development and would love to be involved in a role that cou ld assist in that growth in 
the Mandan community. With my vast experience in management and lending, I would be a strong 
candidate for this committee, and I would be honored to be part of the loan committee for the North 
Dakota Opportunity Fund. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional Information , 

Sincere , 

~Ellwein 
Business Banker, Vice President 
Gate City Bank 

701-293-2400 • 800-423·3344 • gateclty.bank 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject:  NDOF Appointment 
Page 5 of 5 

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Dear Ellen, 

Jeff Edckson 
Ellen Huber 

Letters of [nterest for Appointment to NDOF Loan Committee 

Tuesday, February 26, 2019 3:37:07 PM 

I wish to volunteer as the City of Mandan 's representat ive to the North Dakota Opporttinity 
Fund (NDOF) loan commjttee_ 1 have been a commercial and agricultural loan officer for the 
past 30 years. I am currently employed as Vice President of Commercial Lending for Security 
First Bank of~ orth Dakota in their Mandan location_ This year marks my 15-year 
employment rumjversary_ My family and I moved to Mandan in 2001 (J 8 years ago) . We 
have enjoyed Mandan's small town feel along with the amenities associated with a larger city. 

T strongly support local and regional economic development programs_ As a lender, T have 
utilized many of these programs and hav1; witnessed the posi tive impact it has on our 
customers and the overall business community_ 1 have also actively served on many 
economic development boards and committees. I am currently a Conu.ruttee member for the 
Mandan Growth Fund and have served on the committee for nearly 9 years. I also serve on 
the Mandan Progress Organization's Board of Directors and its executive committee. I am 
now the lmmediate Past President but have held the office of Treasurer and President. 

I would be honored to serve as your representative to the NDOF loan committee. Thank you 
for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 
Jeff Erickson 

Vice President Commercial Lending 

614 West Main Street 
Mandan, ND 58554 

jf>ff@securityfirstbank com 
Direct line: 701 355 5977 
Mandan off ice: 701-667-7000 
Mandan Fax: 701-663~1711 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  To consider approval of the concurrence of award for the 
project as requested by the NDDOT. The project would be primarily on the I-94 and I-194 
interstate roadways. However, some of the improvements would take place on Highway 
810, which is the segment known as Expressway that is south of Memorial Highway to 
the Expressway bridge. This Highway 810 segment is part of the arterial roadway system 
in which the city has 10% funding participation responsibility, therefore the need for the 
city to indicate concurrence of award to show our commitment to the funding share. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: At the January 22nd City Commission meeting, 
commission approved of the Cost Participation and Maintenance (CPM) agreement which 
also indicated our commitment to the funding share. That agreement was pre-bid and 
came with an estimate associated with the final design. That estimate reflected our local 
share at $101,210. The estimate last summer when we budgeted our local share was for 
an amount of $35,056. Therefore, the January 22nd action also included a 2019 budget 
amendment up to the estimated $101,210.  

The project was bid on February 8th. Unfortunately, the bid results came in about 26% 
above estimate for the portion that the city has cost share of. Based on bids, the new local 
share estimate for Mandan is $128,427. That was shared in a letter to city staff which also 
included a request that the city concur to award the low bid submitted by Central 
Specialties, Inc.  

Since then, City staff has reached out to DOT staff to discuss options given the 265% 
increase this project has went up since we budgeted last summer. We asked if given the 
amount of increase, the DOT would give special consideration for this project to keep 
Mandan’s share at the $101,210 amount that we agreed to through the CPM agreement. 
The response was that they could not do that. Essentially, the program amounts are what 
they are based on percentage of project costs regardless of how much the estimate 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 28, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Planning and Engineering 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: Justin Froseth, Planning and Engineering Director 
SUBJECT: NDDOT I-94 Resurface Project, Concurrence of 

Award 

New Business No. 3 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: NDDOT I-94 Resurface Project, Concurrence of Award 
Page 2 of 4 

increased throughout project planning. The DOT staff re-stated, as they had before, that 
they did not see an issue with the city paying the original budget amount in 2019 for 2019 
work and increasing our budget amount in 2020 to pay for the remainder of the 2019 and 
2020 work in 2020.      

ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Full Project Title Sheet
2) Letter Requesting Concurrence of Award

FISCAL IMPACT:  A budget amendment is required to increase the amount of sales tax 
fund for this project from the budgeted $101,210 to the latest estimate of $128,427. 
Finance Director Welch was consulted and verified that this amended amount can be 
handled by the sales tax fund, perhaps taking the DOT up on the option to pay for some in 
2020.    

STAFF IMPACT:  Ongoing plan and project review as requested.  

LEGAL REVIEW:  All commission agenda documents have been forwarded to the City 
Attorney for review.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Recommend to approve the budget amendment from $101,210 
to $128,427 and the Concurrence of Award for the Highway 810 portion of the I-94 
resurfacing project.  

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the budget amendment from $101,210 to 
$128,427 and the Concurrence of Award for the Highway 810 portion of the I-94 
resurfacing project. 



B
oard of C

ity C
om

m
issioners 

A
genda D

ocum
entation 

M
eeting D

ate: M
arch 5, 2019 

Subject: N
D

D
O

T I-94 R
esurface Project, C

oncurrence of A
w

ard 
Page 3 of 4 

... _ 

I e:,;'11 ,,.c"-'" rl"flJ!l 
rt~~. ~.S:i!W: Sl'~ 1l.1" 
f139h',R !1 W: ~ lt 17, •3, ~':. :.!:i\l, µ 1 i !i i,l'f. .. m 
r,3~, l'.SOW: Ste 30-. 31 
r 138,N,, Ft.!KIW: ~ 6, ~ 

OF.Et::ihiF,,1~ 

""• ~•OOJIIQ./ll~~Lil:i..tri 

~-~,.....,, .. ,~_.,.__ 

JOB # 
NORTH DAKOTA 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

I 

IM-1--094( 194)1 47, IM-1-194(001)000 
NHU-1-810(026 )00• 
'Mft0n& eu,~ti11·CAJL.llil~ 

I!: J:., Nb'.!~ ro_ Gr:.1111 iVarsJt B,li:,tp • EBMB 
l:. l;lhMliY ln~~CMf'@:! to Wastilrg!ctJ Street . 1::::13,'WI.:! 

C!F'Fi, pJa .S: HMA t,,.,._. tlii)'. S~ P.s.k_ 
9rl• ~, Oveila-~. e-tJQ:1! lJecii f.:e<a bcerrre•nc. 

Swc::ur..i lt:eWr&. 3 i.arty $$;II 

Mandan 

\ ~·-'" s.,,1,\l\1,-1-1"1:'~~~ 
Memo,ifl HYI~ 

~:~~~~~ 
1~ JJ0t .NBL.&ft 

·!, !t4-9:ZV.395 

tk.K-enzi,a ~~ lmarctrange 

S•"'Q""' J""'oo.•::~•.Y B11dg• 

/ SinJtturoNo.'10-l>0().~<g 

! 
~ 

NO 1.M-·1~94(1 :_:1,1 )147 21!ltl8 

Pii! f'\JC'C.T 'lj l f<t..tp[P I p-.5Wp T)Q", '{TT ',II ~ ~ 
M-1•~4t1Mj14T "9.'65 l.7&6 
IM-M!f4!Q.J fj00il , .O-HI 1,Aii~ 
' U~ 1•MlliRiJrG!CllL! , . 111!1 1.11 ~1' 

Bismarck 

~-------------1 AfP..lO'Jl:1~0.\f f ______ _ 

STATE roUtlT'I MA~ 

-'?r'RVVECIOAT~· ______ _ 

wt-11.:::.c u,,- AAG~ 1 ub-vC-u?i1t::Hi 
NP DPMTli.,EHl ('l F" ~HiirMTA1 10 P,, 

"IDCOf llE!31QfJ .Or\/1:ll t>i' i 

p llq)OSO.S, 

i lll:' 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: NDDOT I-94 Resurface Project, Concurrence of Award 
Page 4 of 4 

February 1, 2019 

r. Justin Froseth 
City Engineer 

North Dakota 
Department of Transportation 
Thomas K. Sorer oug Burgum 
DirMrir OotltnWF 

205 2nd Ave. W 
Man an, D 58554 

PROJECT: NHU-1 -810(026)000, PC 22199 - IQ 810 ME ORIAL HIGHWAY TO 
WASHl'NGTON STREET 

Bids for the construction on the above no ed pro·ect plus four "ed projects were taken at our 
bid opening of February 8, 2019 .. A copy of the Contract Detai Es ·mate is enclosed. 

The low bid for CPR, Mill and HMA, Signals, Bridge Deck Overla.ys , Bridge Deck 
Replacement Structure Repair, and Slurry Seal was submitted by Cen ral Specialties., Inc. of 
Alex.andria, MN in the amount of $20,340,245.75. Aocordfng to the agreement with the City 
of Mandan, the City's share of the project Is estimated to be $128.,427.26. The City is not 
responsibl.e for any costs on the four tied projects. 

Before we can award to the low bidder, we need the City of Mandan to concur, in writing, in 
the estimated amount by February 21 , If possible. 

Questions should be add1ressed to the Construction Services Division at (701)328-2566. 

,4701/ . 
PHILLIP MURDOFF, P.E. • CONS RUCTION SERVICES ENGINEER 

80/pmJlp 
Endo ure 

60 Boulevard Avaw:e • Bi.smarclc, , onh Dakota 58505-0700 
lmi :rm . n: 1-35> ROAD (1-855-637-6237) • FAX: (701)328-0310 • TTY: 7ll • dot.od,JDV 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: To introduce Lila Teigen, Real Property Appraiser III 
(Assessing Department). 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Ms. Teigen started in the assessing office yesterday 
March 4, 2019. Lila comes to us from Buffalo SD. She has over 25 year experience 
working in county government with 8 years as the Harding County Director of 
Equalization.  

She has been a member of the South Dakota Association of Assessing Officers, North 
Central Regional Association of Assessing Officers, and was elected to serve as the Vice 
Chair of the South Dakota Association of Assessing Officers. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The Real Property Appraiser III is a budgeted full-time position. 

STAFF IMPACT: The Real Property Appraiser III performs highly complex appraisal 
and assessment work of the land and building values of new and existing residential and 
commercial type property; work involves investigations and value estimates to be used as 
a basis for year-end sales studies. Prepares property records, inspects interior and exterior 
of buildings to record physical characteristics of properties, takes measurements of 
structures to determine accurate square footage, working with blueprints, prepares field 
sketches and takes photographs of property as needed. Verifies property sales, attends 
various hearings, meetings and seminars as needed to assist the City Assessor; establishes 
and maintains good working relationships with community, other agencies and co-
workers. The Real Property Appraiser III works under the general guidance and direction 
of the City Assessor. 

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 28, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Assessing 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Kimberly Markley 
PRESENTER: Kimberly Markley, City Assessor  
SUBJECT: Introduction of  Lila Teigen, Real Property 

Appraiser III (Assessing Department) 

New Business No. 4i 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  
Introduction of Jonathan Mathisen, Payroll and Benefits Technician (Finance 
Department). 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: 
Jonathan previously worked at Unisys Corporation in Bismarck as a Payroll Analyst for 
over 10 years. Jonathan graduated from the University of Mary with degrees in 
Accounting, Business Administration, and Computer Information Systems. Jonathan 
joined the City on February 25, 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Payroll and Benefits Technician is a budgeted full-time position. 

STAFF IMPACT: 
The Payroll and Benefits Technician performs technical work that is responsible for 
processing and reviewing payroll, benefits and leave records of employees. The Payroll 
and Benefits Technician works under the general supervision of the Assistant Finance 
Director. The Payroll and Benefits Technician also provides general human resources 
support to the Human Resource Director.  

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 28, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Finance 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Greg Welch 
PRESENTER: Greg Welch, Finance Director 
SUBJECT: Introduction of Jonathan Mathisen, Payroll and 

Benefits Technician (Finance Department) 

New Business No. 4ii 

WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



3/1/2019 Legislative Bill Tracking - Sixty-sixth Assembly (2019)- Bill Tracking List 

North Dakota Legislative Branch 
Legislative Bill Tracking - Sixty-sixth Assembly (2019) - View Bill Tracking 

List: Legislative Update 4 
Tracking Lists I Today's Calendar I Committee Hearings I Conference Committee Hearings I BIii Status I BIiis Introduced Since 02/28/2019 
I Manage Mobile Devices 

Select BIii Status Title Description Comment Action 
All I None 

HB 1041 House: PASSED Relating to the Increase amount Finance - Support Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: PASSED homestead tax credit from $6,000 to PASSED - HOUSE 
02/27 S Second reading, for special $15,000 and 
passed, yeas 45 nays O assessments; to lower interest rate 
02/28 H Returned to House provide for from 9% to 6% 

application; and to Amendments 
provide an effective kept $6,000 and 
date. lowered interest 

rate 

HB 1066 House: PASSED Relating to "Prairie Dog Bill" Support Airport - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED infrastructure funds; Hearing held, Support 
02/20 S Introduced, first to amend and reenact much support 
reading, referred Finance subsection 5 of from around the 
and Taxation Committee section 57-51-01 and state 
03/05 S Committee Hearing sections 57-51-15, 
- 09:00 AM 57-51.1-07.3, and 57-

51.1-07 .5 of the North
Dakota Century
Code, relating to oil
and gas tax revenue
allocations; to provide 
a continuing 
appropriation; to
provide for a report;
and to provide an 
effective date. 

I HB 1117 House: PASSED Relating to Place legal Administration - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED publication of legal notices online support PASSED 
02/18 S Introduced, first notices in a HOUSE 
reading, referred Political newspaper and 
Subdivisions Committee online. 
03/01 S Committee Hearing 
- 09:00 AM

HB 1165 House: PASSED Relating to Building Official - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED nonconforming Oppose 
02/28 S Request return from structures. 
committee 
02/28 S Rereferred to 
Political Subdivisions 

I HB 1207 House: PASSED Relating to costs Legat - Monitor Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED awarded to a 
02/20 S Introduced, first defendant. 
reading, referred Judiciary 
Committee 
03/05 S Committee Hearing 
- 10:30 AM 

J HB 1210 House: PASSED Relating to special Residents of Administration & Follow this Bill . RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED elections for property Extraterritorial Planning 
02/27 S Introduced, first owners in a proposed zoning jurisdiction 
reading, referred Political extraterritorial zoning of a city is entitled 
Subdivisions Committee area. to vote in 
03/08 S Committee Hearing governing body of 
- 10:15 AM the city 

I HB 1227 House: PASSED Relating to prohibiting prohibits Admin Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED residential rental residential rental 
02/18 S Introduced, first licensure fees. license fees 
reading, referred Political 
Subdivisions Committee 
03/07 S Committee Hearing 
-11:15 AM

HB 1282 House: PASSED Relating to limitations Unable to look Human Resources - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED on public employer into or consider Monitoring Passed 
02/18 S Introduced, first consideration of criminal House - If Passes 
reading, referred Judiciary criminal background. background until Senate will need to 
Committee the applicant is adjust job application 

https://www.legis.nd.gov/lcn/council/billtracking/mainmenu.htm 1/5 

mill
Text Box
New Business No. 5



3/1/2019 Legislative Bill Tracking - Sixty-sixth Assembly (2019)- Bill Tracking List 

03/04 S Committee Hearing selected for an forms PASSED -
- 11:00 AM interview, unless HOUSE 

statutory 
obligation. 
Currently, we 
conduct a formal 
background 
check after a 
conditional offer 
has been 
accepted. No ND 
Court searches 
before setting up 
interview. 

I HB 1286 House: PASSED Relating to law Takes away Police - Oppose Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED enforcement ability to utilize 
02/27 S Received from agencies reporting forfeited assets 
House seizures and which would 
02/27 S Introduced, first forfeitures; and to negatively impact 
reading, referred Judiciary amend and reenact Police 
Committee sections 19-03.1- Department 

36.2, 19-03.1-36.6, 
19-03.1-36.7, 29-27-
02.1, and subsection
1 of section 54-12-14
of the North Dakota
Century Code,
relating to forfeiture
proceedings,
contested forfeiture
hearings, legal
interests in forfeited
property, disposition
of statutory fees, 
fines, forfeitures, and
the attorney general
assets forfeiture
fund.

HB 1289 House: PASSED Relating to appeals Assessing/Finance - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED from decisions of Monitor 
02/20 S Received from local governing 
House bodies; to amend and 
02/20 S Introduced, first reenact subsection 1 
reading, referred Finance of section 28-34-01, 
and Taxation Committee section 57-12-01.1, 

and subsection 2 of 
section 57-23-06 of 
the North Dakota 
Century Code, 
relating to notice 
filings and property 
valuation spot 
checks; to provide for 
application; and to 
provide an effective 
date. 

HB 1334 House: PASSED Relating to sealing a sealing record ... Administration - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED criminal record of a what to do with monitor 
02/14 S Received from driving under the background 
House influence offense. checks for liquor 
02/18 S Introduced, first licenses 
reading, referred Judiciary 
Committee 

HB 1431 House: PASSED Relating to the parts Southwest Water Administration Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED of the state included Authority remove Support 
02/20 S Received from in the southwest City of Mandan 
House water authority and from mill levy Do 
02/20 S Introduced, first the membership of Pass out of 
reading, referred Political the board of directors Committee 
Subdivisions Committee of the southwest 

water authority; and 
to provide an effective 
date. 

HB 1443 House: PASSED Relating to historic PASSED Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED horse race wagering 
02/18 S Introduced, first and rent limits; and to 
reading, referred amend and reenact 
Government and Veterans sections 53-06.2-01, 
Affairs Committee 53-06.2-04, 53-06.2-

05, and 53-06.2-06,

https://www.legis.nd.gov/lcn/council/billtracking/mainmenu.htm 2/5 



3/1/2019 Legislative Bill Tracking - Sixty-sixth Assembly (2019) - Bill Tracking List 

03/01 S Committee Hearing subsection 1 of 
- 09:00 AM section 53-06.2-08, 

and sections 53-06.2-
10, 53-06.2-10.1, and 
53-06.2-11 of the 
North Dakota Century
Code, relating to the 
regulation of historic 
horse racing. 

HB 1474 House: PASSED Relating to the Street Administration - Follow this Bill . RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED authority of a county Maintenance Fee Finance - monitor 
02/20 S Introduced, first or city to levy an as part of Utility WOULD ALLOW 
reading, referred Finance infrastructure tax in Bill CITY TO ASK 
and Taxation Committee lieu of special VOTERS IF 
03/06 S Committee Hearing assessments; and to WANTED ANOTHER 
- 09:00 AM amend and reenact FUNDING OPTION 

sections 11-09.1-05, 
11-11-55.1, 40-05.1-
06, 40-12-02, and 40-
23-21 of the North 
Dakota Century
Code, relating to the 
authority of cities and 
counties to levy an 
infrastructure tax in
lieu of special
assessments and 
special assessment 
fund balances. 

HB 1487 House: PASSED Relating to an freeze property Assessing - Turned Follow this Bill . RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED optional residential valuations on into a Study 
02/18 S Introduced, first property tax freeze for property less than Resolution 
reading, referred Finance seniors; and to $400k if 65 years 
and Taxation Committee provide an effective or older, majority 
03/04 S Committee Hearing date. of property 
- 10:15 AM valuations are 

less than $400k 
thus freezes 
property tax 

HB 1488 House: PASSED Relating to special $$ in Special Finance - Monitor Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
Senate: INTRODUCED assessment fund Assessment 
02/20 S Received from balances. Fund used to pay 
House costs early 
02/20 S Introduced, first 
reading, referred Political 
Subdivisions Committee 

I SB 2010 Senate: PASSED Relating to boiler Fire Insurance Fire - Support Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED inspections and North Premium 
02/27 H Introduced, first Dakota reserve fund 
reading, referred use of producers; to 
Appropriations Committee amend and reenact 
02/28 H Committee Hearing sections 18-04-04, 
-10:00 AM 18-04-04.1, and 18-

04-05, subsection 2 
of section 26.1-01-07. 
section 26.1-01-09, 
subsection 1 of
section 26.1-03-17,
and sections 26.1-21-
03, 26.1-21-17, 26.1-
22-03, and 26.1-23.1-
01 of the North
Dakota Century
Code, relating to the
state fire and tornado
fund, the state 
bonding fund, fees 
chargeable by the 
insurance 
commissioner, the
salary of the
insurance
commissioner, and
government self-
insurance pools; to 
repeal chapter 26.1-
22.1 of the North
Dakota Century
Code, relating to
boiler inspections; to
provide a penalty; to

https://www.legis.nd.gov/lcn/council/billtracking/mainmenu.htm 3/5 

' 



3/1/2019 Legislative Bill Tracking - Sixty-sixth Assembly (2019)- Bill Tracking List 

provide a continuing 
appropriation; and to 
provide a contingent 
effective date. 

SB 2020 Senate: PASSED Relating to the State Water Administration Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED authorization of a Commission - monitor 
02/27 H Introduced, first Bank of North Dakota track to see if $$ 
reading, referred line of credit; to in for Intake and 
Appropriations Committee provide for Red River LHWRD DO Pass 
03/07 H Committee Hearing valley water supply out of Committee 
- 08:30 AM requirements; to 

provide an 
exemption; to provide 
for a report to the 
legislative 
management; and to 
provide a statement 
of legislative intent. 

SB 2047 Senate: PASSED Relating to the Current multiplier Police & Fire - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED computation of is 2%, reduces Monitor 
02/27 H Introduced, first retirement benefits. benefit to 1.75% 
reading, referred for members first 
Government and Veterans enrolled after 
Affairs Committee 12/31/2019 
03107 H Committee Hearing 
- 08:15 AM

SB 2048 Senate: PASSED Relating to increased Increase Police & Fire - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED employer and employee and Monitor 
02127 H Introduced, first employee employer 
reading, referred contributions under contributions by 
Government and Veterans the public employees 1 % beginning 
Affairs Committee retirement system Jan. 1,2020 
03107 H Committee Hearing defined benefit and 
- 08:15 AM defined contribution 

plans. 

SB 2189 Senate: PASSED Relating to the Changes BOE Assessing/Finance - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED meeting of the board date to within first Support PASSED 
02/13 H Introduced, first of equalization of a 15 days of April, Senate 
reading, referred Political township and a city. rather than 2nd 
Subdivisions Committee Monday 
02/28 H Committee Hearing 
- 09:30 AM 

SB 2209 Senate: PASSED Relating to protection certain Administration - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED for records related to infrastructure support PASSED 
02/13 H Introduced, first critical infrastructure records to be Senate 
reading, referred Industry, and security planning, protected 
Business and Labor mitigation, or threats. 
Committee 
03/04 H Committee Hearing 
- 02:00 PM 

SB 2213 Senate: PASSED Relating to the Permanent Mill Administration - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED southwest water for SW Water Oppose 
02/18 H Introduced, first authority and district 
reading, referred Political budget tax levies. 
Subdivisions Committee 
03/07 H Committee Hearing 
- 09:00 AM

SB 2275 Senate: PASSED Relating to the $55M in Legacy Administration - Follow this Bill - RSS View Edit Delete 
House: INTRODUCED infrastructure earnings to fund monitor 
02/18 H Received from revolving loan fund repayment of 
Senate debt repayments; to infrastructure 
02/27 H Introduced, first amend and reenact revolving loan 
reading, referred sections 6-09-49, 6- fund DO PASS 
Appropriations Committee 09.4-06, and 6-09.4- out of Committee 

10, subsection 6 of 
section 21-03-07, and 
sections 21-03-19, 
57-15-06.6, and 57-
4 7-02 of the North 
Dakota Century 
Code, relating to the
infrastructure
revolving loan fund, 
borrowing and
lending authority,
reserve funds, and
expanded bonding
authority for counties;
to repeal section 61-

https://www.legis.nd.gov/lcn/council/billtracking/mainmenu.htm 415 

-

J 



3/1/2019 

SB 2304 Senate: PASSED 
House: INTRODUCED 
02/18 H Introduced, first 
reading, referred Political 
Subdivisions Committee 
03/07 H Committee Hearing 
-09:45 AM

Return ) ( Copy to List

Legislative Bill Tracking - Sixty-sixth Assembly (2019)- Bill Tracking List 

02-78 of the North 
Dakota Century 
Code, relating to a
revolving loan fund
for water projects; to 
provide a transfer; to
provide a continuing 
appropriation; to
provide a bond 
issuance limitation; 
and to provide an 
effective date.

Relating to the effect Police - Support Follow this Bill - RSS 

of state law on city or 
county ordinances 
and limits on city fines 
and penalties. 

https://www.legis.nd.gov/lcn/council/billtracking/mainmenu.htm 

View Edit Delete 

5/5 



·I



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

MEETING DATE:  March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 11th, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Police 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Chief Jason Ziegler 
PRESENTER: Chief Jason Ziegler 
SUBJECT:  Introduction and First Consideration of Ordinance  

1307 to Amend and Re-enact the Mandan Code of  
Ordinances Relating to Animals. 

________________________________________________________________________ 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE: Consider Introduction and First Consideration of Ordinance 
1307 to Amend and Re-enact the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to Animals. 

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES: Beginning in the summer of 2018, discussions have 
been held with City Commissioners and city officials regarding updating the current 
ordinances relating to dogs and cats in Mandan Municipal Code. In November 2018, a 
first reading on a proposed new ordinance was held. After this reading, additional input 
was received regarding the proposed ordinance. It was decided to re-examine the 
proposed changes. Instead of making numerous changes to the ordinance proposed in 
November, a new ordinance has been drafted. The new ordinance contains a number of 
additional definitions. Several nuisance related sections were repealed and were 
combined into an expanded restricted activities section. Changes were made to the 
sections involving running at large and leashes. In addition, a number of sections have 
been changed to allow for the issuance of a citation for violations instead of having to do 
a long form complaint for charges.  

ATTACHMENTS: Ordinance 1307 to Amend and Re-enact the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances Relating to Animals  

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

STAFF IMPACT:  None 

LEGAL REVIEW: Ordinance 1307 was drafted by the City Attorney 

Resolution & Ordinance No. 1 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 
Subject:  
 
Page 2 of 2 

  Introduction and First Consideration of 
Ordinance 1307 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend approval of the Introduction and First 
Consideration of Ordinance 1307 to Amend and Re-enact the Mandan Code of 
Ordinances Relating to Animals. 

SUGGESTED MOTION: Move to approve the Introduction and First Consideration of 
Ordinance 1307 to Amend and Re-enact the Mandan Code of Ordinances Relating to 
Animals.  



 This document has notes which will help to explain the changes made from the current 
ordinance.  

ORDINANCE NO. 1307

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact   
Article 1, Sec. 6-1-1, Sec. 6-1-2; Article 2, Sec. 6-2-1, Sec. 6-2-2,  

Sec. 6-2-4, Sec. 6-2-5, Sec. 6-2-7, Sec. 6-2-8, Sec. 6-2-10, Sec. 6-2-11, 
Article 3, Sec. 6-3-11, Sec. 6-3-12, and to repeal Sec. 6-1-3, Sec. 6-1-4, 
Sec. 6-1-5, Sec. 6-2-5, of Chapter 6 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 

Relating to Animals  

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows:  

ARTICLE 1. – IN GENERAL  

Sec. 6-1-1. – Definitions.  

 Animal control officer:  any person employed or appointed by the City who is authorized to 
investigate and enforce violations relating to animal control or cruelty under the provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

At large:  a domestic animal that is not on its owner’s property and not leashed 

Domestic animal: an animal of a tamed species commonly kept as pets and includes livestock. 

Impoundment: seizing and confining a domestic animal by any animal control officer under the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

Owner: a person who (a) has a right of property or custody of a domestic animal provided that the 
right is not merely temporary, (b) keeps or harbors a domestic animal other than temporarily, (c) 
knowingly permits a domestic animal to remain indefinitely on or about any premises occupied by 
that person. (d) a domestic animal customarily returns daily for a period of 7 days to a place and 
are given food or shelter, the occupiers of that place shall be deemed to be owners.  

Provocation: any action or activity, whether intentional or unintentional, which would be 
reasonably expected to cause a normal dog in similar circumstances to react in a manner similar to 
that shown by the evidence. 

Vicious dog: without provocation, bites or attacks human beings or other animals, either on 
public or private property, or, in a vicious or terrorizing manner, approaches any person in 
apparent attitude of attack upon a street, sidewalk, or any public ground or place.  



NOTES: Definitions were updated to current terminology (example: animal control vs 
pound master). Definitions were all grouped in one section as opposed to being spread out 
in the ordinance. The current definition of animal control officer would also apply to police 
officers as they at times handle animal related calls.  
Sec. 6-1-2. Impoundment Authorized.   

 It shall be the duty of any Animal Control Officer to take and impound any animal declared to be 
a nuisance or in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter.  

Sec. 6-1-3. – Running at Large Prohibited.  REPEALED.  

Sec. 6-1-4. – Destruction of Property Prohibited.  REPEALED. 

Sec. 6-1-5. – Trespassing Prohibited.  REPEALED.   

NOTES: These sections have been updated in other sections. 

Sec. 6-1-6. - Possession of animals restricted 
It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to keep, own, possess or have under his 
control any poultry within the city limits, with the exception of commercial poultry hatcheries as 
otherwise allowed by law, or to keep within the platted portion of the city any swine, poultry, 
rabbits, cows or horses.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-05; Code 1994, § 16-01-05; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983) 

NOTES: Any section in blue is current ordinance and has not been changed. 

 Sec. 6-1-7. - Cruelty to animals prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to overwork, torture, cruelly beat, mutilate or needlessly kill, or carry 
or transport in any vehicle or conveyance in a cruel and inhumane manner, any dog, cat or other 
animal or cause these acts to be done.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-06; Code 1994, § 16-01-06; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-1-8. - Cruel abandonment prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to abandon any dog, cat or other animal or cause such act to be done. 
(Code 1979, § 13-01-07; Code 1994, § 16-01-07; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  
State Law reference— Cruelty to animals, N.D.C.C. § 36-21.2-03.  

Sec. 6-1-9. - Food and shelter. 
No person shall fail to provide any dog, cat or other animal in his charge or custody with necessary 
maintenance, drink and protection from the elements or cause any of these acts to be done.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-08; Code 1994, § 16-01-08; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-1-10. - Fight upon exhibition. 



It is unlawful for any person to maintain any place where fowls, dogs or other animals are suffered 
to fight upon exhibition or for sport upon any wager.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-09; Code 1994, § 16-01-09; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-1-11. - Poisoning of dogs or cats prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to poison any dog or cat or distribute poison in any manner whatsoever 
for the intent, or for the purpose, of poisoning any dog or cat.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-10; Code 1994, § 16-01-10; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-1-12. - Killing birds. 
It is unlawful for any person to willfully frighten, shoot at, wound, kill, capture, ensnare, net, trap 
or in any manner molest or injure any robin, lark, whippoorwill, finch, sparrow, thrush, wren, 
martin, swallow, snowbird, bobolink, red-winged blackbird, oriole, kingbird, mockingbird, song 
sparrow, or other songbird or insectivorous bird, or in any manner to molest or injure the nest eggs 
or young of any such bird, or to have in possession the nest eggs, young or body of such bird.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-111; Code 1994, § 16-01-11; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

ARTICLE 2.  – DOGS AND CATS 

Sec. 6-2-1. – Restricted Activities. 
 It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to allow any dog or cat owned by him or 
under his control for that animal to by loud and frequent yelping, barking or howling, to annoy any 
reasonable person.    

(a) Damages or defecates on private property other than private property owned or
occupied by the animal’s owner, or on public walks and recreation areas unless
such waste is immediately removed and properly disposed of by the person in
charge of the dog or cat;

(b) Causes a disturbance by loud and frequent yelping, barking, howling, or yowling
to annoy any reasonable person.

(c) Chases vehicles, or molests, threatens, or interferes with persons or other animals
while the latter are on public property, irrespective of whether the dog or cat is on
private or public property.

NOTES: Various nuisance related behaviors/activities are grouped into one section. 



Sec. 6-2-2. - Restraint, Running at Large Prohibited; Dogs to be Leashed Required. 
 It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to permit or allow any dog of which he is 
the owner or keeper to run at large within the city, or for the dog to be free of restraint except 
within the dog park.  Any person who violates this section is guilty of an infraction.     

(a) A dog shall be considered under restraint if it is (a) within the real property limits
of its owner and securely confined thereon by a physical fence; or (b) secured by
a tether which does not allow the dog to reach within the property of another
person, a public walkway or a road (c) secured by a leash or lead no more than 6
feet in length being held by a person capable of controlling that dog.   A dog that
frees itself from its owner’s real property limits, from a leash, tether or lead, or a
dog that is in a vehicle in a manner that would not prevent escape or contact with
other persons or animals shall be considered as not being under restraint.

(b) A dog shall be deemed running at large when off or away from the premises of the
owner, possessor, keeper, or member of his immediate family and not under
control, either by leash, cord or chain of not more than 12 6 feet in length.

(c) Any dog conveyed in an open compartment of any vehicle must be controlled either
by being confined in a kennel or by a leash, cord or chain of a length which prevents
the animal from reaching the walls or edge of the open compartment.  Dogs
conveyed within the passenger compartment of any vehicle need not be controlled.

(d) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(e) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance, payment
of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or hearing as is
provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 24
of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the time
designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory fee or
posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to appear
without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of commission
of the violation charged.

NOTES: This section has been changed to put additional and/or more restrictive provisions 
on the “leash” law. For example a section is added which requires the person holding the 
leash to be able to physically control the dog. It also changes the allowed length of a leash. 
Prior ordinance allows for up to a 12 foot leash. This new ordinance changes that to a 6 foot 
leash. A distance of 12 feet could allow a dog to make contact with a person or animal before 
the person controlling the dog had time to react. A leash of no more than 6 feet allows much 
greater control of the dog.  



Another change is to allow for the citing of a violator. Current ordinance does not allow for 
a citation to be issued. This means an affidavit detailing what took place must be written. 
The affidavit is then forwarded to the city prosecutor. He next drafts a formal complaint 
charging the person with the violation. The complaint then goes to the municipal judge for 
approval. If approved the violator is sent a court notice or served with papers requiring them 
to appear in court. This as you can see is a long process. With a citation, the officer fills out 
the citation and gives it to the violator. They may then pay the fine by mailing in or going to 
the municipal court office. If they wish to dispute the citation they can ask for a trial before 
the municipal judge. This is the same procedure that would be used for a speeding citation. 
Very easy and not time consuming. 

Sec. 6-2-3. - Destruction of property prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to allow any dog or cat owned by him or under his control to 
destroy any property that is not the property of the owner or keeper. Any person who 
violates this section shall be guilty of an infraction.  
(Code 1979, § 13-02-09; Code 1994, § 16-03-03; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-2-4. - Trespassing prohibited 
It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to allow or permit any cat owned 
by him or under his control to trespass upon the private property of any other person 
within the limits of the city. Any person who violates this section shall be guilty of an 
infraction.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance,
payment of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or
hearing as is provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions
of Chapter 24 of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the
time designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory
fee or posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to
appear without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of
commission of the violation charged.

NOTES: Updated to allow for a citation to be issued.  

(Code 1979, § 13-02-10; Code 1994, § 16-03-04; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

 Sec. 6-2-5. - Vicious dogs. 

(a) No person shall own, keep, possess or harbor a vicious dog within the city. For
the purposes of this section, the term "vicious dog" is defined and declared to be a



 dog that, without provocation, bites or attacks human beings or other animals,  
either on public or private property, or, in a vicious or terrorizing manner,  
approaches any person in apparent attitude of attack upon a street, sidewalk, or 
any public ground or place.  

(b) Whenever a complaint under oath is made to the effect that any person is in
violation of this section, the municipal judge shall set a time and place for the
hearing of such complaint, notice of which shall be given the owner or possessor
of such dog not less than 24 hours before such hearing, in writing, served in the
same manner as a summons. Should the municipal judge determine at the time of
the filing of such complaint that such dog is dangerous to the public, he may
require the poundmaster animal control officer to immediately take up and
impound such dog pending the hearing on the complaint. At the time of the
hearing of such complaint, all interested persons shall be entitled to testify.

(c) In the event that any person is found to be in violation of this section, the
municipal judge shall issue an order requiring said owner or possessor of such
vicious dog to either destroy euthanize or remove the dog permanently from the
city within 24 hours. In the event such dog is not destroyed euthanized or
removed within such time, the poundmaster animal control officer of the city
shall be authorized to take up and immediately impound and destroy euthanize
such dog., for which he shall be paid by the owner the fee provided for killing
dogs not licensed. The owner of a vicious dog shall be liable for and shall pay all
costs associated with impoundment, removal, euthanasia or other associated costs
incurred.

(d) Should a dog which has been impounded pending the hearing on said complaint
be ordered destroyed euthanized or removed from the city subsequent to said
hearing, the owner or possessor of such dog wishing to remove it from the city
shall, within 24 hours after the issuance of such order, pay the poundmaster the
regular pound fees for taking up and keeping such dog, all costs associated with
impoundment and shall thereupon immediately remove said dog from the city.
Any dog which shall be removed from the city under the provisions of this
article and thereafter be brought back into the city, shall immediately be taken up
by the poundmaster and destroyed. impounded by the animal control officer and
euthanized.

(e) Should the municipal judge determine that the owner or possessor of an alleged
vicious dog is not in violation of this section, said dog shall be returned to the
owner or possessor by the animal control officer immediately and the fees for
impounding and keeping said dog shall be paid by the city.

(f) Any dog taken and impounded under the provisions of this article because of



having bitten any person shall be held in the pound impounded for ten days before 
the final disposition is made of such dog under the provisions of this article. In the 
event a vicious dog cannot be taken up and caught by the poundmaster or any 
police officer animal control officer without such poundmaster or police officer  
animal control officer exposing himself to danger or personal injury from such 
dog, or without exposing other persons to danger or personal injury from such  
dog, it shall be lawful for the poundmaster or any police officer to forthwith  
destroy such dog.  

(Code 1979, § 13-02-11; Code 1994, § 16-03-05; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983) 

NOTES: The wording in this section was updated to reflect current terminology. There 
were changes made to the owner’s responsibility for costs incurred. The substance of the 
ordinance was not changed. Officers have been using this ordinance with good success for 
years. Our current ordinance allows impound and then a timely review by the municipal 
judge. It has allowed us to have vicious dogs euthanized and/or removed from the city. We 
at the Police Department do not believe this section needed drastic change. We believe that 
what works should be left as is. This offense is a Class B Misdemeanor which is the highest 
level charge in Municipal Court.   

Sec. 6-2-6. - Number of dogs and cats restricted. 
No person shall keep or maintain more than three dogs and three cats, six months of age or older, 
on any premises lying within the platted portions of the city or within 200 yards of any platted 
portion of the city.  
(Code 1979, § 13-02-12; Code 1994, § 16-03-06; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-2-7. – License Required.   
 It is unlawful for any person within the city to keep, maintain or have in his custody or under his 
control any dog or cat over the age of six months which is not licensed or inoculated against 
rabies. identified at all times by a microchip or tag that states, at a minimum, the name and 
address and phone number of the owner.   Dogs and cats must be inoculated against rabies.  A 
license issued under this article is valid for the duration of the rabies vaccination under which it 
is obtained and shall expire on the date when the last rabies vaccination of the dog or cat expires.  
The license must be renewed for so long as the cat or dog is kept within the city by payment of 
the fee established in this article.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance,
payment of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or
hearing as is provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions
of Chapter 24 of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the



time designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory  
fee or posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to 
appear without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of  
commission of the violation charged.  

NOTES: Allows citations to be issued. Requires a tag and updates some wording. 

Sec. 6-2-8. - Rabies vaccination prerequisite. 
No dog or cat license shall be issued under the provisions of this article unless the applicant or 
owner produces a certificate of vaccination from a duly licensed veterinarian showing that the dog 
or cat for which the license is desired has been vaccinated against rabies. A license issued under 
this article may not exceed the duration of the rabies vaccination. An owner or caretaker shall have 
his dog or cat vaccinated by a duly licensed veterinarian, who shall issue him a metal shield or tag 
having in figures the year for which the shield or tag is issued, which shall immediately be affixed 
to and kept upon such animal for which it shall have been issued.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
A noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance,
payment of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or
hearing as is provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 24 of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the
time designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory fee
or posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to appear
without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of commission
of the violation charged.

NOTES: Allows a citation to be issued.  

(Code 1979, § 13-02-02; Code 1994, § 16-02-02; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983; Ord. No. 903, § 1, 9-
21-1999)

State Law reference— Rabies control, N.D.C.C. ch. 23-36. 

Sec. 6-2-9. - License fee. 

Every owner or keeper of a dog or cat shall pay therefore to the city for the use of the city, for each 
dog and cat, a fee in such amount as may be established from time to time by resolution of the 
board of city commissioners.  
(Code 1979, § 13-02-03; Code 1994, § 16-02-03; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  



Sec. 6-2-10. – Issuance of Tags. 
  It shall be the duty of the Animal Control Officer, at the time of the issuance of a license under 
this article, to furnish and deliver to the applicant for such license a tag for each dog and cat for 
which such license is issued, upon which tag shall be stamped or engraved the number of said 
license.  

Sec. 6-2-11. – Tag Attachment. 
  It shall be the duty of the owner of the dog or cat licensed under this article to place around the 
neck of such animal a collar or on a harness, on which shall be securely fastened the tag 
furnished by the Animal Control officer.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance, payment
of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or hearing as is
provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 24
of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the time
designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory fee or
posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to appear
without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of commission
of the violation charged.

NOTES: These two sections require animal control to issue a tag and for the tag to be 
attached. Also allows for a citation to be issued. We currently issue a tag but there is no 
requirement to have the tag attached. Tags enable us to identify owners when animals are 
impounded.  

Sec. 6-2-12. – Transfer 
No tag shall be transferable from one dog or cat to another. 

Sec. 6-2-13. - Waste. 
(a) Pet waste that is on the pet owner's property must not be allowed to accumulate to the extent
that odors generated from the waste migrate off the property. Pet waste shall not be allowed to
remain in an unenclosed front yard where it can be encountered by delivery workers or
neighborhood residents. The code enforcement officer or any other authorized agent of the city
may issue a citation to a pet owner who fails to clean up pet waste on the pet owner's property after
being notified by the city that a complaint has been received regarding the pet waste.



(b) Waste from dogs, cats and other pets that is deposited beyond the boundaries of the pet owner's
property must be immediately removed. The code enforcement officer or any other authorized
agent of the city may issue a citation to a pet owner who fails to immediately clean up after a pet
when the pet deposits solid waste on public property or private property not owned, rented, leased
or managed by the pet owner.

(c) Citations issued for Violations of this section are infractions.
(Ord. No. 1228, 1-5-2016)

 Sec. 6-3-11.  Conflicting Ordinances.  

All other ordinances of the City of Mandan that conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed 
to the extent of such conflict.  

Sec. 6-3-12.  Severability.  

The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.   If any section, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of the Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, 
sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance, but they shall remain in effect; it being the 
legislative intent that this Ordinance shall remain in effect notwithstanding the validity of any part.    

NOTES: These last two sections were added by the City Attorney. 

By: _________________________________  
Tim Helbling, President,   
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

______________________________________  
James Neubauer, City Administrator  

First Consideration:  _________________  
Second Consideration and Final Passage: ________________  
Publication: ____________________ 



ORDINANCE NO. 1307 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact   
Article 1, Sec. 6-1-1, Sec. 6-1-2; Article 2, Sec. 6-2-1, Sec. 6-2-2,  

Sec. 6-2-4, Sec. 6-2-5, Sec. 6-2-7, Sec. 6-2-8, Sec. 6-2-10, Sec. 6-2-11, 
Article 3, Sec. 6-3-11, Sec. 6-3-12, and to repeal Sec. 6-1-3, Sec. 6-1-4, 
Sec. 6-1-5, Sec. 6-2-5, of Chapter 6 of the Mandan Code of Ordinances 

Relating to Animals  

Be it Ordained by the Board of City Commissioners as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. – IN GENERAL  

Sec. 6-1-1. – Definitions.  

 Animal control officer:  any person employed or appointed by the City who is authorized to 
investigate and enforce violations relating to animal control or cruelty under the provisions of this 
Ordinance. 

At large:  a domestic animal that is not on its owner’s property and not leashed 

Domestic animal: an animal of a tamed species commonly kept as pets and includes livestock. 

Impoundment: seizing and confining a domestic animal by any animal control officer under the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

Owner: a person who (a) has a right of property or custody of a domestic animal provided that the 
right is not merely temporary, (b) keeps or harbors a domestic animal other than temporarily, (c) 
knowingly permits a domestic animal to remain indefinitely on or about any premises occupied by 
that person. (d) a domestic animal customarily returns daily for a period of 7 days to a place and 
are given food or shelter, the occupiers of that place shall be deemed to be owners.  

Provocation: any action or activity, whether intentional or unintentional, which would be 
reasonably expected to cause a normal dog in similar circumstances to react in a manner similar to 
that shown by the evidence. 

Vicious dog: without provocation, bites or attacks human beings or other animals, either on 
public or private property, or, in a vicious or terrorizing manner, approaches any person in 
apparent attitude of attack upon a street, sidewalk, or any public ground or place.  



Sec. 6-1-2. Impoundment Authorized.   

 It shall be the duty of any Animal Control Officer to take and impound any animal declared to be 
a nuisance or in violation of any of the provisions of this chapter.  

Sec. 6-1-3. – Running at Large Prohibited.  REPEALED.  

Sec. 6-1-4. – Destruction of Property Prohibited.  REPEALED. 

Sec. 6-1-5. – Trespassing Prohibited.  REPEALED.   

Sec. 6-1-6. - Possession of animals restricted 
It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to keep, own, possess or have under his 
control any poultry within the city limits, with the exception of commercial poultry hatcheries as 
otherwise allowed by law, or to keep within the platted portion of the city any swine, poultry, 
rabbits, cows or horses.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-05; Code 1994, § 16-01-05; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983) 

 Sec. 6-1-7. - Cruelty to animals prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to overwork, torture, cruelly beat, mutilate or needlessly kill, or carry 
or transport in any vehicle or conveyance in a cruel and inhumane manner, any dog, cat or other 
animal or cause these acts to be done.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-06; Code 1994, § 16-01-06; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-1-8. - Cruel abandonment prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to abandon any dog, cat or other animal or cause such act to be done. 
(Code 1979, § 13-01-07; Code 1994, § 16-01-07; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  
State Law reference— Cruelty to animals, N.D.C.C. § 36-21.2-03.  

Sec. 6-1-9. - Food and shelter. 
No person shall fail to provide any dog, cat or other animal in his charge or custody with necessary 
maintenance, drink and protection from the elements or cause any of these acts to be done.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-08; Code 1994, § 16-01-08; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-1-10. - Fight upon exhibition. 
It is unlawful for any person to maintain any place where fowls, dogs or other animals are suffered 
to fight upon exhibition or for sport upon any wager.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-09; Code 1994, § 16-01-09; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-1-11. - Poisoning of dogs or cats prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to poison any dog or cat or distribute poison in any manner whatsoever 
for the intent, or for the purpose, of poisoning any dog or cat.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-10; Code 1994, § 16-01-10; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  



Sec. 6-1-12. - Killing birds. 
It is unlawful for any person to willfully frighten, shoot at, wound, kill, capture, ensnare, net, trap 
or in any manner molest or injure any robin, lark, whippoorwill, finch, sparrow, thrush, wren, 
martin, swallow, snowbird, bobolink, red-winged blackbird, oriole, kingbird, mockingbird, song 
sparrow, or other songbird or insectivorous bird, or in any manner to molest or injure the nest eggs 
or young of any such bird, or to have in possession the nest eggs, young or body of such bird.  
(Code 1979, § 13-01-111; Code 1994, § 16-01-11; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

ARTICLE 2.  – DOGS AND CATS 

Sec. 6-2-1. – Restricted Activities. 
 It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to allow any dog or cat owned by him or 
under his control for that animal to by loud and frequent yelping, barking or howling, to annoy any 
reasonable person.    

(a) Damages or defecates on private property other than private property owned or
occupied by the animal’s owner, or on public walks and recreation areas unless
such waste is immediately removed and properly disposed of by the person in
charge of the dog or cat;

(b) Causes a disturbance by loud and frequent yelping, barking, howling, or yowling
to annoy any reasonable person.

(c) Chases vehicles, or molests, threatens, or interferes with persons or other animals
while the latter are on public property, irrespective of whether the dog or cat is on
private or public property.

Sec. 6-2-2. - Restraint, Running at Large Prohibited; Dogs to be Leashed Required. 
 It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to permit or allow any dog of which he is 
the owner or keeper to run at large within the city, or for the dog to be free of restraint except 
within the dog park.  Any person who violates this section is guilty of an infraction.     

(a) A dog shall be considered under restraint if it is (a) within the real property limits
of its owner and securely confined thereon by a physical fence; or (b) secured by
a tether which does not allow the dog to reach within the property of another
person, a public walkway or a road (c) secured by a leash or lead no more than 6
feet in length being held by a person capable of controlling that dog.   A dog that
frees itself from its owner’s real property limits, from a leash, tether or lead, or a
dog that is in a vehicle in a manner that would not prevent escape or contact with
other persons or animals shall be considered as not being under restraint.



(b) A dog shall be deemed running at large when off or away from the premises of the
owner, possessor, keeper, or member of his immediate family and not under
control, either by leash, cord or chain of not more than 12 6 feet in length.

(c) Any dog conveyed in an open compartment of any vehicle must be controlled either
by being confined in a kennel or by a leash, cord or chain of a length which prevents
the animal from reaching the walls or edge of the open compartment.  Dogs
conveyed within the passenger compartment of any vehicle need not be controlled.

(d) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(e) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance, payment
of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or hearing as is
provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 24
of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the time
designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory fee or
posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to appear
without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of commission
of the violation charged.

Sec. 6-2-3. - Destruction of property prohibited. 
It is unlawful for any person to allow any dog or cat owned by him or under his control to 
destroy any property that is not the property of the owner or keeper. Any person who 
violates this section shall be guilty of an infraction.  
(Code 1979, § 13-02-09; Code 1994, § 16-03-03; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-2-4. - Trespassing prohibited 
It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to allow or permit any cat owned 
by him or under his control to trespass upon the private property of any other person 
within the limits of the city. Any person who violates this section shall be guilty of an 
infraction.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance,
payment of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or
hearing as is provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions
of Chapter 24 of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the
time designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory
fee or posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to



            appear without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of 
            commission of the violation charged.  

(Code 1979, § 13-02-10; Code 1994, § 16-03-04; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

 Sec. 6-2-5. - Vicious dogs. 

(a) No person shall own, keep, possess or harbor a vicious dog within the city. For
the purposes of this section, the term "vicious dog" is defined and declared to be a
dog that, without provocation, bites or attacks human beings or other animals,
either on public or private property, or, in a vicious or terrorizing manner,
approaches any person in apparent attitude of attack upon a street, sidewalk, or
any public ground or place.

(b) Whenever a complaint under oath is made to the effect that any person is in
violation of this section, the municipal judge shall set a time and place for the
hearing of such complaint, notice of which shall be given the owner or possessor
of such dog not less than 24 hours before such hearing, in writing, served in the
same manner as a summons. Should the municipal judge determine at the time of
the filing of such complaint that such dog is dangerous to the public, he may
require the poundmaster animal control officer to immediately take up and
impound such dog pending the hearing on the complaint. At the time of the
hearing of such complaint, all interested persons shall be entitled to testify.

(c) In the event that any person is found to be in violation of this section, the
municipal judge shall issue an order requiring said owner or possessor of such
vicious dog to either destroy euthanize or remove the dog permanently from the
city within 24 hours. In the event such dog is not destroyed euthanized or
removed within such time, the poundmaster animal control officer of the city
shall be authorized to take up and immediately impound and destroy euthanize
such dog., for which he shall be paid by the owner the fee provided for killing
dogs not licensed. The owner of a vicious dog shall be liable for and shall pay all
costs associated with impoundment, removal, euthanasia or other associated costs
incurred.

(d) Should a dog which has been impounded pending the hearing on said complaint
be ordered destroyed euthanized or removed from the city subsequent to said
hearing, the owner or possessor of such dog wishing to remove it from the city
shall, within 24 hours after the issuance of such order, pay the poundmaster the
regular pound fees for taking up and keeping such dog, all costs associated with
impoundment and shall thereupon immediately remove said dog from the city.
Any dog which shall be removed from the city under the provisions of this
article and thereafter be brought back into the city, shall immediately be taken up



by the poundmaster and destroyed. impounded by the animal control officer and 
euthanized.  

(e) Should the municipal judge determine that the owner or possessor of an alleged
vicious dog is not in violation of this section, said dog shall be returned to the
owner or possessor by the animal control officer immediately and the fees for
impounding and keeping said dog shall be paid by the city.

(f) Any dog taken and impounded under the provisions of this article because of
having bitten any person shall be held in the pound impounded for ten days before
the final disposition is made of such dog under the provisions of this article. In the
event a vicious dog cannot be taken up and caught by the poundmaster or any
police officer animal control officer without such poundmaster or police officer
animal control officer exposing himself to danger or personal injury from such
dog, or without exposing other persons to danger or personal injury from such
dog, it shall be lawful for the poundmaster or any police officer to forthwith
destroy such dog.

(Code 1979, § 13-02-11; Code 1994, § 16-03-05; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983) 

Sec. 6-2-6. - Number of dogs and cats restricted. 
No person shall keep or maintain more than three dogs and three cats, six months of age or older, 
on any premises lying within the platted portions of the city or within 200 yards of any platted 
portion of the city.  
(Code 1979, § 13-02-12; Code 1994, § 16-03-06; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  

Sec. 6-2-7. – License Required.   
 It is unlawful for any person within the city to keep, maintain or have in his custody or under his 
control any dog or cat over the age of six months which is not licensed or inoculated against 
rabies. identified at all times by a microchip or tag that states, at a minimum, the name and 
address and phone number of the owner.   Dogs and cats must be inoculated against rabies.  A 
license issued under this article is valid for the duration of the rabies vaccination under which it 
is obtained and shall expire on the date when the last rabies vaccination of the dog or cat expires.  
The license must be renewed for so long as the cat or dog is kept within the city by payment of 
the fee established in this article.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance,
payment of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or
hearing as is provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions
of Chapter 24 of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the



time designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory  
 fee or posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to 
 appear without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of  
commission of the violation charged.  

Sec. 6-2-8. - Rabies vaccination prerequisite. 
No dog or cat license shall be issued under the provisions of this article unless the applicant or 
owner produces a certificate of vaccination from a duly licensed veterinarian showing that the dog 
or cat for which the license is desired has been vaccinated against rabies. A license issued under 
this article may not exceed the duration of the rabies vaccination. An owner or caretaker shall have 
his dog or cat vaccinated by a duly licensed veterinarian, who shall issue him a metal shield or tag 
having in figures the year for which the shield or tag is issued, which shall immediately be affixed 
to and kept upon such animal for which it shall have been issued.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
A noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance,
payment of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or
hearing as is provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions of
Chapter 24 of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the
time designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory fee
or posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to appear
without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of commission
of the violation charged.

(Code 1979, § 13-02-02; Code 1994, § 16-02-02; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983; Ord. No. 903, § 1, 9-
21-1999)

State Law reference— Rabies control, N.D.C.C. ch. 23-36. 

Sec. 6-2-9. - License fee. 

Every owner or keeper of a dog or cat shall pay therefore to the city for the use of the city, for each 
dog and cat, a fee in such amount as may be established from time to time by resolution of the 
board of city commissioners.  
(Code 1979, § 13-02-03; Code 1994, § 16-02-03; Ord. No. 664, § 1, 1983)  



Sec. 6-2-10. – Issuance of Tags. 
  It shall be the duty of the Animal Control Officer, at the time of the issuance of a license under 
this article, to furnish and deliver to the applicant for such license a tag for each dog and cat for 
which such license is issued, upon which tag shall be stamped or engraved the number of said 
license.  

Sec. 6-2-11. – Tag Attachment. 
  It shall be the duty of the owner of the dog or cat licensed under this article to place around the 
neck of such animal a collar or on a harness, on which shall be securely fastened the tag 
furnished by the Animal Control officer.  

(a) Enforcement of this section may be by citation issued by the City Animal Control
Officer carrying a fine of $20.00.

(b) Any person cited for a violation of this section shall be deemed to be charged with
a noncriminal offense and may utilize the same procedures for appearance, payment
of statutory fee, posting and forfeiture of bond, waiver of hearing, or hearing as is
provided for noncriminal traffic offenses pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 24
of the Mandan Municipal Code.  Any person failing to appear at the time
designated, after signing a promise to appear, without paying the statutory fee or
posting and forfeiting bond is guilty of a Class B misdemeanor.  Failure to appear
without just cause at the hearing must also be deemed an admission of commission
of the violation charged.

Sec. 6-2-12. – Transfer 
No tag shall be transferable from one dog or cat to another. 

Sec. 6-2-13. - Waste. 
(a) Pet waste that is on the pet owner's property must not be allowed to accumulate to the extent
that odors generated from the waste migrate off the property. Pet waste shall not be allowed to
remain in an unenclosed front yard where it can be encountered by delivery workers or
neighborhood residents. The code enforcement officer or any other authorized agent of the city
may issue a citation to a pet owner who fails to clean up pet waste on the pet owner's property after
being notified by the city that a complaint has been received regarding the pet waste.

(b) Waste from dogs, cats and other pets that is deposited beyond the boundaries of the pet owner's
property must be immediately removed. The code enforcement officer or any other authorized
agent of the city may issue a citation to a pet owner who fails to immediately clean up after a pet
when the pet deposits solid waste on public property or private property not owned, rented, leased
or managed by the pet owner.

(c) Citations issued for Violations of this section are infractions.
(Ord. No. 1228, 1-5-2016)



 Sec. 6-3-11.  Conflicting Ordinances.  

All other ordinances of the City of Mandan that conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed 
to the extent of such conflict.  

Sec. 6-3-12.  Severability.  

The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.   If any section, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of the Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, 
sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance, but they shall remain in effect; it being the 
legislative intent that this Ordinance shall remain in effect notwithstanding the validity of any part.    

By: _________________________________  
Tim Helbling, President,   
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

______________________________________  
James Neubauer, City Administrator  

First Consideration:  March 5, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: March 19, 2019  
Publication: ____________________ 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of second consideration of Ordinance 
1301 related to changes to the R3.2 Residential District.    

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Changes to residential districts were carried out in 
2016.  These changes included limiting the number of single-family residences to 10% of 
the total number of lots within a subdivision in the R3.2 Residential District; all other 
residences within this district are required to be twin home construction.  Areas, such as 
Macedonia Hills, were platted prior to the 2016 ordinance change with the intent to allow 
a combination of single-family and twin home construction.  Multiple inquiries from lot 
owners and real estate agents over the past few months brought attention to this particular 
restriction in the R3.2 Residential district.  Inquirers expressed surprise and anger with 
the inability to construct single-family residences on certain lots.   

In discussion with staff, the ability of the city to administer the 10% limitation with the 
current permit tracking software is very difficult and likely to result in an inadvertent 
issuance of a permit for a non-conforming structure.   

The proposed changes remove the 10% clause, add a definition of a twin home, and 
clarify side setbacks for both twin homes and single-family dwellings.   

The Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously voted to recommend approval of 
Ordinance 1301 as presented in Exhibit 1 at the January 2019 meeting.  

City Commission voted unanimously at the February 19, 2019 meeting to approve the 
ordinance as presented in Exhibit 1.   

ATTACHMENTS:  

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM, 
SUBJECT: Second Consideration of Ordinance 1301 Related 

to Changes to R3.2 Residential District  

Res. and Ord. No. 2 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Second Consideration of Ordinance 1301 related to Changes to the R3.2 
Residential District 
Page 2 of 2 

Exhibit 1 – Ordinance #1301 – R3.2 Residential District Changes 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/a 

LEGAL REVIEW:  This document has been sent to Attorney Brown for his review. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department and Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommend approval of Ordinance 1301 as presented in Exhibit 1.   

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve Ordinance 1301 as presented in Exhibit 1.   



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1301 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact portions of Sec. 105-3-7 and Sec. 101-1-3 related to the 
R3.2 Residential District.   

WHEREAS, There exists difficulty with effectively administering the 10 percent limitation as 
currently outlined in the R3.2 Residential District.   

WHEREAS, Everything else equal, each property within the same base zone should enjoy 
identical rights.      

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 
Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 15. Amended and Re-enacted. Section 101-1-3 amending the definition of Twin 
home to read as follows: 

Twin home. See two-family dwelling. means two single-family dwellings in a zero side yard 
setback configuration resulting in a structure containing two dwelling units bisected by the side 
property line.       

Section 2. Amended and Re-enacted. Section 105-3-7 amending standards in the R3.2 
Residential District as follows: 

Sec. 105-3-7. - R3.2 Residential District. 

(a) General description. The purpose of this district is to provide an opportunity to construct
single-family dwelling units on reduced size lots in the form of a single-family dwelling or
twin home.  in a zero side yard setback configuration resulting in structures containing two
dwelling units commonly called twin homes that straddle a lot line.

(b) Primary uses. The following uses are permitted:

(1) Zero side yard setback single-family dwelling unit in a structure with two dwelling units
located on two adjacent lotsTwin home.

(2) Structures with one sSingle-family dwelling.  unit located on no more than ten percent
of the lots in the subdivision.

a. The minimum side yard setback for lots where the adjacent lot is undeveloped shall
be five feet.

b. For lots where the adjacent lot has been developed, the new principal structure must
have a sufficient side yard setback to be at least ten feet from the principal structure
on the adjacent lot.

EXHIBIT 1 - Draft Ordinance



2 

c. The minimum setback shall result in the roof overhang being at least one foot back
from the property line.

(c) Secondary uses. A group dwelling for six or fewer individuals with developmental
disabilities as defined in NDCC 25-16-14 is a permitted secondary use. This use requires one
additional on-site mobility impaired parking space.

(d) Conditional uses. These uses are permitted on a specific site only after review and approval
by the planning and zoning commission and ratification by the city commission. A PUD
district will be created to document any conditional use approval.

(1) Public recreation group.

(2) Education group.

(3) Utility service group.

(4) Religion group.

(e) Setbacks.
(1) Lots fronting on an arterial or collector street as designated on road network maps

produced by the metropolitan planning organization are discouraged. If lots must front
on roads with these designations, the front yard setback is increased.

a. The minimum front yard setback for an arterial roadway is 50 feet.

b. The minimum front yard setback for a collector street is 25 feet.

c. The minimum front yard setback for a local street is eight feet.

d. The required front yard setback for each lot shall be determined during the platting
process and shall be documented in a development agreement that is signed and
recorded.

(2) For a side yard that fronts on a public right-of-way, the minimum setback is the same
as the front yard. For all other situations the minimum side yard setback is five feet.  The
side yard setback shall apply to both sides for a single-family dwelling and one side for a
twin home.

(3) The minimum rear yard setback is 20 feet.

(4) Any portion of a structure containing a garage door facing a public street, alley or private
access easement must be set back at least 25 feet.

(f) Lot coverage. The perimeter of the ground or first floor of each structure shall be used when
computing lot coverage. Lot coverage for all structures shall not exceed 50 percent of the
square foot area of the lot. For water lots the computation shall be made using the portion of
the lot that is above the shore line.

(g) Lot area. The minimum lot area shall be 3,200 square feet.

(h) Lot frontage. Each lot shall have a minimum of 20 feet of frontage along a public street or
private access easement configured in conformance with fire code emergency access
standards.



3 

(i) Building height limits. Principal building height shall be limited to three stories. Accessory
buildings shall be limited to two stories.

(j) Parking. At least two parking spaces shall be provided per lot. This includes garage spaces
and exterior spaces measuring at least 25 feet long.

(Ord. No. 1242, § 5, 12-20-2016) 

Section 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 
ordinance.  

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect following final passage, adoption 
and publication. 

________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 

Planning and Zoning:      January 28, 2019 
First Consideration:  February 19, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: March 5, 2019 



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of the second consideration of Ordinance 
1291 related to the sales of fireworks and fireworks stands and resolution establishing 
permit and associated fees.     

BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  Fireworks sales around the City of Mandan have 
been contentious for both residents and retailers due in large part to the lack of specific 
regulation surrounding where retailers can conduct the sale of fireworks.  Complaints 
have been received from the public regarding their location, traffic, or simple distaste for 
the activity itself being so close to residential areas.  In contrast, the retailers are left with 
last-minute, often stressful situations in terms of identifying an appropriate location.  This 
ordinance will firmly define where these stands are allowable and provide retailers the 
opportunity well in advance of the fireworks season to identify an appropriate location to 
conduct their business.   

Staff met on a few occasions during and after the fireworks season to discuss this issue.  
Input was received from several departments including Fire and Building.  Commissioner 
Rohr and Administrator Neubauer were also present for the discussion.   

Follow-up with Natalie Pierce, Morton County Planning and Zoning Director, Malcolm 
Brown, City Attorney, and Lynn Gustin, Mandan Rural Fire Chief via Chief Nardello was 
conducted between late October and November 2018.    

This ordinance incorporates all of the above input as well as the recommendations of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to remove any setback distance from residences at 
the December 26, 2018 meeting.            

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM, Principal Planner 
SUBJECT: Second Consideration of Ordinance 1291 Related 

to Sales of Fireworks and Fireworks Stands and 
Resolution Establishing Permit and Associated 
Fees 

Res. and Ord. No. 3 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Second Consideration of Ordinance 1291 Related to Sales of Fireworks and 
Fireworks Stands and Resolution Establishing Permit and Associated Fees 
Page 2 of 2 

In summary: 

The proposed ordinance amendment defines fireworks to align with North Dakota 
Century Code.  It also defines fireworks stands, which includes specific requirements that 
must be met.   

Fireworks stands would be allowed in Agricultural zones on property 20,000 sq. ft. 
(approx. ½ acre) or larger or where the Retail group A use group is allowed (CA/CB/CC 
Commercial and MA/MC Industrial Districts).   

Fireworks stands would not be permissible within corporate limits; only permitted within 
the extra-territorial area.   

Planning and Zoning unanimously voted to recommend approval of Ordinance 1291 as 
presented in Exhibit 1 at the January 2019 meeting.  

City Commission unanimously voted to recommend approval of Ordinance 1291 at the 
February 19, 2019 meeting.   

The fees as presented in Exhibit 6 are $100 and will be good for one year from the date of 
issuance.   

ATTACHMENTS:  

Exhibit 1 – Ordinance 1291 – Fireworks and Fireworks Stands 
Exhibit 2 – Summary of Items Discussed at November 26, 2018 Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting 
Exhibit 3 – Morton County Application for Firework Stands Temporary Use Permit 
Exhibit 4 – City of Mandan Application for Firework Stands Temporary Use Permit 
Exhibit 5 – Morton County Code – Use Table 
Exhibit 6 – Resolution Establishing Fees 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Minimal 

STAFF IMPACT:  Minimal 

LEGAL REVIEW:  This document has been sent to Attorney Brown for his review. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department and Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommend approval of Ordinance 1291 as presented in Exhibit 1.   

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve Ordinance 1291 as presented in Exhibit 1.   



ORDINANCE NO. 1291 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Sec. 101-1-3, 105-1-4 (c) (2), and Sec. 
105-4-1 (2) a. and b. of the Mandan Municipal Code related to the sale of 

fireworks and placement of fireworks stands 

WHEREAS, There has been confusion surrounding where sales of fireworks may occur    

WHEREAS, Clarification is required to ensure the health and safety of nearby residents 
and patrons of such establishments 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the 
City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Sec. 101-1-3 is added and reads:   

Insert in Sec. 101-1-3 after the definition for Final plat the following: 

Fireworks means any combustible or explosive composition, or any substance or combination of 
substances or article prepared for the purpose of producing a visible or an audible effect by combustion, 
explosion, deflagration, or detonation. The term includes any blank cartridge, toy pistol, toy cannon, toy 
cane, or toy gun in which an explosive other than a toy paper cap is used; balloon that requires fire 
underneath to propel the balloon; firecracker, torpedo, skyrocket, Roman candle, daygo bomb, sparkler, 
or other item of like construction; item containing any explosive or flammable compound; or any tablet 
or other device containing any explosive substance. This section does not apply to any toy paper cap 
containing not more than twenty-five hundredths of a grain [16.20 milligrams] of explosive composition 
per cap. 

Fireworks stand means the retail sales of fireworks.  The following standards shall apply to all fireworks 
stands:  

a. Occurring outside corporate limits; and
b. Being wholly contained within a trailer, tent, building or other structure, whether permanent or

temporary; and 
c. Holding a fireworks sales permit as issued by  the City of Mandan; and
d. Holding a State Retailer License; and
e. Having a minimum of 1,600 sq. ft. area dedicated for customer parking.  Additional parking may

be required at the discretion of the City Building Official; and 
f. Having a minimum 500 ft. setback from all flammable and hazardous material storage areas and

structures (e.g. filling stations); 

Section 2.  Sec. 105-1-4 (c) (2) is amended to read: 

EXHIBIT 1 - Proposed Ordinance



(2) The following are examples of retail group A uses:

a. Antiques, collectibles or recycled items;

b. Appliances and electronics rental and sales;

c. Art, hobby or craft supplies;

d. Camera sales and service, photo supplies or photographic studio;

e. Jewelry, clock and watch sales, cleaning and repair;

f. Books and other printed materials, except those regulated under article 2, chapter 12 and article
5, chapter 105 of this Code;

g. Recorded video or music for rental or sale, except those regulated under article 2, chapter 12 and
article 5, chapter 105 of this Code;

h. Musical instrument rental, sale and repair;

i. Butcher shop, retail sales bakery, delicatessen, fast food, full service restaurant, coffee shop or other
eat-in or take-out food preparation establishment;

j. Ice cream, soda fountain or candy;

k. Department store, variety store or specialty merchandise including sporting goods or exercise
equipment;

l. Drugstore;

m. Flowers, gifts or greeting cards;

n. Furniture and accessories including bedding, home furnishings and office equipment;

o. Office supplies including copying or shipping services;

p. Groceries and household items;

q. Hardware, tools, equipment, supplies and accessories;

r. Auto parts, supplies, accessories and outdoor activity supplies with no servicing or repair of vehicles;

s. Package liquor; and

t. Pets and pet supplies with associated grooming and dog daycare services;.

u. Medical marijuana dispensary; and

https://library.municode.com/nd/mandan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PT2CO_CH12LIPEMIBURE
https://library.municode.com/nd/mandan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=SPBLADEPUSE_CH105DIREZO
https://library.municode.com/nd/mandan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PT2CO_CH12LIPEMIBURE
https://library.municode.com/nd/mandan/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=SPBLADEPUSE_CH105DIREZO


v. Fireworks stand.

Section 3.  Sec. 105-4-1 (2) a. and b. are amended to read: 

(2) Uses permitted.

a. The following uses are permitted:

1. Single-family dwelling.

2. Church.

3. Education group.

4. Public recreation group.

5. Fire station.

6. Railroad line trackage.

7. General farming group, as defined in section 105-1-4.

8. Truck farming group, as defined in section 105-1-4.

9. Utility service group.

10. Airport.

11. Golf course.

12. Oil and gas well.

13. Radio or television transmitting station.

14. Sand or gravel extraction.

15. Sewage treatment plant.

16. Fireworks stand.

b. Provided, however, that on a record lot having an area of less than five acres, but not less
than 20,000 square feet, corresponding to a record lot shown on a plat or deed recorded
prior to the adoption of the ordinance from which this section is derived, any of the following
uses are permitted:

1. Single-family dwelling.

2. Church.

3. Education group.

4. Public recreation group.

5. Fire station.

6. Railroad line trackage.

7. General farming group, as defined in section 105-1-4.

8. Truck farming group, as defined in section 105-1-4.

9. Utility service group.

10. Animal hospital.



11. Oil or gas well.

12. Fireworks stand.

Section 3.  Sec. 101-1-3, 105-1-4 (c) (2), and Sec. 105-4-1 (2) a. and b. are amended and re-
enacted. 

________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 

First Consideration:  January February 2219, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: MarchFebruary 5, 2019  



Update on Fireworks 

Additional Information Requested/Questions Asked at Previous Meeting: 

Enforcement Authority in the ETA? 

Summary of AG opinion received by Attorney Brown: 

The City of Mandan maintains enforcement jurisdiction related to zoning and subdivision portions of city 
code within ETA.  Anything not included within the zoning/subdivision portion of the ordinance would 
be limited to 1/2mile outside of city limits (nuisances such as accumulation of junk on display).   

Rural Fire Opinion 

E-mail from Chief Nardello surrounding discussion with Lynn Gustin, Mandan Rural Fire Chief:

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

I just wanted to touch base with you regarding the fireworks ordinance and a conversation that I had 
with Lynn Gustin, Mandan Rural Fire Chief. 

Chief Gustin telephoned me on Tuesday, November 6, 2018, and asked what my thoughts were 
regarding the proposed fireworks ordinance. I explained to him that the ordinance would provide for 
better building and fire code compliance as well as inspections of the sales of fireworks. Chief Gustin felt 
that the ordinance would be an improvement rather than the current Morton County procedures and 
was in support of the ordinance. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Morton County Process and Comment 

Industrial/Ag zone permissible with temporary use permit 

Response from Natalie Pierce, Morton County Planning Director 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

I have reviewed the proposed Mandan Ordinance 1291 relating to fireworks and provide the following 
comments: 

1) Based on the confusion surrounding permitting for fireworks stands in the ETA over the past
three years, I think this ordinance is necessary in order to make application standards clear for
stand operators.

Exhibit 2 - Additional Information Obtained between October and 
November 2018



2) I would recommend defining a fireworks stand. Then, separate from the definition, provide the
standards/requirements for fireworks stands. Someone may sell fireworks from an open table
and say “hey, I don’t meet the definition of fireworks stand because I’m not a trailer or a
structure, so the ordinance doesn’t apply to me.”

3) You may want to change condition f to state “500 ft. setback from an existing residence” rather
than residential zoning district. In the case where there may be a subdivision that has only
vacant lots, it seems that should not prohibit a fireworks stand from locating on an Agricultural
or Commercial lot next to such a subdivision.

Those are all my comments. Thank you for your efforts to establish standards in the Mandan Ordinance 
so that we can hopefully avoid mass confusion in the 2019 season. 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 



Morton County Department of Planning and Zoning 
701-667-3346 | 2916 37th St. NW, Mandan, ND 58554 Revised: Sept 2014 

MORTON COUNTY TEMPORARY USE APPLICATION  

Filled out by Zoning 
Administrator: 

App 
#: 

Date 
Issued: 

Date 
Ended: 

The proposed use is (check all that apply): 

☐ Concert of Fair ☐ Temporary housing for
construction project

☐ Sales stand for produce, Christmas trees, or
fireworks

☐ Construction staging area or
Contractor’s Office

☐ Public or religious meeting ☐ Any other temporary use

USE INFORMATION 

Type of Use Proposed: 

Legal Description of Property (section, township, lot, etc.): 

Address of Property: Start Date: End Date 

Description: 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Applicant/Organizer 

Name: Phone: Email: 

Mailing Address: 

Property owner (if different than applicant/organizer) 

Name: Phone: Email: 

Mailing Address: 

By signing, I attest that this application is complete, accurate, and submitted with the required information as outlined in the 

attached checklist. I understand the regulations of the Morton County Land Use Code as they pertain to this request(s). I 

certify that all owners of property described herein have signed or ratified this application. I hereby request favorable 

consideration of the above described temporary use proposal: 

Applicant’s Signature Date Property Owner’s Signature Date 

Additional Owner’s Signature Date Additional Owner’s Signature Date 

Applications are not complete until all required submittals have been received 

All applications are due by 5:00 p.m. 10 calendar days prior to the start date of the temporary use. 

Exhibit 3 - Morton County Temporary Use Application

I I 

I I 

I I 



Morton County Department of Planning and Zoning 
701-667-3346 | 2916 37th St. NW, Mandan, ND 58554 Revised: Sept 2014 

MORTON COUNTY DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION CHECKLIST 
The following checklist and all required materials must be submitted with an application. 

Temporary Use Permit Submitted with application for temporary use 

Morton County Land Use Code, 
Section 10-050 

☐ Fee of:  $50

☐ Any information requested by the zoning administrator to ensure that the
proposed temporary use meets the terms and conditions of the land use code.

APPROVAL CRITERIA 

[from Section 10-050(a) of Land Use Code] 

During the review of a request for a temporary use permit, the Zoning Administrator shall take the following matters into 
consideration: 

1. The use is allowed in the zoning district of the proposed location.

2. The proposed timeline of the use complies with maximum allowable durations for the use in the Section 2-200 Use

Table.

3. The use will not create a burden on public facilities and utilities which serve or are proposed to serve the area.

4. The use will be sufficiently compatible with surrounding land uses so that there will be no deterrence to the use of

adjacent land and uses. Reasonable restrictions on the hours of operation, lighting, and noise levels may be

defined where appropriate to maintain compatibility.

5. Adequate measures have been taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic congestion,

provide adequate access to public roads, and provide on-site parking.

6. Adequate water supply, individual sewage treatment system facilities, erosion control and stormwater management

are provided in accordance with applicable standards.

7. All applicable permits, licenses, and/or certifications required for the operation of the temporary use have been

acquired from the respective governing entities.

8. There is a plan in place to return the land to its original condition. Remediation shall be complete by the date

specified on the temporary use permit. Extensions to the remediation period may be granted by the Zoning

Administrator when completing remediation within the required time creates an extraordinary hardship for the

applicant, but extensions may not be granted beyond ninety (90) days in total.



City of Mandan Engineering and Planning Department 
205 2nd Ave NW, Mandan ND 58554| (701) 667-3225 Created January 2019 

CITY OF MANDAN TEMPORARY USE APPLICATION 

Filled out by Principal 
Planner: 

App 
#: 

Date 
Issued: 

Date 
Ended: 

☐ Fireworks Stand

USE INFORMATION 
Type of Use Proposed: 

Legal Description of Property (section, township, lot, etc.): 

Address of Property: Start Date: End Date 

Description: 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Applicant/Organizer 

Name: Phone: Email: 

Mailing Address: 

Property owner (if different than applicant/organizer) 

Name: Phone: Email: 

Mailing Address: 

By signing, I attest that this application is complete, accurate, and submitted with the required information as outlined in 
the attached checklist. I understand the regulations of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Mandan, North Dakota as 
they pertain to this request(s).  I certify that all owners of property described herein have signed or ratified this 
application.  I understand that this application, if approved, will be valid for no longer than 60 days.  I hereby request 
favorable consideration of the above described temporary use proposal: 

Applicant’s Signature Date Property Owner’s Signature Date 

Additional Owner’s Signature Date Additional Owner’s Signature Date 

Exhibit 4 - Mandan Temporary Use Application

I I 

I I 

I I 



City of Mandan Engineering and Planning Department 
205 2nd Ave NW, Mandan ND 58554| (701) 667-3225 Created January 2019 

Applications are not complete until all required submittals have been received 
All applications are due by 5:00 p.m. 14 calendar days prior to the start date of the temporary use. 

CITY OF MANDAN DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION CHECKLIST 
The following checklist and all required materials must be submitted with an application. 

Temporary Use Permit     Submitted with application for temporary use 
FEE: ☐ New (new applicant or revised site plan):  $100 

Renewal (no changes from previously approved application):  $50 
SITE PLAN: ☐ Depicting location of all structures, distance to property line, ingress/egress, 

parking, lighting type and locations, etc.  

APPROVAL CRITERIA 
During the review of a request for a temporary use permit, staff shall take the following matters into consideration: 

1. The use is allowed in the zoning district of the proposed location.

2. The use will not create a burden on public facilities and utilities which serve or are proposed to serve the area.

3. The use will be sufficiently compatible with surrounding land uses so that there will be no deterrence to the use of
adjacent land and uses. Reasonable restrictions on the hours of operation, lighting, and noise levels may be
defined where appropriate to maintain compatibility.

4. Adequate measures have been taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize traffic congestion,
provide adequate access to public roads, and provide on-site parking.

5. Adequate water supply, individual sewage treatment system facilities, erosion control and stormwater
management are provided in accordance with applicable standards.

6. All applicable permits, licenses, and/or certifications required for the operation of the temporary use have been
acquired or will be acquired prior to initiating said temporary use from the respective governing entities.

7. There is a plan in place to return the land to its original condition. Remediation shall be complete by the date
specified on the temporary use permit. Extensions to the remediation period may be granted by the Principal
Planner when completing remediation within the required time creates an extraordinary hardship for the applicant,
but extensions may not be granted beyond ninety (90) days in total.

Office Use Only – A copy of this application signed by the Building Official, City Engineer, and City Planner shall act 
as the approved temporary use permit.  

______________________________ ____________________________ 
Building Official Signature: Date 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
City Engineer Signature: Date 

______________________________ ____________________________ 
City Planner Signature: Date 



Morton County Land Use Code Amended as of: 8/10/2017 

Article 2 |Zoning Districts   >   Section 2-200  Use Table 17 

 Use Table Section 2-200

The following table lists all uses allowed within zoning districts of Morton County: 

Use Categories(a)

    P   Uses Permitted By Right:  A “P” indicates that a use category is allowed (1)

by right in the respective zoning district. These permitted uses are subject to all 
other applicable provisions of this code. 

    P/R    Uses Permitted By Right, with review:  A “P/R” indicates that a use (2)

category is allowed by right in the respective zoning district only after a site plan 
review by the Zoning Administrator. These permitted uses are subject to all other 
applicable provisions of this code. 

    S    Uses Permitted with Special Use Permit:  An “S” indicates that a use (3)

category is allowed only if reviewed and approved as a special use, in 
accordance with the special use review procedures of Section 10-040. Special 
uses are subject to all other applicable provisions of this code. 

    T    Uses Permitted with Temporary Use Permit:  A “T” indicates that a use (4)

category is allowed only if reviewed and approved as a temporary use, in 
accordance with the temporary use review procedures of Section 10-050 for a 
period not to exceed the number of days identified in the Use Table. 

   /C   Uses Subject to Specific Conditions:  A “P,” an “S,” or a “T” that is (5)

accompanied by the symbol “/C” indicates that the listed use type is subject to 
use-specific conditions. The standards for specific uses are listed in Article 5 | 
Specific Use Standards and a reference to the section is provided. 

    -    Uses Not Allowed:  A “-” indicates that a use type is not allowed in the (6)

respective zoning district, unless it is otherwise expressly allowed by other 
provisions of this code. Additionally, all uses not included on this list are not 
allowed within any zoning district within Morton County, unless they are 
interpreted as a use type in this table according to Section 2-200(b). 

Exhibit 5 - Morton County Land Use Table

D 



Morton County Land Use Code Amended as of: 8/10/2017 

Article 2 |Zoning Districts   >   Section 2-200  Use Table 18 

Section 2-200  |  Use Table 
Zoning Districts 

Use Type (with reference to applicable standards) 
A E R RM C CR I IL PI PR O 

Agricultural Uses 

Farming or Ranching P P P P P P P P P P P 

Animal Feeding Operation, major - Section 5-060 S/C - - - - - - - - - - 

Animal Feeding Operation, minor - Section 5-060 P/C P/C - - - - - - - - - 

Grain Elevator S - - - - - - - - - - 

Winery or Distillery or Brewery - Section 5-030  P/C P/C - - - S/C - - - - - 

Agricultural Recreational Use - Section 5-030 P/C P/C - - - S/C - - - - - 

Greenhouse, commercial P P - - P P - - - - - 

Residential Uses 

Dwelling, single family P - P P - P1 - - - - - 

Dwelling, multifamily - - - P - - - - - - - 

Manufactured Home Park - Section 5-140 S/C - S/C S/C - - - - - - - 

Group Home P - P P - - - - - - - 

Live-Work Unit - - - - - P - - - - - 

Bed and Breakfast - - - - - S - - - - - 

Temporary Crew Housing - Section 5-170 S/C - - - S/C - S/C - - - - 

Commercial Uses 

Animal Boarding Kennel S S - - P P - P - - - 

Bank - - - - P P - - - - - 

Compassion Center (dispensary) - Section 5-250 - - - - S/C - S/C - - - - 

Fueling Station - Section 5-090 - - - - P P/C P - - - - 

Livestock Sales Pavilion S - - - - - P - - - - 

Hotel - - - - P - - S - - - 

Office - - - - P P - P P - - 

Parking Lot or Parking Garage2 - - - - P - - - - - - 

1 An existing residence, on a lot that is subsequently rezoned to the CR District, is allowed. New construction of a single family home on a lot within the CR District is 
not allowed.  



Morton County Land Use Code Amended as of: 8/10/2017 

Article 2 |Zoning Districts   >   Section 2-200  Use Table 19 

Section 2-200  |  Use Table 
Zoning Districts 

Use Type (with reference to applicable standards) 
A E R RM C CR I IL PI PR O 

Retail, automotive - - - - P - P - - - - 

Retail, farm implements - - - - P - P P - - - 

Retail, general - - - - P P - - - - - 

Retail, grocery - - - - P P - - - - - 

Services, personal - - - - P P - - - - - 

Services, automotive repair - - - - P - P P - - - 

Services, general repair - - - - P P P P - - - 

Sign, outdoor advertising - - - - P - P - - - - 

Undertaking Establishment - Section 5-070 S/C - - - - - P P - - - 

Arts, Entertainment and Recreational Uses 

Adult Entertainment Center - Section 5-020 - - - - - - S/C - - - - 

Amusement Parks / Commercial Recreation S - - - P/R - - - - S - 

Arts and Crafts Gallery - - - - P P - - - - - 

Bar or Tavern - - - - S - - - - - - 

Bowling Alley - - - - P - - - - - - 

Drive-in Theater - Section 5-080 S/C - - - S/C - S/C - - - - 

Event Center – Section 5-230 - - - - P/C S/C - - - - - 

Golf Driving Range - Section 5-100 S/C - - - S/C - - - - S/C - 

Hunting Cabin S - - - - - - - - - - 

Neighborhood Park or Playground P P P P P P - - P P P/R 

Marina/Boating Facility - - - - P P - - - P - 

Miniature Golf Course - Section 5-100 S/C - - - S/C - - - - - - 

Pool or Ice Rink, public - - - - P - - - - P - 

Race Track S - - - - - - - - - - 

Restaurant - - - - P P - S P/R3 P/R3 - 

2 Only applies to parking facilities that are a principal use. Parking is permitted as an accessory use according to Section 4-010 Automobile Parking. 
3 Permitted as an accessory use, conditioned on Zoning Administrator review and approval. 



Morton County Land Use Code Amended as of: 8/10/2017 

Article 2 |Zoning Districts   >   Section 2-200  Use Table 20 

Section 2-200  |  Use Table 
Zoning Districts 

Use Type (with reference to applicable standards) 
A E R RM C CR I IL PI PR O 

Riding Stable / Riding Arena4 - Section 5-240 P/R P/R - - - P/R - - - P/R - 

Recreational Vehicle Camp - Section 5-150 S/C - - - S/C - S/C - - S/C - 

Rodeo Arena5 S - - - P - - - - - - 

Sports Arena - - - - P - - S - - - 

Shooting Range S - - - - - P - - S - 

Theater - - - - P P - - - - - 

Trailhead Facility P P P P P P P P P P P/R 

Institutional Uses 

Cemetery - Section 5-070 S/C - - - - - - - S/C - - 

Church S - P P P P - - P - - 

Community Center P - - - P P - S P P - 

Day Care - - - - P P - - P - - 

Health Care Facility - - - - P - - - P - - 

Nursing Home or Assisted Living Facility - - - - P P - - P - - 

School, college or university - - - - P - - - P - - 

School, elementary or secondary P - P P P - - - P - - 

School, technical or trade - - - - P - P P P - - 

Police, Fire, or EMS Station P - - - P - P P P - - 

Veterinary Clinic S S - - P P - P - - - 

Industrial Uses 

Asphalt, Concrete Batch, or Aggregate Plant S - - - - - P - - - - 

Compassion Center (growing/processing) 
- Section 5-250

S/C - - - - - S/C - - - - 

Contractor Storage Yard S - - - - - P S - - - 

4 A riding stable for private use in the Residential District is an accessory “Animal Husbandry” use. Any stable or riding arena located in a district other than the 
Residential District must submit a site plan to the Zoning Administrator for review. 
5 For commercial use. Rodeo arenas for private use only may be permitted by right in the Agricultural (A) District.  

I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 



Morton County Land Use Code Amended as of: 8/10/2017 

Article 2 |Zoning Districts   >   Section 2-200  Use Table 21 

Section 2-200  |  Use Table 
Zoning Districts 

Use Type (with reference to applicable standards) 
A E R RM C CR I IL PI PR O 

Energy Conversion Facility – Section 5-085 - - - - - - S/C - - - - 

Fertilizer Facility S S - - - - P - - - - 

Aggregate Extraction and Processing - Section 5-110 S/C S/C - - - - P/C - - - - 

Salvage Yard - Section 5-130 - - - - - - S/C - - - - 

Laboratory, research - - - - - - P P - - - 

Manufacturing, major - - - - - - P - - - - 

Manufacturing, minor - - - - - - P P - - - 

Oil and Gas Well P P P P P P P P P P P 

Outdoor Storage – Section 5-200 S/C S/C - - - - P P - - - 

Slaughterhouse - - - - - - S - - - - 

Warehouse, Storage, and Wholesale Distribution S S - - - - P P - - - 

Solid Waste Facility - Section 5-160 S/C - - - - - S/C - - - - 

Sewage Treatment Plant S - - - - - P - - - - 

Storage, fuel - - - - - - P - - - - 

Telecommunications Facility - Section 5-190 S/C S/C - - - - P P - - - 

Vehicle Storage, Long-term – Section 5-210 S/C S/C - - - - P P - - - 

Utility, public facility P P - - - - P P - - - 

Wind Energy Facility - Section 5-180 S/C S/C - - - - - - - - - 

Transportation-Related Uses 

Airport - Section 5-040 S - - - - - - - - - - 

Railyard - - - - - - P - - - - 

Railroad Track P - - - P - P - - - - 

Transloading Facility S - - - - - P - - - - I I I I I I I I I I I I I I 



Morton County Land Use Code Amended as of: 8/10/2017 

Article 2 |Zoning Districts   >   Section 2-200  Use Table 22 

Section 2-200  |  Use Table 
Zoning Districts 

Use Type (with reference to applicable standards) 
A E R RM C CR I IL PI PR O 

Additional Accessory Uses 

Accessory Dwelling Unit - Section 5-010 S/C - - - - - - P/C - - - 

Animal Husbandry - Section 5-050 P - P/C P/C - - - - - - - 

At-Home Business - Section 5-120(c) S - - - - P/R - - - - - 

Home Occupation, Major - Section 5-120(b) P/C - S/C S/C - 
- 

P/R 
- - - - - 

Home Occupation, Minor - Section 5-120(a) P/C - P/C P/C - P - - - - - 

Home Occupation, 2nd on lot or tract6 S/C - S/C S/C - P - - - - - 

Temporary Uses 

Concert or fair  (21 days) T T - - T - T - T - - 

Construction staging area (180 days) T T T T T T T T - - - 

Contractors office (180 days) T T T T T T T T - - - 

Housing for construction project (180 days) T - - - T T T T - - - 

Public or religious meeting (60 days) T T - - T - T - T - - 

Sales stand for produce, Christmas trees, or 

fireworks (60 days)7 
T T - - T T T - 

- - - 

Any other temporary use (180 days) S S S S S S S S S S S 

6 A second Home Occupation may be either Minor or Major, but may not be an At-Home Business. 
7 Rummage sales, yard sales, and garages sales do not require any permit, subject to Section 5-120(a)(6). 

I I I I I I I I I I I I I 



RESOLUTION ADJUSTING PLANNING AND ENGINEERING FEES 
Board of City Commissioners 

City of Mandan, North Dakota 

WHEREAS, The cost for certain tasks should be borne by the applicant 
requesting action; and   

WHEREAS, City staff have estimated the average time and cost necessary to 
complete certain tasks; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners 
of the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, that, beginning March 6, 2019, the 
following adjustments shall be made to the fees charged for various tasks performed by 
city staff: 

Task Current Fee Fee Effective 
March 6, 2019 

Fireworks Sales, 1-year - 100 

President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 

City Administrator 

EXHIBIT 6 - Resolution Establishing Fees



Board of City Commissioners 

Agenda Documentation 

STATEMENT/PURPOSE:  Consider approval of second consideration of Ordinance 
1306 related to the keeping of backyard chickens in the City of Mandan and establish 
associated permitting fees.  
BACKGROUND/ALTERNATIVES:  This ordinance is the product of several residents 
noting interest in housing chickens in town, more specifically a request by Travis Dengel 
who provided a brief presentation in Fall 2018.   

Additional information was provided to Planning and Zoning Commission at another 
meeting including a brief survey of communities in North Dakota that allow chickens, the 
number allowed, and commonalities within the ordinances such as disallowing roosters 
(See Exhibit 2).  Also provided were the benefits and consequences of permitting 
chickens and the means to mitigate negative impacts (See Exhibit 3).     

Presently, the code does not allow chickens unless as part of a commercial-scale 
operation.  The code as outlined in Exhibit 1 would allow up to four (4) chickens per lot 
with several restrictions to mitigate negative impacts to neighboring property owners.   

A preliminary draft ordinance was constructed and sent to city departments and several 
other agencies for review as is typical for ordinances and development applications.  
Minor adjustments were made based on feedback from the Building Department, Public 
Works, and Morton County Planning and Zoning.  Exhibit 1 is the ordinance following 
these minor adjustments.   

Finally, Exhibit 4 provides an acknowledgement of understanding of the requirements 
and responsibilities which the applicant and owner will be required to sign prior to the 
issuance of a permit.  This will help ensure compliance as permits are issued.    

MEETING DATE: March 5, 2019 
PREPARATION DATE: February 27, 2019 
SUBMITTING DEPARTMENT: Engineering and Planning 
DEPARTMENT DIRECTOR: Justin Froseth, PE 
PRESENTER: John Van Dyke, AICP, CFM,  
SUBJECT: Second Consideration of Ordinance 1306 Related 

to Backyard Chickens and Resolution Establishing 
Fees  

Res. and Ord. No. 4 

CITY OF 

MANDAN 
WHERE THE WEST BEGINS 



Board of City Commissioners 
Agenda Documentation 
Meeting Date: March 5, 2019 
Subject: Second Consideration of Ordinance 1306 related to the Keeping of Backyard 
Chickens within the City of Mandan and Resolution Establishing Fees 
Page 2 of 2 

Planning and Zoning voted nine (9) in favor and two (2) opposed to recommend approval 
of Ordinance 1306 at the January 2019 meeting.   

City Commission voted three (3) in favor and two (2) opposed to approve the first 
consideration of Ordinance 1306.  

Minor adjustments to Ordinance 1306 between first and second consideration include the 
following: 

• Clarified that the “coop” is also required to be setback from property line and
adjacent dwellings.

• Removed definition of “exercise yard”, as it is not used within the ordinance.

The fees associated with the permit are provided in Exhibit 6.  These fees are estimated to 
account for staff time involved in the permitting of backyard chickens.  They are as 
follows: 

• New Permit - $100
• Annual Renewal - $50

ATTACHMENTS:  

Exhibit 1 – Ordinance #1306 – Backyard Chickens 
Exhibit 2 – Sample of ND Ordinances 
Exhibit 3 – Pros, Cons, & Means to Mitigate Negative Impacts 
Exhibit 4 – Understanding of Requirements and Responsibilities 
Exhibit 5 – Example Site Plan 
Exhibit 6 – Resolution Establishing Fees for Backyard Chicken Permit 

FISCAL IMPACT:  N/a 

STAFF IMPACT:  N/a 

LEGAL REVIEW:  This document has been sent to Attorney Brown for his review. 

RECOMMENDATION:  The Engineering and Planning Department and Planning and 
Zoning Commission recommend approval of Ordinance 1306 as presented in Exhibit 1.   

SUGGESTED MOTION: I move to approve Ordinance 1306 as presented in Exhibit 1.   



ORDINANCE NO. 1306 

An Ordinance to Amend and Re-enact Section 6-1-6 related to possession of animals and Enact 
Section 105-1-16 related to possession and care of chickens within city limits.  

WHEREAS, Numerous Mandan residents have voiced interest in raising chickens for purposes 
of individual food production 

WHEREAS, Many urban communities in the North Dakota and across the nation allow residents 
to keep chickens within city limits when meeting certain requirements 

WHEREAS, Negative impacts stemming from the keeping of chickens can be mitigated through 
proper regulation and education 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of City Commissioners of the City of 
Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, as follows: 

Section 1.  Amended.  Section 6-1-6 related to possession of animals is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

It is unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to keep, own, possess or have under his/her 
control any poultry within the city limits, with the exception of:  

1. cCommercial poultry hatcheries

2. As permitted in Section 105-1-16; or

3. aAs otherwise allowed by law

It shall also be unlawful and is declared a nuisance for any person to , or to keep within the platted 
portion of the city any swine, poultry, rabbits, cows or horses. 

Section 2.  Enacted.  Section 105-1-16 related to possession and care of chickens within city 
limits:   

Sec. 105-1-16 - Chickens 

(a) Purpose.  It is the purpose of this section to regulate the keeping of chickens at an individual or
household scale to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the city.  
This section in no way applies to commercial production and processing of poultry as regulated 
in Section 105-3.   

EXHIBIT 1 - Draft Ordinance



(b) Permit required.  A renewable permit issued by the city planner or his/her designee shall be
required prior to conducting any keeping of chickens at an individual or household scale.  The 
permit shall be good for one calendar year as measured from the date of issuance and is tied to 
both the applicant and the land.  Permits shall be non-transferrable.   

(c) Revocation.  A permit may be revoked by the city planner or his/her designee for failure to
comply with the requirements outlined in this section or any other local or state regulation 
governing keeping or cruelty to animals.  Any person whose permit is revoked shall, within ten 
business days thereafter, humanely dispose of all chickens being owned, kept or harbored by 
such person, and no part of the application fee shall be refunded. 

(d) Appeal.  The permittee may appeal the revocation or refusal of renewal of the permit by timely
request for a hearing before the Board of City Commissioners.  The request for hearing must be 
received by the city planner or his/her designee within ten business days following the date of 
the notice of revocation or refusal of renewal.  The Board of City Commissioners shall hold a 
hearing on the permittee's request for hearing and shall render a final decision on the matter 
after said hearing.     

(e) Multiple Property Limitation.  An applicant owning multiple properties abutting or in close
proximity is limited to a single permit.  The planner or his/her designee shall make the 
determination of what is considered “close proximity.”     

(f) Application.  An application for a permit shall include:

1. General form established by staff to capture applicant, property owner, and property
information, including necessary signatures.  

2. Property owner and applicant, if different than the property owner, signed understanding of
the requirements and responsibilities outlined in this section. 

3. Site plan illustrating:

a. Property lines and distance to proposed coop and run

b. Neighboring residence(s) location and distance to proposed coop and run

c. Type and style of back and side yard fence

4. Construction drawings including at least one of the following:

a. Materials used in the construction of the coop and run

b. Diagram and illustration if provided in a prefabricated kit

5. Fee.  A non-refundable application fee as established by the Board of City Commissioners
shall be required at the time of application.  The Board of City Commissioners may establish 
a different fee to be applied to new applications and renewal applications.     



(g) Late renewal applications not accepted.  Late renewal applications shall be treated the same as
new applications, including fee and submittal requirements.   

(h) Definitions.  The established definitions are for purposes of this section only.  If any conflict
exists with other sections of this code the more restrictive shall apply.   

Brood means group of chickens, whether or not from the same hatching.  

Brooding means the period in the animal’s growth when supplemental heat must be provided 
due to the bird’s inability to generate enough body heat.   

Chicken means a domesticated fowl more formally known and scientifically classed as gallus 
gallus domesticus.   

Coop means a fully enclosable, non-residential structure for housing chickens.  

Hen means a female chicken.  

Rooster means a male chicken.    

Run means a fully enclosed and covered area attached to a coop where the poultry can 
roam unsupervised. 

(i) Standards

1. No more than four (4) hens shall be permitted on any one lot.

2. Roosters shall not be permitted.  As soon as a rooster is identified it shall be culled from the
brood.  

3. The chickens, coop, and run, shall be located in the rear or side yard obscured from view
from any street, trail, public park, or other right-of-way.  

4. Chickens outside of the coop and run shall be supervised at all times.

5. The coop dimensions shall total less than one-hundred-twenty (120) square feet.

6. Coop height as measured from the average ground elevation to the highest point on the
coop shall not exceed eight (8) feet. 

7. The coop and run shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet from the property line and no
closer than twenty (20) feet from an adjacent property dwelling.  

8. The coop shall be constructed in a manner which prevents rodent infiltration.

9. The coop shall be constructed to provide a minimum of four (4) square feet per chicken.



10. The run shall be constructed to provide a minimum of ten (10) square feet per chicken.

11. Chickens shall at no time be located off the property for which they have been permitted.

12. Coops, runs, and manure storage shall be kept 20 feet from streams, tributaries, ditches,
storm water management facilities, drop inlets, or other storm drainage areas that would 
allow fecal matter to enter any city storm drainage system or stream. Dumping chicken 
manure into the city’s storm drainage system is prohibited.  

13. Except for chickens properly slaughtered for consumption, dead chickens must be
disposed of within 24 hours after death.  Legal forms of chicken carcass disposal include 
burial and off-site incinerate or rendering.  All slaughtering of chickens shall be 
conducted so as not to be visible to the public or adjacent property owners and 
occupants.  

14. All grain and food stored for the use of the chickens shall be kept in a rodent proof
container. 

Section 3.  Sec. 6-1-6 is amended and re-enacted. 

Section 4.  Sec. 105-1-16 is enacted.   

________________________________ 
Timothy A. Helbling, President 
Board of City Commissioners 

Attest: 

________________________ 
James Neubauer, 
City Administrator 

First Consideration:  February 19, 2019 
Second Consideration and Final Passage: March 5, 2019      



Jurisdiction Allowed Approval Process Maximum Number Notes

City of Casselton, ND Yes City Council 2 Hens only

City of Jamestown, ND Yes Allowed by right Not specified

Fowl in general allowed; enclosure at least 100' 
from any residence; Strict requirements within 
ordinance outline on how fowl need to be kept.  
Any deviation is a nuisance violation. 

City of Wahpeton Yes Administrative Permit 6 Hens only; well-defined and organized ordinance

City of Park River, ND Yes Administrative Permit 8
Hens only; 75% of property owners within 200' of 
coop must approve. 

City of Beach, ND Yes Allowed by right Not specified Odor or noise leads to nuisance violation

City of Bismarck, ND Yes Allowed by right 10
Limited to certain zoning districts in the ETA only;  
Proximity buffer to neighboring property 
structures of 150' 

City of Fargo, ND Yes Administrative Permit 4 Hens only; 

EXHIBIT 2 - Sample of Communities in ND Allowing Chickens



Brief Overview of Backyard Chickens 

The Pros 

Homegrown, organic food source 

Provide education regarding the species and lessons on self-sustainability 

Pest control – chickens feed on insects in the yard 

Source of fertilizer for gardens 

The Cons/Means to mitigate 

Noise – chickens are animals and inherently make noise. 

• Limitations on the quantity of chickens allowed can reduce the impact of noise.  Roosters
produce the most noise.

• Disallowing roosters will greatly assist with noise reduction from the activity.

Health issues – Chickens can attract rodents, produce a healthy supply of feces, and carry many strains 
of bacteria such as salmonella.   

• Establishing setbacks from property lines will help ensure that impacts stemming from the
activity will remain on site.

• Requiring specific dimensional standards per chicken will ensure adequate space is provided for
each animal and the byproduct that it produces.

• Requiring construction materials that prevent rodent infiltration.
• Establishing a permitting process will help ensure that interested residents are educated on the

expectations of upkeep and other limitations and requirements BEFORE choosing to pursue the
activity.

Odor 

• Quantity restrictions will help control the quantity of feces and other odorous byproducts.
• Minimum setbacks from adjacent property residences.
• Minimum lot size requirements or quantities based on lot size.

Visual 

• Restrictions to heights of coops and other ancillary structures

Exhibit 3 - Pros, Cons, and Means to Mitigate Negative Impacts



Acknowledgement of Understanding of Requirements 
and Responsibilities 

Read the following portion of the Mandan Municipal Code governing chickens.  These 
regulations must be followed or the property owner(s) may be cited for a violation by code 
enforcement.   

Sec. 105-1-16 - Chickens 

(a) Purpose.  It is the purpose of this section to regulate the keeping of chickens at an individual or
household scale to promote the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the city.
This section in no way applies to commercial production and processing of poultry as regulated
in Section 105-3.

(b) Permit required.  A renewable permit issued by the city planner or his/her designee shall be
required prior to conducting any keeping of chickens at an individual or household scale.  The
permit shall be good for one calendar year as measured from the date of issuance and is tied to
both the applicant and the land.  Permits shall be non-transferrable.

(c) Revocation.  A permit may be revoked by the city planner or his/her designee for failure to
comply with the requirements outlined in this section or any other local or state regulation
governing keeping or cruelty to animals.  Any person whose permit is revoked shall, within ten
business days thereafter, humanely dispose of all chickens being owned, kept or harbored by
such person, and no part of the application fee shall be refunded.

(d) Appeal.  The permittee may appeal the revocation or refusal of renewal of the permit by timely
request for a hearing before the Board of City Commissioners.  The request for hearing must be
received by the city planner or his/her designee within ten business days following the date of
the notice of revocation or refusal of renewal.  The Board of City Commissioners shall hold a
hearing on the permittee's request for hearing and shall render a final decision on the matter
after said hearing.

(e) Multiple Property Limitation.  An applicant owning multiple properties abutting or in close
proximity is limited to a single permit.  The planner or his/her designee shall make the
determination of what is considered “close proximity.”

(f) Application.  An application for a permit shall include:

1. General form established by staff to capture applicant, property owner, and property
information, including necessary signatures.

EXHIBIT 4



2. Property owner and applicant, if different than the property owner, signed understanding of
the requirements and responsibilities outlined in this section.

3. Site plan illustrating:

a. Property lines and distance to proposed coop and run

b. Neighboring residence(s) location and distance to proposed coop and run

c. Type and style of back and side yard fence

4. Construction drawings including at least one of the following:

a. Materials used in the construction of the coop and run

b. Diagram and illustration if provided in a prefabricated kit

5. Fee.  A non-refundable application fee as established by the Board of City Commissioners
shall be required at the time of application.  The Board of City Commissioners may establish
a different fee to be applied to new applications and renewal applications.

(g) Late renewal applications not accepted.  Late renewal applications shall be treated the same as
new applications, including fee and submittal requirements.

(h) Definitions.  The established definitions are for purposes of this section only.  If any conflict
exists with other sections of this code the more restrictive shall apply.

Brood means group of chickens, whether or not from the same hatching.

Brooding means the period in the animal’s growth when supplemental heat must be provided
due to the bird’s inability to generate enough body heat.

Chicken means a domesticated fowl more formally known and scientifically classed as gallus
gallus domesticus.

Coop means a fully enclosable, non-residential structure for housing chickens.

Hen means a female chicken.

Rooster means a male chicken.

Run means a fully enclosed and covered area attached to a coop where the poultry can
roam unsupervised.

(i) Standards

1. No more than four (4) hens shall be permitted on any one lot.



2. Roosters shall not be permitted.  As soon as a rooster is identified it shall be culled from the
brood.

3. The chickens, coop, and run, shall be located in the rear or side yard obscured from view
from any street, trail, public park, or other right-of-way.

4. Chickens outside of the coop and run shall be supervised at all times.

5. The coop dimensions shall total less than one-hundred-twenty (120) square feet.

6. Coop height as measured from the average ground elevation to the highest point on the
coop shall not exceed eight (8) feet.

7. The coop and run shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet from the property line and no
closer than twenty (20) feet from an adjacent property dwelling.

8. The coop shall be constructed in a manner which prevents rodent infiltration.

9. The coop shall be constructed to provide a minimum of four (4) square feet per chicken.

10. The run shall be constructed to provide a minimum of ten (10) square feet per chicken.

11. Chickens shall at no time be located off the property for which they have been permitted.

12. Coops, runs, and manure storage shall be kept 20 feet from streams, tributaries, ditches,
storm water management facilities, drop inlets, or other storm drainage areas that would
allow fecal matter to enter any city storm drainage system or stream. Dumping chicken
manure into the city’s storm drainage system is prohibited.

13. Except for chickens properly slaughtered for consumption, dead chickens must be
disposed of within 24 hours after death.  Legal forms of chicken carcass disposal include
burial and off-site incinerate or rendering.  All slaughtering of chickens shall be
conducted so as not to be visible to the public or adjacent property owners and
occupants.

14. All grain and food stored for the use of the chickens shall be kept in a rodent proof
container.

By signing below, you acknowledge that you understand the requirements outlined in Section 105-1-16 
related to the keeping of chickens.   

PLEASE NOTE:  Neighborhood Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&Rs) supersede the 
right provided through this permit.  By signing below, you indicate to the best of your knowledge 
no CC&Rs exist that prohibit backyard chickens on your property.  No refund shall be granted for 
reasons related to CC&Rs and the inability to exercise the right granted through this permit.   



Applicant Signature:__________________________________ Date:_____________________ 

Property 
Owner 

Signature:__________________________________ Date:_____________________ 



SITE OBSCURING FENCE

STREET

10' MIN

HOME

HOME

20' MIN

RUN

40 SQ. FT. MIN

COOP

120 SQ. FT. MAX

COOPRUN

20' MIN

HOME

10' MIN PROPERTY LINE

EXHIIBIT 5 - Site Plan Example
---------- -- -- -,,,,.,. 

.......... / 
/ .......... 

/ " / '-.. 
/ " I \ 

I \ 
I I 
\ I 
\ I 

" / 
'-.. / 

" / 
/ 

/ .......... ,,,,.,. - -- -- ---------

i,--
...------'_,_-,- - -~ 



RESOLUTION ADJUSTING PLANNING AND ENGINEERING FEES 
Board of City Commissioners 

City of Mandan, North Dakota 

WHEREAS, The cost for certain tasks should be borne by the applicant 
requesting action; and   

WHEREAS, City staff have estimated the average time and cost necessary to 
complete certain tasks; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of City Commissioners 
of the City of Mandan, Morton County, North Dakota, that, beginning March 6, 2019, the 
following adjustments shall be made to the fees charged for various tasks performed by 
city staff: 

Task Current Fee Fee Effective 
March 6, 2019 

Backyard Chicken Permit, 1-year - New - 100 
Backyard Chicken Permit, 1-year - Renewal - 50 

President, Board of City Commissioners 
ATTEST: 

City Administrator 

EXHIBIT 6 - Resolution Establishing Fees


	Agenda
	Minutes
	C1 Interest buydown for haro Property Mgmt.
	C2i Aviation Appreciation Proclamation
	C2ii Earth Day Proclamtion
	C2iii spring Clean-up Week Proclamation
	C3 Letter of support by E-C ND investments
	C4 Transfer liquor license fro Silver $ to DiDonna
	C5 Raffle permit for FFA 
	NB1i Storefront Imp. app. for 1710 E Main St
	NB1ii  Restaurant Rewards App. by Balancing Goat Coffee 5yr. rebate
	NB1iii Resaurant Rewards Application by Balancing Goat Coffee interest buydown
	NB1iv  Restaurant Rewards Program
	NB2 ND Opportunity Fund Loan Committe
	NB3 i-94 Resurface Project
	NB4i Lila Teigen
	NB4ii Jonathan Mathisen
	NB5 Legislative Update
	R&O1 Ord. 1307 Animals
	R&O2 Ord. 1301 R3.2
	R&O3 Ord. 1291 Fireworks
	R&O4 Ord. 1306 Chickens



